## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<b>PART</b>	1 - GENERAL INFORMATION	4
1.1	Introduction	4
1.2	SUMMARY	
1.3	SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	
1.4	Debriefings	
1.5	ANTICIPATED MIGRATION TO AN E-PROCUREMENT SOLUTION (EPS)	
PART	2 - OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS	6
2.1	STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	6
2.2	SUBMISSION OF OFFERS.	
2.3	FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT	
2.4	ENQUIRIES - REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFERS	
2.5	APPLICABLE LAWS.	
PART	3 - OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	10
3.1	Offer Preparation Instructions	10
	ACHMENT 1 TO PART 3 – OFFER SUBMISSION FORM	
PART	4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION	14
4.1	Definitions	
4.2	EVALUATION PROCEDURES	
4.3	Basis of Evaluation	
4.4	REFERENCE CHECKS	
4.4	TECHNICAL EVALUATION	
4.5	FINANCIAL EVALUATION	
4.6	Basis of Selection	68
PART	5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	69
5.1	CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED WITH THE OFFER	69
5.2	CERTIFICATIONS PRECEDENT TO THE ISSUANCE OF A STANDING OFFER AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	69
PART	6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	70
6.1	SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	70
6.2	FINANCIAL CAPABILITY	
6.3	Insurance Requirements	
DADT		
	7 - STANDING OFFER AND RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	
A. S	FANDING OFFER	
7.1	Offer	
7.2	Security Requirements	
7.3	STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	
7.4	TERM OF STANDING OFFER	
7.5	AUTHORITIES	
7.6	PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS	
7.7	IDENTIFIED USERS	
7.8	NUMBERS OF STANDING OFFERS	
7.9	CALL-UP ALLOCATION AND PROCEDURES	
7.10		
7.11	LIMITATION OF CALL-UPS	
	FINANCIAL LIMITATION	
	PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS	
	CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
/ 15	APPLICABLE LAWS	

7.16	Transition to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS)	77
B. RES	SULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	79
7.1	STATEMENT OF WORKSTANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	79
7.2	STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	79
7.3	TERM OF CONTRACT	79
7.4	PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS	79
7.5	PAYMENTInvoicing Instructions	79
7.6	Invoicing Instructions	80
7.7	Insurance Requirements	80
ANNE	X "A" - STATEMENT OF WORK	81
ANNE	X "B" – BASIS OF PAYMENT	116
ANNE	X "C" – SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST (SRCL)	118
ANNE	X "D" – SECURITY SAFEGUARDING REQUIREMENTS	120

**PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION** 

## 1.1 Introduction

The Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) is divided into seven parts plus attachments and annexes, as follows:

- **Part 1** General Information: provides a general description of the requirement;
- **Part 2 Offeror Instructions:** provides the instructions applicable to the clauses and conditions of the RFSO:
- **Part 3 Offer Preparation Instructions:** provides Offerors with instructions on how to prepare their offer to address the evaluation criteria specified:
- Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria which must be addressed in the offer, and the basis of selection;
- Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided;
- Part 6 Security, Financial and Insurance Requirements: includes specific requirements that must be addressed by Offerors; and
- Part 7 7A, Standing Offer, and 7B, Resulting Contract Clauses:
  - 7A, includes the Standing Offer containing the offer from the Offeror and the applicable clauses and conditions;
  - 7B, includes the clauses and conditions which will apply to any contract resulting from a Callup made pursuant to the Standing Offer.

The Annexes include the Statement of Work (SOW), the Basis of Payment, the Security Requirements Checklist (SRCL), the IT Security Safeguarding Requirements, and any other annexes.

## 1.2 Summary

- 1.2.1. This Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) is being issued to satisfy the requirement of Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC) for Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services. It is intended to result in the award of up to nine (9) National Individual Standing Offers (NISOs), each of which is for one (1) three-year period, plus two (2) irrevocable option one-year periods allowing Canada to extend the term of the NISO.
- 1.2.2. The RFSO is to establish NISOs for the delivery of the requirement, to the Identified Users across Canada. Some of the locations in which the Offerors may be required to perform work or deliver services are within areas subject to by Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs). These include, but are not necessarily limited to:

Location	Related CLCA(s)
British Columbia	Maa-nulth Final Agreement Nisga'a Final Agreement Tsawwassen First Nation Final Agreement
Newfoundland and Labrador	Labrador Inuit Land Claims Agreement
Northwest Territories	Gwich'in Comprehensive Land Claim Agreement Inuvialuit Final Agreement Sahtu Dene and Metis Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement

Location Related CLCA(s) Tlicho Land Claims Agreement Nunavut Nunavik Inuit Land Claims Agreement Nunavut Land Claims Agreement Eeyou Marine Region Land Claims Agreement Québec James Bay and Northern Québec Agreement (JBNQA) The Northeastern Québec Agreement Nunavik Inuit Land Claims Agreement Yukon Yukon Umbrella Final Agreement, which includes but does not limit to: Carcross/Tagish First Nation Final Agreement Champagne and Aishihik First Nation Final Agreement Kluane First Nation Final Agreement Kwanlin Dun First Nation Final Agreement Little Salmon / Carmacks First Nation Final Agreement First Nation of Nacho Nyak Dun Final Agreement Selkirk First Nation Final Agreement Ta'an Kwach'an Council Final Agreement Teslin Tlingit Council Final Agreement Tr'ondëk Hwëch'in final Agreement **Vuntut Gwitchin First Nation Final Agreement** 

**1.2.3.** Through this **open-bidding** competitive procurement process, **in each Service Stream** as set out in the table below, CIRNAC seeks to award up to **three (3) Standing Offer Agreements** (SOAs), namely NISOs.

Service Streams	
Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services	
Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services	
Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-	
commercialization	

## 1.3 Security Requirements

There are security requirements associated with the requirement of the RFSO. For additional information, see Part 6 - Security, Financial and Insurance Requirements, and Part 7 - Standing Offer and Resulting Contract Clauses. For more information on personnel and organization security screening or security clauses, Offerors should refer to the <a href="Contract Security Program">Contract Security Program</a> of Public Works and Government Services Canada (<a href="http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html">http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html</a>) website.

#### 1.4 Debriefings

Offerors may request a debriefing on the results of the request for standing offers process. Offerors should make the request to the Standing Offer Authority within **15 working days** of receipt of the results of the request for standing offers process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

## 1.5 Anticipated migration to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS)

Canada is currently developing an online EPS for faster and more convenient ordering of goods and services. In support of the anticipated transition to this system and how it may impact any resulting Standing Offer that is issued under this solicitation, refer to 7.15 Transition to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS).

The Government of Canada's press release provides additional information.

**PART 2 - OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS** 

## 2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) by number, date and title are set out in the <a href="Standard Acquisition Clauses">Standard Acquisition Clauses</a> and Conditions Manual (<a href="https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual">https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual</a>) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Offerors who submit an offer agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the RFSO and accept the clauses and conditions of the Standing Offer and resulting contract(s).

The <u>2006</u> (2019-03-04) Standard Instructions - Request for Standing Offers - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the RFSO.

Subsection 5.4 of <u>2006</u>, Standard Instructions - Request for Standing Offers - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, is amended as follows:

Delete: 60 days Insert: 180 days

#### 2.2 Submission of Offers

- 2.2.1 Offers MUST be received by CIRNAC at the email address identified, by the date and time on the cover page of the solicitation. Offers MUST NOT be sent directly to the Standing Offer Authority or Project Authority. Canada will not be responsible for offers delivered to a different address. Offers sent directly to the Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority will not be considered.
- 2.2.2 The email address indicated on the cover page of the solicitation is for the purpose of offers submission and enquiries concerning that solicitation. No other communications are to be forwarded to this address.

More than one email can be sent if necessary (if the same file is sent twice, the latest file received will be used for evaluation purposes and the previous one(s) will not be opened).

Canada will take no responsibility if an offer is not received on time because the email was refused by a server for the following reasons:

- The size of attachments exceeds **10 MB**;
- The email was rejected or put in quarantine because it contains executable code (including macros);
- The email was rejected or put in quarantine because it contains files that are not accepted by our server, such as, but not limited to, .rar, encrypted .zip, encrypted .pdf, .exe., etc.

Links to an online storage service (such as Google Drive<sup>™</sup>, Dropbox<sup>™</sup>, etc.) or to another website, a File Transfer Protocol (FTP) service access, or any other mean of transferring files, **will not** be accepted. All documents submitted must be attached to the email.

It is strongly recommended that Offerors confirm with the Standing Offer Authority that their complete offer is received. For this same reason, it is recommended that in cases where more than one (1) email containing documents comprising the quote is submitted, the emails be numbered and the total number of emails sent in response to the solicitation also be identified.

**2.2.3** Canada requires that each offer, at closing date and time or upon request from the Standing Offer Authority, be signed by the Offeror or by an authorized representative of the Offeror. If any required signature(s) are not submitted as requested, the Standing Offer Authority may inform the Offeror of a time frame within which to provide the signature(s). Failure to comply with the request of the Standing Offer Authority and to provide the signature(s) within the time frame provided may render the offer non-responsive. If an offer is submitted by a joint venture, it must be in

accordance with section 17 Joint Venture, of 2003 (2019-03-04) Standard Instructions - Goods or

2.2.4 It is the Offeror's responsibility to:

Services - Competitive Requirements.

- a. obtain clarification of the requirements contained in the offer solicitation, if necessary, before submitting an offer;
- b. prepare its offer in accordance with the instructions contained in the RFSO;
- c. submit by closing date and time a complete offer;
- d. send its offer only to the address specified on the cover page of the RFSO;
- e. ensure that the Offeror's name, return address, and the RFSO reference number are clearly visible on the envelope or the attachment(s) containing the offer; and,
- f. provide a comprehensible and sufficiently detailed offer, including all requested pricing details, that will permit a complete evaluation in accordance with the criteria set out in the RFSO.
- 2.2.5 Offers received on or before the stipulated offer closing date and time will become the property of Canada and will not be returned, including those of unsuccessful Offerors. All offers will be treated as confidential, subject to the provisions of the Access to Information Act (R.S. 1985, c. A-1) and the Privacy Act (R.S., 1985, c. P-21), and other applicable law.
- **2.2.6** Unless specified otherwise in the RFSO, Canada will evaluate only the documentation provided with an Offeror's offer. Canada will not evaluate information such as references to Web site addresses where additional information can be found, or technical manuals or brochures not submitted with the offer.
- **2.2.7** An offer cannot be assigned or transferred in whole or in part.

#### 2.3 Former Public Servant

Contracts awarded to former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts awarded to FPSs, Offerors must provide the information required below before contract award. If the answer to the questions and, as applicable the information required have not been received by the time the evaluation of offers is completed, Canada will inform the Offeror of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to comply with Canada's request and meet the requirement within the prescribed time frame will render the offer non-responsive.

#### a. Definitions

For the purposes of this clause, "former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the Financial Administration Act, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- (i) an individual;
- (ii) an individual who has incorporated:
- (iii) a partnership made of former public servants; or
- (iv) a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the Public Service Superannuation Act (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c.P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the Supplementary Retirement

Sido Chen

Benefits Act, R.S., 1985, c.S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act, R.S., 1985, c.C-17, the Defence Services Pension Continuation Act, 1970, c.D-3, the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension Continuation Act, 1970, c.R-10, and the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act, R.S., 1985, c.R-11, the Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act, R.S., 1985, c.M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the Canada Pension Plan Act, R.S., 1985, c.C-8.

## b. Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Offeror a FPS in receipt of a pension? Yes () No ()

If so, the Offeror must provide the following information, for all FPS in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- (i) name of former public servant;
- (ii) date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.

By providing this information, Offerors agree that the successful Offeror's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with <a href="Contracting Policy Notice">Contracting Policy Notice</a>: 2012-2 and the <a href="Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts">Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts</a>.

## c. Work Force Adjustment Directive

Is the Offeror a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? **Yes () No ()** 

If so, the Offeror must provide the following information:

- (i) name of former public servant;
- (ii) conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;
- (iii) date of termination of employment;
- (iv) amount of lump sum payment;
- (v) rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- (vi) period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- (vii) number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

For all contracts awarded during the lump sum payment period, the total amount of fees that may be paid to a FPS who received a lump sum payment is \$5,000, including Applicable Taxes.

## 2.4 Enquiries - Request for Standing Offers

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Standing Offer Authority no later than <u>five (5)</u> calendar days before the Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Offerors should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the RFSO to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by Offerors to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that Offerors do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered to all Offerors. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all Offerors may not be answered by Canada.

2.5 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in **Ontario**.

Offerors may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their offer, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the Offerors.

#### **PART 3 - OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

#### 3.1 Offer Preparation Instructions

Canada requests that the Offeror submits its offer in accordance with section 08 of the <u>2006</u> standard instructions. An Offer **MUST** be gathered per section and separated as follows:

Section I: Technical Offer (1 electronic copy, PDF format)
Section II: Financial Offer (1 electronic copy, PDF format)
Section IV: Additional Information (1 electronic copy, PDF format)
(1 electronic copy, PDF format)

Prices MUST appear in the Financial Offer only. Prices shall not be indicated in any other section of the Offer. The Offeror's failure to comply with this condition will result in the Offer being declared non-compliant and being given no further consideration.

Offerors **MUST** include any reference material they wish to be considered for evaluation within their Offer. Any material or documents outside the Offer **will not** be considered (for example, should the Offeror wish to provide screen shots of its website, etc. for evaluation, copies or printouts of website material must be included within the Offer). **URL links to the Offeror's website will not be considered as a qualified proof.** 

Canada requests that Offerors follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of their offer:

- (a) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper;
- (b) use a numbering system that corresponds to the RFSO.

**Submission of Only One Offer per Service Stream:** An Offeror, including related entities, will be permitted to submit only one offer per Service Stream. If an Offeror or any related entities participate in more than one offer per Service Stream (participating means being part of the Offeror, not being a subcontractor), Canada will provide those Offerors with two (2) working days to identify the single offer to be considered by Canada. Failure to meet this deadline will result in all the affected offers being disqualified.

An Offeror, including related entities, can submit Offers on multiple Service Streams separately in response to this RSFO. Offers MUST be submitted on the "per Service Stream" basis. A completely separate Offer, including Technical Offer, Financial Offer, Certifications and Other information, MUST clearly identify for which Service Stream it submits. Offerors are strongly encouraged to use the Offer Submission Forms provided in Attachment 1 to Part 3 to support the consistent organization of Offers.

An Offeror may offer in one (1), two (2) or all three (3) of the following Service Streams:

- Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services;
- Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services:
- Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services.

For the purposes of this Article, regardless of the jurisdiction where any of the entities concerned is incorporated or otherwise formed as a matter of law (whether that entity is a natural person, corporation, partnership, etc.), an entity will be considered to be "related" to an Offeror if:

- a) they are the same legal entity (i.e., the same natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability partnership, etc.);
- b) they are "related persons" or "affiliated persons" according to the Canada Income Tax Act,
- c) the entities have now or in the two years before offer closing had a fiduciary relationship with one another (either as a result of an agency arrangement or any other form of fiduciary relationship); or
- d) the entities otherwise do not deal with one another at arm's length, or each of them does not deal at arm's length with the same third party.

GIOCOCCO TE

e) Individual members of a joint venture cannot participate in another offer, either by submitting an offer alone or by participating in another joint venture.

#### Section I: Technical Offer

In their Technical Offer(s), Offerors should explain and demonstrate how they offer to meet the requirements and how they will carry out the Work. Offerors should demonstrate their capability and describe their approach in a thorough, concise and clear manner for carrying out the work.

The technical Offer should address clearly and in sufficient depth the points that are subject to the evaluation criteria against which the offer will be evaluated. Simply repeating the statement contained in the RFSO is not sufficient. In order to facilitate the evaluation of the offer, Canada requests that Offerors address and present topics in the order of the evaluation criteria under the same headings. To avoid duplication, Offerors may refer to different sections of their offers by identifying the specific paragraph and page number where the subject topic has already been addressed.

Part 4, Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection, contains additional instructions that Offerors should consider when preparing their technical offers.

#### Section II: Financial Offer

Offerors MUST submit their Financial Offers in accordance with Financial Tables detailed in article 4.5.3.

The Financial Offer **MUST** include all costs for the requirement described in the RFSO for the entire Offer Period, including any option periods.

When preparing their Financial Offer, Offerors should review clauses in the article 4.5 - Financial Evaluation, of Part 4 of the RFSO; and article 7.5 - Payment, of Part 7 (B) of the RFSO.

#### 3.1.1 Electronic Payment of Invoices - Offer

Direct Deposit (Domestic and International) is encouraged to be accepted for payment of invoices, however, acceptance of Electronic Payment Instruments will not be considered as an evaluation criterion.

## 3.1.2 Exchange Rate Fluctuation

C3011T (2013-11-06), Exchange Rate Fluctuation

#### Section III: Certifications

Offerors must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

#### Section IV: Additional Information

## 3.1.3 Offeror's Proposed Sites or Premises Requiring Safeguarding Measures

3.1.3.1 As indicated in Part 6 under Security Requirements, the Offeror must provide the full addresses of the Offeror's and offered individuals' sites or premises for which safeguarding measures are required for Work Performance:

Street Number / Street Name, Unit / Suite / Apartment Number City, Province, Territory / State Postal Code / Zip Code Country

3.1.3.2 The Company Security Officer must ensure through the <u>Contract Security Program</u> that the Offeror and offered individual(s) hold a valid security clearance at the required level, as indicated in Part 6 – Security, Financial and Other Requirements.

## ATTACHMENT 1 to PART 3 - OFFER SUBMISSION FORM

OFFER SUBMISSION FORM	
Offeror's full legal name	
Which Service Stream offered for?	
Authorized Representative of Offeror for	Name
evaluation purposes (e.g., clarifications)	Title
	Address
	Telephone #
	Fax #
Offered Brown and Brown an	Email
Offeror's Procurement Business Number (PBN)	
[see the Standard Instructions 2003]	
[Note to Offerors: Please ensure that the PBN you provide matches the legal name under which you have submitted your Offer. If it does not, the Offeror will be determined based on the legal name provided, not based on the PBN, and the Offeror will be required to submit the PBN that matches the legal name of the Offeror.]	
Jurisdiction of Contract: Province or territory in Canada the Offeror wishes to be the legal jurisdiction applicable to any resulting contract (if other than as specified in solicitation)	
Former Public Servants	Is the Offeror a FPS in receipt of a pension as defined in the RFSO?
See the Article in Part 2 of the RFSO	
entitled Former Public Servant for a definition of "Former Public Servant".	Yes No
dominion of 1 dimor 1 danc convant.	If yes, provide the information required by the Article in Part 2 entitled "Former Public Servant"
	Is the Offeror a FPS who received a lump sum payment under the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive?
	Yes No
	If yes, provide the information required by the Article in Part 2 entitled "Former Public Servant"

I	Security Clearance Level of Offeror
	[include both the level and the date it was granted]
	[Note to Offerors: Please ensure that the security clearance matches the legal name of the Offeror. If it does not, the security clearance is not valid for the Offeror.]

OODZOOS+2

## PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

#### 4.1 Definitions

The following definitions apply to all Mandatory Requirements and Point-Rated Criteria. All other defined terms are as set out in the Annex "A" – Statement of Work.

- "Offeror" refers to the legal entity having submitted an Offer for evaluation, and which, if successful in the evaluation process, must execute the Standing Offer Agreement.
- "MUST", whether capitalized or not, refers to a requirement. In response to a Mandatory
  Requirement, failure on the part of the Offer to provide the information or demonstrate it meets a
  requirement expressed by "MUST", will result in the Offer being deemed non-compliant and no further
  consideration given. In response to a Rated Criterion, failure on the part of the Offer to provide the
  information or demonstrate it meets a requirement expressed by "MUST", will result in the Offer not
  being assessed any points.
- "Resource" refers to the named individual(s) offered by an Offeror (whether employed or subcontracted by the Offeror) to deliver Services under any resulting Standing Offer Agreement. Each offered Resource will be evaluated separately in the category and Service Stream(s) in which he/she is offered.
- "Should" refers to a desired element. Failure on the part of the Offer to provide the information requested by "should" within its Offer or to demonstrate that it meets the element expressed by "should" may result in the Offer receiving less than full points on any Point-Rated Criteria. Offerors are encouraged to address all elements expressed by "should".
- "Substantiated" is that which is independently verifiable, with clear demonstration of the outcomes of a given task, skill, ability, or other evaluation factor being demonstrated, and includes evidence of understanding any related underlying methodology and/or techniques as appropriate and provides sufficient details with regard to the above. Simply stating that a Resource or the Offeror has completed a task, or that a task was involved in a work engagement, will not be considered "substantiated." Similarly, a reiteration of the text of the Point-Rated Criteria, on its own, will not be eligible to receive points.
- "Responsive Offer" is defined as an Offer meeting ALL Mandatory Requirements and meeting an overall pass mark of 70% on Point-Rated Criteria R1-R6.
- "Work engagement", for the purposes of demonstrating the Offeror's work experience, is defined
  as follows:
  - a) Work engagement is a summary of the services delivered by an Offeror to a client in support of either or both of: a client's Project or a client's Portfolio; as specified in each respective Criterion.
  - b) The Offeror's work has a beginning and an end date and delivers a result.
  - c) The Offeror's work described must be of the minimum duration required in the Mandatory Requirement (see Mandatory Requirement M1).
  - d) Other substantiating information is as required in Mandatory Requirement M1.
  - e) The repetition of tasks performed for the same client Project or Portfolio, whether occurring concurrently or consecutively, is not considered to be a distinct work engagement for the purposes of this evaluation.
- "Work engagement", for the purposes of demonstrating an offered Resource's work experience, is
  defined as follows:
  - a) Work engagement is a summary of the services delivered by a Resource to its employer or to a client in support of either or both of: a client's Project or a client's Portfolio; as specified in each respective Criterion.
  - b) The work has a beginning and an end date and delivers a result.

- c) The Resource's work described must be of the minimum duration required in the Minimum Qualifications.
- d) The role, activities and deliverables of the Resource should be fully described and must be clearly attributed to the Resource (i.e. distinguishable from the scope of the client's Project or client's Portfolio and distinguishable from the scope of any Offeror or entity-level Work engagement).

#### 4.2 Evaluation Procedures

- a) There are several steps in the evaluation process, which are described below. Even though the evaluation and selection will be conducted in steps, the fact that Canada has proceeded to a later step does not mean that Canada has conclusively determined that the Offeror has successfully passed all the previous steps. Canada may conduct steps of the evaluation in parallel.
- b) Offers will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) including the technical and financial evaluation criteria. Offers against each Service Stream will be evaluated separately against the evaluation criteria applicable to the Service Stream in which the Offer is submitted.
- c) An evaluation team composed of representatives of CIRNAC will evaluate the offers.
- d) In each Service Stream, the Selection and Evaluation Process for Offers consists of the following five (5) stages:
  - Stage 1: Offers will be evaluated on Mandatory Requirements M1-M3;
  - Stage 2: Offers meeting ALL of M1-M3 will be evaluated on the basis of Point-Rated Criteria R1-R6;
  - Stage 3: Offers meeting an overall pass mark of 70% on Point-Rated Criteria R1-R6 will be evaluated on the basis of R7 Offer Quality and the scores for R1-R7 summed and weighted to arrive at the total Technical Score for the Offer;
  - Stage 4: Offers meeting the overall pass mark of 70% on Point-Rated Criteria R1-R6 and evaluated on Point-Rated Criterion R7 will be evaluated on the basis of their Financial Offer to arrive at the total Financial Score for the Offer:
  - Stage 5: Offers' total Technical Scores and Financial Scores will be summed to arrive at a Total Score for the Offer.
- e) Within the Service Stream in which the Offer is submitted, Offers failing to meet the requirements at any above stage will be deemed to be non-compliant at that stage and will be given no further consideration for that Service Stream.
- f) In addition to any other time periods established in the RFSO:
  - i. Requests for Clarifications: If Canada seeks clarification or verification from the Offeror about its Offer, the Offeror will have 2 working days (or a longer period if specified in writing by the Standing Offer Authority) to provide the necessary information to Canada. Failure to meet this deadline will result in the Offer being declared non-responsive.
  - ii. Requests for Further Information: If Canada requires additional information in order to do any of the following pursuant to the Section entitled "Conduct of Evaluation" in 2003, Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements:
    - A. verify any or all information provided by the Offeror in its Offer; or
    - B. contact any or all references supplied by the Offeror (e.g., references named in the résumés of individual resources) to verify and validate any information submitted by the Offeror.

The Offeror must provide the information requested by Canada within five (5) working days of a request by the Standing Offer Authority.

iii. **Extension of Time:** If additional time is required by the Offeror, the Standing Offer Authority may grant an extension in his sole discretion.

#### 4.3 Basis of Evaluation

- a) Evaluation is based on a "rules of evidence" approach, such that the Offer is the sole demonstration of the Offeror's capacity to fulfill the requirement, as described within the RFSO. No prior knowledge of or experience with the Offeror on the part of the CIRNAC evaluation team will be taken into consideration.
- b) To meet the requirements described herein, the <u>experience of the Offeror</u> must be work for which the Offeror provided services to clients exterior to the Offeror's own organization. **Internal business development projects will not be accepted.**
- c) For Resource experience, the <u>experience of the Resource</u> with any organization (whether the Offeror, another company or employer) will be considered, provided it demonstrates the experience of the Resource. Resource experience gained during formal education will not be considered work experience. All requirements for work experience must have been obtained in a professional work environment as opposed to an educational setting. Co-op terms or other field work through a University or college that were conducted in conjunction with a professional firm are considered work experience only for **Junior-level Resources** and provided they are related to the required Services. Note that Junior-level Resources are only evaluated at time prior to Call-up(s).
- d) The <u>experience of the Offeror</u> and <u>Core Resources</u> (refer to the SOW article 7.1.1) is calculated as of the <u>posting date</u> of the RFSO. For example, if a given requirement states "...must have experience, within the last ten (10) years", then the ten (10) year period is calculated as of the posting date of the RFSO.
- e) The month(s) of individual Resource experience listed for a work engagement in which the time frame overlaps that of another referenced work engagement for the same named Resource will only be counted once. For example: work engagement #1 time frame is July 2009 to December 2009; work engagement #2 time frame is October 2009 to January 2010; the total months of experience for these two work engagements is seven (7) months.
- f) Offerors are required to demonstrate how the experience of the Offeror and offered Resources meets the requirements stated in the Mandatory Requirements and Point-Rated Criteria. Timeframes of the Offeror's or Resources' experience should be identified by start date (Month and Year) and end date (Month and Year). A simple repetition of the requirements or of the Statement of Work contained in the RFSO will not be considered to demonstrate the experience of the Offeror or offered Resources. Similarly, listing experience without providing any supporting information describing where, when and how such experience was obtained may result in the experience not being included for evaluation purposes.

## 4.4 Reference Checks

- a) Canada reserves the right to conduct reference checks to verify the information contained within the submitted Offer. If Canada does not receive a response from the contact person within the 5 working days, Canada may contact the Offeror and permit the substitution of an alternate contact person, however, Canada will not permit the substitution for the 3<sup>rd</sup> time.
- b) Wherever information provided by a reference differs from the information supplied by the Offeror, the information supplied by the reference will be the information evaluated. In the event that any cited reference provides a negative response in regard to the veracity and/or accuracy of the information contained within the Offer, Canada reserves the right to deem the requirement non-compliant, whereupon no further consideration will be given.
- c) Points will not be allocated and/or an Offeror will not meet the mandatory experience requirement (as applicable) if (1) the reference customer states he or she is unable or unwilling to provide the

information requested, or (2) the customer reference is not a customer of the Offeror itself (for example, the customer cannot be the customer of an affiliate of the Offeror instead of being a customer of the Offeror itself). Nor will points be allocated or a mandatory met if the customer is itself an affiliate or other entity that does not deal at arm's length with the Offeror.

d) Whether or not to conduct reference checks is discretionary. However, if Canada chooses to conduct reference checks for any given rated or mandatory requirement, it will check the references for that requirement for all Offerors who have not, at that point, been found non-responsive.

## 4.4 Technical Evaluation

## 4.4.1 Mandatory Technical Criteria

Offers must meet all Mandatory Requirements to be considered for further evaluation in the Service Stream in which it is submitted. Failure on the part of the Offer to meet any one (1) of these requirements will result in their Offer being deemed non-compliant, with the Offer being given no further consideration.

**Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** 

1-M	1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
1.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide three (3) written Work engagements each demonstrating the experience of the Offeror in providing Services that are clearly related to the Services scope of Stream 1, as described in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15, to clients external to the Offeror's organization.		
1.2	All cited Work engagements ${f MUST}$ be work done <u>by the Offeror as an entity</u> (see ${f Note 1}$ below).		
1.3	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> have taken place within the last ten (10) years as of the posting date of the RFSO.		
1.4	The cited Work engagements may be on-going, but <b>MUST</b> demonstrate work completed as follows:		
	<ul><li>a) For one (1) Work engagement, no less than a duration of 12 months of Offeror work completed; and</li><li>b) For two (2) Work engagements, no less than a duration of six (6) months of Offeror work completed.</li></ul>		
1.5	Two (2) Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be in support of a Project with a value (Capital value or liability value) of at least CAD\$20 Million.		
1.6	One (1) other Work engagement <b>MUST</b> be in support of a client Portfolio with a value (Capital value or liability value) of at least CAD\$ 20 Million.		
1.7	At least one (1) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Contaminated Site Project.		
1.8	At least two (2) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Project where implementation work has been partially or fully completed, and demonstrating the Project is either Capital Project or Mining Project.		
1.9	At least one (1) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the Offeror's experience working with or engaging with:		
	a) Indigenous Project proponents; OR		

1-M1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
<ul> <li>b) Indigenous community stakeholders; OR</li> <li>c) Indigenous joint venture partners of the Offeror in the delivery of the services;</li> </ul>		
1.10 At least one (1) of the Offeror's Resources who is offered and compliant with the requirements of Mandatory Requirement 1-M3 <b>MUST</b> have been actively involved in at least one (1) of the cited Work engagements and providing the same level of expertise as the Resource category in which the individual is presently offered.		
It is <u>not</u> required that the Resource was engaged by the Offeror at that time. For the purpose of this requirement, "actively involved" means demonstrated involvement of the Resource in more than one (1) milestone or stage of a Project's lifecycle; providing active management-level decision and direction to the delivery of the work. For clarity quality assurance/quality control or reporting alone are not considered to demonstrate the Resource was "actively involved".		
1.11 Costs to the client and timelines of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be clearly defined, as follows:		
<ul> <li>a) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the client's Project or client's Portfolio (to the client) to which the Offeror's Services contributed (i.e. the client's overall Project value(s), including client Project(s) costs such as Capital costs, liability, etc.);</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>b) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the Offeror's completed services for the Work engagements (to the Offeror) (i.e. the Offeror's overall invoice total for services provided to the client for the described completed work);</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>c) The dates/duration of the Offeror's engagement in the delivery of services to the client.</li> </ul>		
1.12 The Offeror <b>MUST</b> indicate the name, address, and one (1) of the telephone number or e-mail address of the client Project Authority to whom the Offeror reported.		
Note de Foutles nomes of controller modern Manufatore Descriptions and A.M. the fo		

**Note 1:** For the purpose of evaluation under Mandatory Requirement 1-M1, the following will be considered as the Offeror's experience:

- a) Work engagement experience by the offering entity (i.e. the signatory to the Offer); or
- b) Work engagement experience completed by a firm that has merged with or was acquired by the Offeror; or
- c) In the case of Joint Ventures submitting an Offer, Work engagements may be demonstrated by any firm that is a part of the Joint Venture, provided that one (1) Work engagement is demonstrated to have been undertaken **by the lead firm** of the Joint Venture.

The onus is on the Offeror to clearly demonstrate within its submitted Work engagements which entity/firm (as defined in (a) through (c) above) completed the Work engagement.

All Work engagements submitted by Offerors **MUST** be in direct relation to contracts that were entered into and completed by the Offeror (as defined in a) through c) above) with the named client organization contained within the Work engagement.

The purpose of 1-M1 is to ascertain if the Offeror has previously entered into and completed similar/relevant Work. Work engagements completed by individual offered <u>Resources</u> for entities other

1-M1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
--------------------------------	--------------------	-----------

than the Offeror are considered elsewhere.

Therefore, as evidence of compliance with 1-M1, if the Work engagement was not contractually entered into and successfully completed by the Offeror (as defined in this Note 1), the Work engagement cannot be submitted as evidence of the Offeror's compliance with 1-M1.

1-M	2. Offeror Resource Team Structure	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
2.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide a completed Table 1-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form, identifying the Offeror's capacity in the Resource categories of this Stream and the names of its Resources who it offers to make available to CIRNAC.		
2.2	This <b>MUST</b> include, at a minimum, the Core Team of Resources, as required in Mandatory Requirement 1-M3 below.		

1-M3. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
The Offeror <b>MUST</b> offer a <b>Core Team</b> of Resources, consisting of the following Resources:	g	
a) Principal / Project Leader – The Offeror MUST offer at least two (2) Resources, at least one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications the category in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1;	sfor	
b) Senior Consultant – The Offeror MUST offer at least three (3) Resources at least two (2) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1;	5,	
c) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle – The Offeror MUST offer at least one (1) Resource but can offer up to two (Resources, one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1.		
The minimum number of Resources per category specified above <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the qualifications. Only those Resources determined to meet the minimum qualifications will be further evaluated. The Resources per Resource category will be evaluated in the order in which they appear in the Offer as set out in the 1-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form.	<b>;</b>	
In the event the first named Resource for the Resource category is not complia with the requirements of the Resource category in which he/she is offered, Canada will evaluate next offered Resource until up to the maximum number of Resources per category permitted to be offered against this Mandatory Requirement 1-M3.		

1000206942 Snuo Chen

## **Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services**

2-M	1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
1.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide three (3) written Work engagements each demonstrating the experience of the Offeror in providing Services that are clearly related to the Services scope of Stream 2, as described in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8, to clients external to the Offeror's organization.		
1.2	All cited Work engagements $\textbf{MUST}$ be work done by the Offeror as an entity (see $\textbf{Note 1}$ below).		
1.3	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> have taken place within the last ten (10) years as of the posting date of the RFSO.		
1.4	The cited Work engagements may be on-going, but <b>MUST</b> demonstrate work completed as follows:		
	<ul> <li>a) One (1) Work engagement, no less than duration of 24 months of Offeror work completed; and</li> <li>b) Two (2) other Work engagements, no less than duration of six (6) months of Offeror work completed.</li> </ul>		
1.5	The cited Work engagements MUST demonstrate:		
	<ul> <li>a) One (1) Work engagement, in support of a Major Project with a value (Capital value or liability value) of at least CAD\$100 Million.</li> <li>b) Two (2) other Work engagements, each in support of a different Major Project with a value (Capital value or liability value) of at least CAD\$50 Million.</li> </ul>		
1.6	At least one (1) of the Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Mine Closure Project.		
1.7	At least two (2) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Project where implementation work has been partially or fully completed, and demonstrating the Project is one of the following:		
	<ul><li>a) Capital Project; OR</li><li>b) Infrastructure Project; OR</li><li>c) Contaminated Site Project</li></ul>		
1.8	At least one (1) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the Offeror's experience working with or engaging with:		
	<ul> <li>a) Indigenous Project proponents; OR</li> <li>b) Indigenous community stakeholders; OR</li> <li>c) Indigenous joint venture partners of the Offeror in the delivery of the services;</li> </ul>		

2-M1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
1.9 At least one (1) of the Offeror's Resources who is offered and compliant with the requirements of Mandatory Requirement 2-M3 <b>MUST</b> have been actively involved in at least one (1) of the cited Work engagements and providing the same level of expertise as the Resource category in which the individual is presently offered.		
It is <u>not</u> required that the Resource was engaged by the Offeror at that time. For the purpose of this requirement, "actively involved" means demonstrated involvement of the Resource in more than one (1) milestone or stage of a Project's lifecycle; providing active management-level decision and direction to the delivery of the work. For clarity quality assurance/quality control or reporting alone are not considered to demonstrate the Resource was "actively involved".		
1.10 Costs to the client and timelines of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be clearly defined, as follows:		
d) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the client's Project (to the client) to which the Offeror's Services contributed (i.e. the client's overall Project value(s), including client Project(s) costs such as Capital costs, liability, etc.);		
e) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the Offeror's completed services for the Work engagements (to the Offeror) (i.e. the Offeror's overall invoice total for services provided to the client for the described completed work);		
f) The dates/duration of the Offeror's engagement in the delivery of services to the client.		
1.11 The Offeror <b>MUST</b> indicate the name, address, and one (1) of the telephone number or e-mail address of the client Project Authority to whom the Offeror reported.		

**Note 1:** For the purpose of evaluation under Mandatory Requirement 2-M1, the following will be considered as the Offeror's experience:

- a) Work engagement experience by the offering entity (i.e. the signatory to the Offer); or
- b) Work engagement experience completed by a firm that has merged with or was acquired by the Offeror; or
- c) In the case of Joint Ventures submitting an Offer, Work engagements may be demonstrated by any firm that is a part of the Joint Venture, provided that one (1) Work engagement is demonstrated to have been undertaken **by the lead firm** of the Joint Venture.

The onus is on the Offeror to clearly demonstrate within its submitted Work engagements which entity/firm (as defined in (a) through (c) above) completed the Work engagement.

All Work engagements submitted by Offerors **MUST** be in direct relation to contracts that were entered into and completed by the Offeror (as defined in a) through c) above) with the named client organization contained within the Work engagement.

The purpose of 2-M1 is to ascertain if the Offeror has previously entered into and completed similar/relevant Work. Work engagements completed by individual offered <u>Resources</u> for entities other than the Offeror are considered elsewhere.

Therefore, as evidence of compliance with 2-M1, if the Work engagement was not contractually entered into and successfully completed by the Offeror (as defined in this Note 1), the Work engagement cannot be submitted as evidence of the Offeror's compliance with 2-M1.

2-M	2. Offeror Resource Team Structure	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
2.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide a completed Table 2-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form, identifying the Offeror's capacity in the Resource categories of this Stream and the names of its Resources who it offers to make available to CIRNAC.		
2.2	This <b>MUST</b> include, at a minimum, the Core Team of Resources, as required in Mandatory Requirement 2-M3 below.		

2-1	13. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
	e Offeror <b>MUST</b> offer a <b>Core Team</b> of Resources, consisting of the following sources:		
a)	Principal / Project Leader – The Offeror MUST offer at least two (2) Resources, at least one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1;		
b)	Senior Consultant – The Offeror MUST offer at least three (3) Resources, at least two (2) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1;		
c)	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle – The Offeror MUST offer at least one (1) Resource but can offer up to two (2) Resources, one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1.		
d)	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management – The Offeror MUST offer one (1) Resource but can offer up to two (2) Resources, one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1;		
e)	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health – The Offeror MUST offer one (1) Resource but can offer up to two (2) Resources, one (1) of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1.		
der mir cat	e minimum number of Resources per category specified above <b>MUST</b> monstrate the qualifications. Only those Resources determined to meet the nimum qualifications will be further evaluated. The Resources per Resource egory will be evaluated in the order in which they appear in the Offer as set in the 2-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form.		
wit Ca Re	the event the first named Resource for the Resource category is not compliant in the requirements of the Resource category in which he/she is offered, nada will evaluate next offered Resource until up to the maximum number of sources per category permitted to be offered against this Mandatory quirement 2-M3.		

## Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

3-M	1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
1.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide three (3) written Work engagements each demonstrating the experience of the Offeror in providing Services that are clearly related to the Services scope of Stream 1, as described in the SOW Sections 5.4.1-5.4.13, to clients external to the Offeror's organization.		
1.2	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be work done by the Offeror as an entity (see <b>Note 1</b> below).		
1.3	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> have taken place within the last ten (10) years as of the posting date of the RFSO.		
1.4	The cited Work engagements may be on-going, but <b>MUST</b> demonstrate work completed as follows:		
	<ul><li>a) For one (1) Work engagement, no less than a duration of 12 months of Offeror work completed; and</li><li>b) For two (2) Work engagements, no less than a duration of six (6) months of Offeror work completed.</li></ul>		
1.5	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate experience in planning and implementing arrangements under the <i>Companies Creditor Arrangement Act (CCAA)</i> and <i>Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (BIA)</i> .		
1.6	All cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be in support of an actual insolvency where the liability value or value of assets to be liquidated is at least CAD\$ 20 Million.		
1.7	At least one (1) of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the delivery of services in support of Mining insolvency.		
1.8	At least one (1) of the Offeror's Resources who is offered and compliant with the requirements of Mandatory Requirement 3-M3 <b>MUST</b> have been actively involved in at least one (1) of the cited Work engagements and providing the same level of expertise as the Resource category in which the individual is presently offered.		
	It is <u>not</u> required that the Resource was engaged by the Offeror at that time. For the purpose of this requirement, "actively involved" means demonstrated involvement of the Resource in more than one (1) milestone or stage of a Project's lifecycle; providing active management-level decision and direction to the delivery of the work. For clarity quality assurance/quality control or reporting alone are not considered to demonstrate the Resource was "actively involved".		
1.9	Costs to the client and timelines of the cited Work engagements <b>MUST</b> be clearly defined, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>a) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the liabilities or value of assets to be liquidated for which the Offer provided services;</li> <li>b) Dollar value (\$CAD) of the Offeror's completed services for the Work engagements (to the Offeror) (i.e. the Offeror's overall invoice total for services provided to the client for the described completed work);</li> <li>c) The dates/duration of the Offeror's engagement in the delivery of services to the client.</li> </ul>		

000206942 Shuo Chen

3-M1. Offeror Work Engagements	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
1.10 The Offeror <b>MUST</b> indicate the name, address, and one (1) of the telephone number or e-mail address of the client Project Authority to whom the Offeror reported.		

**Note 1:** For the purpose of evaluation under Mandatory Requirement 3-M1, the following will be considered as the Offeror's experience:

- a) Work engagement experience by the offering entity (i.e. the signatory to the Offer); or
- b) Work engagement experience completed by a firm that has merged with or was acquired by the Offeror; or
- c) In the case of Joint Ventures submitting an Offer, Work engagements may be demonstrated by any firm that is a part of the Joint Venture, provided that one (1) Work engagement is demonstrated to have been undertaken **by the lead firm** of the Joint Venture.

The onus is on the Offeror to clearly demonstrate within its submitted Work engagements which entity/firm (as defined in (a) through (c) above) completed the Work engagement.

All Work engagements submitted by Offerors **MUST** be in direct relation to contracts that were entered into and completed by the Offeror (as defined in a) through c) above) with the named client organization contained within the Work engagement.

The purpose of 3-M1 is to ascertain if the Offeror has previously entered into and completed similar/relevant Work. Work engagements completed by individual offered <u>Resources</u> for entities other than the Offeror are considered elsewhere.

Therefore, as evidence of compliance with 3-M1, if the Work engagement was not contractually entered into and successfully completed by the Offeror (as defined in this Note 1), the Work engagement cannot be submitted as evidence of the Offeror's compliance with 3-M1.

3-M	3-M2. Offeror Resource Team Structure		Page #
2.1	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide a completed Table 3-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form, identifying the Offeror's capacity in the Resource categories of this Stream and the names of its Resources who it offers to make available to CIRNAC.		
2.2	This <b>MUST</b> include, at a minimum, the Core Team of Resources, as required in Mandatory Requirement 3-M3 below.		

3-M3. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Compliant (Yes/No)	Page #
3.1 The Offeror <b>MUST</b> offer a <b>Core Team</b> of Resources, consisting of the following Resources:		
<ul> <li>a) Principal / Project Leader – The Offeror MUST offer at least one (1) Resource, who MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1;</li> </ul>	ı	
<ul> <li>Senior Consultant – The Offeror MUST offer two (2) Resources, both of whom MUST demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1;</li> </ul>		
The minimum number of Resources per category specified above <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the qualifications. Only those Resources determined to meet the minimum qualifications will be further evaluated. The Resources per Resource category will be evaluated in the order in which they appear in the Offer as set out in the 3-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure form.		
3.2 The Offeror <b>MUST</b> also demonstrate that one (1) of its offered <b>Core Team</b> of Resources, has experience in both:	ıf	
<ul><li>a) Planning and implementing arrangements under the CCAA and BIA; and</li><li>b) The engagement and administration of trustee relationships.</li></ul>	t	
In the event the first named Resource for the Resource category is not complian with the requirements of the Resource category in which he/she is offered, Canada will evaluate next offered Resource until up to the maximum number of Resources per category permitted to be offered against this Mandatory Requirement 3-M3.	t	

#### 4.4.2 Point-Rated Technical Criteria

For each Service Stream, only those Offers meeting the Mandatory Requirements (M1-M3) will be deemed compliant and will be evaluated on the basis of the Point-Rated Criteria (R1-R6).

Offers **MUST** meet a minimum score of 70% overall on Point-Rated Criteria **R1-R6** inclusive (excluding R7 Offer Quality) in order to move to the next stage of evaluation.

Offers meeting the minimum score of 70% on Point-Rated Criteria **R1-R6** will be evaluated on Point-Rated Criteria R7 and the scores for all Point-Rated Criteria will be summed and weighted (as indicated below) to arrive at the Offeror's total Technical Score for the Service Stream.

Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services

	Scores to be	Cross	
1-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	assigned based	Reference	
	on the following	to Offer	

The CVs and Work engagements of the Offeror's offered Core Team Resources who are determined to meet the requirements set out in Mandatory Requirement 1-M3, will be evaluated on the demonstrated and Substantiated extent and depth of the relevant experience of the Resources in providing services similar to NCSB's requirements as described within the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15.

Only those Resources that are found to meet the requirements of 1-M3 and the category in which they are offered (SOW, Section 7.3.1.1) will be evaluated against 1-R1.

Each of the three (3) categories of Core Resources will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score

1-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
for each category will be weighted out of 8.		
Where more than one (1) Resource is offered in and meets the Minimum Qualifications of a given category, each Resource will be scored individually, and the totals for each Resource summed and averaged to arrive at an overall score for the Offeror for that Category, that will then be weighted out of 8.		
Additionally, 6 points will be awarded for Offerors offering the Services of one (1) qualified Resource in the OPTIONAL Resource category – Senior Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement.		

The Offeror's scores for each category will be summed to arrive at the Offeror's score out of 30 for R1.

#### 1.1 Principal / Project Leader

a) Up to 60 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on additional\* distinct\*\* Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date) as a Lead, delivering services related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.2.1 - 5.2.15.

Up to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:

- Up to 6 points per Work engagement for the nature of the Project or Portfolio for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided:
  - (a) Contaminated Site Project or Portfolio 6 points; OR
  - (b) a Capital Project/Portfolio or active Mining Project/Portfolio 4 points; OR
  - (c) other Project/Portfolio 0 points.
- 6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least five (5) of the following factors:
  - (a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples:
  - (b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
  - (c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
  - (d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
  - (e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
  - (f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher):
  - (g) designing and implementing performance management for Project Portfolios;
  - (h) designing and implementing risk management for Project Portfolios.
- \* additional means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1).
- \*\* distinct means in support of distinct requirements.
- b) Up to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the

Maximum 8 points (100 points weighted to 8: (Score / 100) x 8

1-R	1. Pr	oposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	Sect the \	ource's experience delivering services related to the SOW ions 5.2.1-5.2.15. Experience should be demonstrated across Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response ated Criterion 1-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement B):		
	(b) 3 (c) 3 (d) 3 (e) 1	The same Work engagement demonstrates at least five (5) services – 4 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 3 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 2 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 1 point; Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.		
		or Consultant	Maximum 8 points (100 points	
(a)	addithe F	tional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of RFSO posting date), delivering services related to taminated Site Project Portfolio Services as defined in the V Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15.	weighted to 8: (Score / 100) x 8	
	Up to	o 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	Ĺ	Up to 6 points per Work engagement for the nature of the Project or Portfolio for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided:		
		<ul> <li>(a) Contaminated Site Project or Portfolio – 6 points; OR</li> <li>(b) a Capital Project/Portfolio or active Mining Project/Portfolio – 4 points; OR</li> <li>(c) other Project/Portfolio – 0 points.</li> </ul>		
	ĺ	6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least five (5) of the following factors:		
		<ul> <li>(a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples;</li> <li>(b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> </ul>		
		(e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;		
	(	(f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);		
		(g) designing and implementing performance management for Project Portfolios;		
		(h) designing and implementing risk management for Project Portfolios.		

1-R	1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	* additional means in addition to the two (2) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1).  **distinct means in support of distinct requirements.		
b)	Up to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the Resource's experience delivering services related to the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15. Experience should be demonstrated across the Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 1-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M3):		
	<ul> <li>(a) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least five (5) services – 4 points;</li> <li>(b) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 3 points;</li> <li>(c) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3)</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>services – 2 points;</li> <li>(d) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 1 point;</li> <li>(e) Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.</li> </ul>		
1.3	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle	Maximum 8 points (100 points	
a)	Up to 40 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on additional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date), providing Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and costing for Contaminated Site Projects.	weighted to 8: (Score / 100) x 8	
	Up to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>Up to 8 points will be awarded per Work engagement demonstrating the following:</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(a) A minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months – 2 points;</li> <li>(b) experience in support of more than one (1) stage of the Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle – 3 points;</li> <li>(c) experience in support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability to the client – 3 points.</li> </ul>		
	* additional means in addition to the two (2) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1).  **distinct means in support of distinct requirements.		
b)	Up to 60 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the Resource's experience across the Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 1-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M3):		
	Up to 10 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the		

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

1-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
<ul> <li>Resource's experience in the following factors:</li> <li>(a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples (beyond the Mandatory Requirement of one (1) Work engagement);</li> <li>(b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> <li>(e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher).</li> <li>(ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates four (4) or more of the factors (a-f) – 10 points;</li> <li>(iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates three (3) of the factors (a-f) – 8 points;</li> <li>(iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates two (2) of the factors (a-f) – 6 points;</li> <li>(iv) The same Work engagement demonstrates one (1) of the factors (a-f) – 4 points;</li> <li>(v) No factors (a-f) demonstrated – 0 points.</li> </ul>		
The Offeror should offer and demonstrate the qualifications of a Resource in the OPTIONAL <u>Senior</u> Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement category.  In order to achieve points on this rated criterion, the offered Resource <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.1.1.	Maximum 6 points	
6 points will be awarded for one (1) <u>Senior</u> Subject Matter Expert  – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement demonstrating the qualifications for the category.		

	Scores to be	Cross
1-R2. Offeror Track Record and Work Engagements	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The experience of the Offeror in delivering Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services related to NCSB's requirements, as defined in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15, in support of relevant client Project Portfolios will be evaluated based on the Offeror's Work engagements provided in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M1 and additional information provided by the Offeror demonstrating its track record and client base for these services.

Each of following factor (2.1 and 2.2) will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 25 for 1-R2**.

1-R	2. C	Offe	ror Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
2.1	rec ser Ser	ord vice r <b>vic</b>	fferor should provide demonstration of a sustained track of quality service delivery by the Offeror in delivering es related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio es (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15) to clients al to the Offeror's organization.	Maximum 10 points (80 points weighted to 10: (Score / 80) x 10	
	Up	to 8	30 points will be awarded as follows:		
	a)	yea Sit	monstration, through Work engagements, of the Offeror's ars in business delivering services related to Contaminated to Project Portfolio Services to external clients – 2 points per ar to a maximum of 20 points.		
	b)	wh	monstration of the breadth and extent of the client base to from the Offeror delivered these services in the past 10 ars, as follows:		
		i)	Offeror demonstrates the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15) have been delivered by the Offeror to multiple distinct client organizations – 4 points per distinct client organization to a maximum of 20 points;		
		ii)	Offeror demonstrates successful delivery of the related services through repeat clients that have retained these Offeror services on more than one (1) completed engagement - 5 points per additional completed engagement with the same client organization to a maximum of 20 points;		
		iii)	Offeror demonstrates it has delivered the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15) to government or quasi-governmental organizations operating at a national, territorial, provincial or state level – 4 points per distinct government or quasi-governmental client organization, to a maximum of 20 points.		
2.2	res the exp Pro	pon der erie <b>jec</b>	fferor's three (3) Work engagements, as submitted in use to Mandatory Requirement 1-M1, will be evaluated on monstrated and Substantiated extent and depth of relevant ence delivering services related to Contaminated Site ext Portfolio Services as defined within the SOW (as d in the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15).	Maximum 15 points (95 points weighted to 15: (Score / 95) x 15	
	Up	to 9	95 points will be awarded as follows:		
	a)	min that wo per of	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 1-M1) at demonstrate a duration of 12 months or more of Offeror ork completed – 2.5 points per each additional 6 months riod per Work Engagement (beyond the minimum number months required), to a maximum of 7.5 points per Work agagement (15 points overall).		
	b)	mii	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 1-M1) at demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's		

1-R2. (	Offeror Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	Contaminated Site Project – 5 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 10 points;		
c)	demonstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the minimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 1-M1) that demonstrate the Offeror's experience working with or engaging with Indigenous Project proponents OR Indigenous community stakeholders OR Indigenous joint venture partners of the Offeror in the delivery of the services – 5 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 10 points;		
d)	demonstration of the complexity of the Work engagements – 10 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 30 points, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>i) Work engagement included consideration of Northern or Remote conditions impacting the client's Project, including at least one (1) of: market, economic, socio-economic or Project delivery conditions – 2.5 points;</li> <li>ii) Work engagement included the Offeror supporting the client in effective horizontal coordination within and across government – 2.5 points;</li> <li>iii) Work engagement included the Offeror supporting the client in establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships – 2.5 points;</li> <li>iv) Work engagement involved the Offeror working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, or a combination of public and private sector participants, to deliver upon the Project – 2.5 points;</li> </ul>		
e)	demonstration of the relevance of the scope of the Offeror's services to the SOW Sections 5.2.1-5.2.15 – 10 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 30 points, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>i) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least five (5) services – 10 points;</li> <li>ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 7 points;</li> <li>iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 5 points;</li> <li>iv) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 3 points;</li> <li>v) Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.</li> </ul>		

1-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer	
---	--	--------------------------------	--

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the delivery of Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services expertise to NCSB together with a demonstrated

## 1-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding

Scores to be assigned based on the following

Cross Reference to Offer

understanding of the requirements for Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services.

Points will be awarded per factor (3.1 and 3.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the Services required and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements):

Each of factor 3.1 and 3.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 20 for 1-R3**.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (3.1 and 3.2) under this Criterion:

10 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

7 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

4 points: The response addresses the requirements in part, demonstrating a proven approach in some areas.

3 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.

0 points: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.

3.1	of t	to <b>ten (10) points</b> for a demonstrated approach to the delivery he Services (as defined in SOW Section 5.2.1-5.2.15) that monstrates:	Maximum 10	
	a) b)	an understanding of how these Services support the long-term management of a Portfolio of multiple complex public sector Projects; and an understanding of associated: program design, policy,		
	<i>D)</i>	accountability, governance, funding, resourcing, delivery, controls, risk, measurement, and knowledge transfer.		
3.2	the der	to <b>ten (10) points</b> for a demonstrated approach to delivering Services (as defined in SOW Section 5.2.1-5.2.15) that monstrates an understanding of the context, challenges, risks d issues associated with the management of:	Maximum 10	
	a)	Contaminated Sites, including mining Projects and other waste sites;		
	b)	a Portfolio of multi-year Projects in a Northern or Remote environment;		
	c)	effective horizontal coordination within and across government;		
	d)	establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships, including collaboration, communications and negotiations;		
	e)	engagement, establishment and maintenance of effective relationships and agreements with Indigenous governments, organizations, communities and associations;		
	f)	working effectively with Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJ), governing and appointed bodies, non-governmental associations, financial/commercial industry partners; and		
	g)	engagement with private sector delivery participants and third		

1-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
party advisors from a variety of disciplines (e.g. technical, environmental, legal, financial, etc.).		
Offerors should provide clear evidence of approaches which will be applied to addressing NCSB requirements through specific approaches and mechanisms and should include evidence of lessons learned applied and best practices.		

	Scores to be	Cross
1-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

Offerors will be evaluated on the demonstrated capacity to provide the Services of Resources within the Core and Additional Resource categories, beyond the minimum required Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M3, including offering of additional Resources in the OPTIONAL Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement category.

Offerors will also be evaluated on the demonstrated team capacity working together in support of Projects.

Each of factor 4.1 and 4.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 10 for 1-R4**.

4.1 The Offeror's completed Table 1-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure as submitted in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M2 will be evaluated based on the depth and breadth of the Offeror's identified Resource capacity within each of the Core Team and Additional Resource categories. Up to 10 points will be awarded for identifying named Resources in the categories, as follows:	Maximum 5 points (10 points weighted to 5: (Score / 10) x 5	
<ul> <li>a) Principal / Project Leader – 4 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum two (2) required;</li> <li>b) Senior Consultant – 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum three (3) required;</li> <li>c) Intermediate Consultant – 2 points per named Resource;</li> <li>d) Junior Consultant – 1 point per named Resource;</li> <li>e) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle - 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum one (1) required;</li> <li>f) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle - 1 point per named Resource;</li> <li>g) Senior Subject Matter Expert - Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement - 2 points per named Resource in addition to proposing one (1) in response to rated criterion R1;</li> <li>h) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement - 1 point per named Resource.</li> <li>While Offerors may identify more Resources in the above categories, only a maximum of 10 points will be awarded for factor 4.1.</li> </ul>		
4.2 The Offeror should demonstrate whether its Resources (Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 1-M3 or	Maximum 5 points (30 points	

Cross

Reference

to Offer

1-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
Additional Resources named in response to Rated Criterion 4.1) have worked together as members of an integrated team in support of a common Project.	weighted to 5: (Score / 30) x 5	
Such experience is not required to have been on a Work engagement completed by the Offeror, nor are the Resources required to have been employed / contracted by the same organization. In order to achieve points, the Offeror MUST demonstrate that the Resources worked actively together (e.g. through meetings, working groups or similar collaborative engagement) in support of a common Project and should describe the Project in adequate detail to enable CIRNAC to validate the nature of the experience.		
Up to 30 points will be awarded (up to 10 points per Project for three (3) Projects overall), as follows:		
<ul> <li>10 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates four (4) or more Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>7 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates three (3) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>3 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates two (2) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>0 points/Project - Offeror does not demonstrates Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project.</li> </ul>		

# 1-R5. Service Delivery Management Scores to be assigned based on the following

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the management of Service delivery to NCSB under any resulting Standing Offer Agreement (SOA) and sound Call-up management and administration.

Points will be awarded per factor (5.1 and 5.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the requirements and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements):

Each of factor 5.1 and 5.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be summed to arrive at the Offeror's score out of 10 for 1-R5.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (5.1 and 5.2) under this Criterion:

5 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

4 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

**Cross** 

Scores to be

1-R5. Service Delivery Management		assigned based on the following	Reference to Offer	
3 points: The response addresses the requirement	ts in part, demonstrating a pro	oven approach in some	areas.	
2 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.				
0 points: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.				
5.1 Up to 5 points for a demonstrated thorou approach to Call-up work planning, exec demonstrating:		Maximum 5		
a) Preparation of clear and comprehens including how the Offeror works with define scope, work activities and levels and levels and levels and levels and levels are recommendations.	the client to appropriately el of effort required;			
<ul> <li>b) Appropriate work scheduling and mand delivery schedules;</li> <li>c) Effective on-going communications work status and deliverab</li> </ul>	with the client including le reviews, and issues			
management to maintain delivery on scope; d) Quality assurance of deliverables an	d services rendered;			
<ul> <li>e) Invoicing practices for deliverables a including ensuring accuracy of items and expenses.</li> </ul>				
5.2 Up to 5 points for a demonstrated thorou approach to Call-up and SOA Resourcin		Maximum 5		
<ul> <li>a) How the Offeror maintains Resource course of any assigned Call-ups;</li> </ul>	continuity over the			
b) How the Offeror provides for Resour knowledge retention over the duratio delivery arrangement;				
<ul> <li>c) How the Offeror ensures appropriate and qualification against client require Resources;</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>d) How the Offeror manages the development of Resource against clined requirements.</li> </ul>	d ensures appropriate			
		Scores to be	Cross	
1-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerati	ons	assigned based	Reference	

1-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
The Offeror should identify and describe those areas of the work where it is offered there is the potential to incorporate Indigenous Opportunity Considerations (IOCs) [e.g. employment, subcontracting, supply, services, or training/capacity building, etc.] as part of, or support to, the delivery of the Offeror's Services to CIRNAC.	Maximum 5 points (20 points weighted to 5: (Score / 20) x 5	
The Offeror should describe its approach to identifying specific IOCs and how they would be implemented under any Call-ups where there is work performed within or Service delivery to a location within a		

1-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement (CLCA) area.		
Points will be awarded for proposing an achievable and realistic approach that enables the maximization of employment, subcontracting, use of suppliers or services, or training/capacity building with Land Claims Beneficiaries and Participants, whether directly or ancillary to the Services to be provided under a Call-up, together with demonstration that elements of the approach have been used successfully on past projects or have a demonstrable likelihood of being achieved identifying the positive outcomes the approach will have in the CLCA area.		
Up to 20 points will be awarded, as follows:		
<ul> <li>a) The Offeror offers realistic methods to identify and engage with Land Claims Beneficiaries /Participants to facilitate the opportunities (e.g. communications, recruitment/retention, etc.) (up to 8 points);</li> </ul>		
b) The Offeror identifies potential opportunities for direct employment, sub-contracting, ancillary services, supplies, training or capacity building that are relevant to the Services (up to 12 points).		
For each of a) and b), points will be awarded as follows:		
12/12 points OR 8/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates that the same or similar approaches have been used in the past and resulted in measurable participation of Indigenous peoples in the work, including description of best practices or lessons learned.		
8/12 points OR 6/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates how the approach will be implemented to achieve positive outcomes.		
6/12 points or 4/8 points = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services.		
4/12 points OR 2/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides an approach to the factor. Relation to required Services may be limited in detail.		
0 points = Not addressed or not clearly demonstrated.		

TOTAL POSSIBLE SCORE (1-R1 to 1-R6)	100
Overall required Pass Mark (1-R1 to 1-R6) (70%): Offerors MUST achieve a minimum of 70 points overall of 1-R1 – 1-R6 in order to be evaluated further.	70/100

1-R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
The Offeror should demonstrate a quality Offer submission that is illustrative of the quality of deliverables it would provide to CIRNAC under any resulting SOA and Call-up(s).	g r	
Up to 10 points will be awarded for presenting Offers in a clear and logical fashion and in a manner which facilitates a clear and straightforward evaluation, based on the information requested in the RFSO as evidenced by the following:		
a) <b>Up to 6 points</b> for writing the narrative portions of the Offer in a clear and concise manner that addresses the requirements while limiting Offer content to information requested. Narrative sections are sensical, well written without typographic or grammatical errors.		
Points will be awarded as follows:		
<b>6 / 6 points</b> = Offer content is clear and well written (e.g. grammar, syntax, spelling, etc.), with professional presentation. The Offer responds logically to the requirements and does not contain marketing material.		
4 / 6 points = Offer content is mostly clear and well written. The Offer responds to the requirements and contains limited marketing material.		
2 / 6 points = Offer content is not clearly written. Content is included that does not clearly address the requirements.		
<b>0 / 6 points</b> = The Offer is not clear and is difficult to understand.		
b) <b>Up to 2 points</b> for the layout, ordering and structuring of the Offer to match the order and sequence of the Mandatory Requirements and Rated Criteria within the RFSO.		
Offers structured to follow the order of the evaluation criteria will receive 2 points. 0.5 points will be deducted for each requirement or criterion that is presented out of numeric sequence, to a maximum of four (4) deductions.		
c) <b>Up to 2 points</b> for using the requested templates to highlight information in the Offer that is specifically relevant to an evaluation factor or minimum qualifications and ensuring any cross-references within the Offer for highlighted information are easily identified and clearly found.		
Points will be awarded as follows:		
2 / 2 points = The Offer uses the templates and contains highlighting, summary tables or cross-references that minimizes duplication of content and facilitates review. References indicated in the Offer are correct.		
1 / 2 points = The Offer uses the templates and contains some highlighting, summary tables or cross-references. References indicated in the Offer include some errors.		
0 / 2 points = The Offer does not use the templates or does not		

1-R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
include clear highlighting or cross-referencing and it is difficult to locate information that addresses the requirements.		

Sub-Total 1-R1 to 1-R7	105
Pro-rated Written Offer Score (1-R1 to 1-R7)	
For Offers meeting the required pass mark on 1-R1 to 1-R6, the score for the Offer on each of 1-R1 to 1-R7 will be summed to arrive at a total out of 105 points, and the score for the Offer pro-rated to arrive at a Pro-rated Score on the Written Offer out of 70, as follows:	70
[(Score on 1-R1 + Score on 1-R2 + Score on 1-R3 + Score on 1-R4 + Score on 1-R5 + Score on 1-R6 + Score on 1-R7) / 105 points] x 70	

# **Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services**

204 0 40 7 40	Scores to be	Cross
2-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The CVs and Work engagements of the Offeror's offered Core Team Resources who are determined to meet the requirements set out in Mandatory Requirement **2-M3**, will be evaluated on the demonstrated and Substantiated **extent and depth of the relevant experience of the Resources** in providing services similar to NCSB's requirements as described within the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8.

Only those Resources that are found to meet the requirements of 1-M3 and the category in which they are offered (SOW Section 7.3.2.1) will be evaluated against 2-R1.

Each of the five (5) categories of Resources will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each category will be weighted out of 6.

Where more than one (1) Resource is offered in and meets the Minimum Qualifications of a given category, each Resource will be scored individually, and the totals for each Resource summed and averaged to arrive at an overall score for the Offeror for that Category, that will then be weighted out of 6.

The Offeror's scores for each category will be summed and weighted to arrive at the Offeror's score out of 30 for 2-R1.

2	.1 Prir	ncipal / Project Leader	Maximum 6 points	
а	add the <b>Maj</b>	to 60 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on itional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of RFSO posting date) as a Lead, delivering services <b>related to or Mine Closure Project Services</b> as defined in the SOW tions 5.3.1-5.3.8.	(100 points weighted to 6: (Score / 100) x 6	
	Up 1	to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	,	6 points per additional* distinct** Work engagements for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided for Major Mine Closure Projects (i.e. valued at CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client).		

2-R	1. F	Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	ii)	6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least four (4) of the following factors:		
		<ul> <li>(a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples;</li> <li>(b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> </ul>		
		<ul> <li>(e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);</li> <li>(g) designing and implementing Project performance management;</li> </ul>		
	s F	(h) designing and implementing Project risk management.  Indicational means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1).  Illistinct means in support of distinct requirements.		
b)	Res Secthe to I	to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the source's experience delivering services related to the SOW ctions 5.3.1-5.3.8. Experience should be demonstrated across Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response Rated Criterion 2-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement M3):		
	` ,	The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 4 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3)		
	` ,	services – 3 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 2 points; Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.		
2.2	Se	nior Consultant	Maximum 6 points	
a)	add the	to 60 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on ditional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of RFSO posting date), delivering services related to Major Mine soure Project Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.18.	(100 points weighted to 6: (Score / 100) x 6	
	Up	to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	i)	6 points per additional* distinct** Work engagements for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided for Major Mine Closure Projects (i.e. valued at CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client).		

2-R	I. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	ii) 6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least three (3) of the following factors:		
	<ul> <li>(a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples;</li> <li>(b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);</li> <li>(g) designing and implementing Project performance management;</li> </ul>		
	(h) designing and implementing Project risk management.		
	* additional means in addition to the two (2) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1).  **distinct means in support of distinct requirements.		
b)	Up to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the Resource's experience delivering services related to the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8. Experience should be demonstrated across the Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 2-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3):		
	(a) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4)		
	services – 4 points; (b) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 3 points;		
	<ul> <li>(c) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 2 points;</li> <li>(d) Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0</li> </ul>		
2 3	points.  Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle	Maximum 6 points	
	Up to 40 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on additional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date), providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to Major Mine Closure Projects.	(100 points weighted to 6: (Score / 100) x 6	
	Up to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	i) Up to 8 points per Work engagement demonstrating the following:		
	<ul><li>(a) A minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six</li><li>(6) months – 2 points;</li></ul>		

2-F	11. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	<ul> <li>(b) experience in support of a client Major Mine Closure Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client – 3 points; and</li> </ul>		
	(c) One (1) of the following – 3 points:		
	<ul> <li>(i) Planning for Mine Closure for at least one (1) stage of the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle;</li> <li>(ii) Costing a Mine Closure Plan for at least one (1) stage the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle; or</li> <li>(iii) Implementation of a component of the Mine Closure Plan.</li> </ul>		
	*additional means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1)  **distinct means in support of distinct requirements		
b)	Up to 60 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the Resource's experience across the Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 2-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3):		
	Up to 10 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in the following factors:		
	<ul> <li>(a) Mine Closure Planning through <u>all</u> stages of the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle – 2 points; and</li> <li>(b) working with Indigenous governments or peoples;</li> <li>(c) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(d) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(e) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> <li>(f) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(g) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher).</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(i) The same Work engagement demonstrates three (3) or more of the factors (b-g) – 8 points;</li> <li>(ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates two (2) of the</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates two (2) of the factors (b-g) – 6 points;</li> <li>(iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates one (1) of the</li> </ul>		
	factors (b-g) – 4 points; (iv) No factors (b-g) demonstrated – 0 points.		
2.4	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management	Maximum 6 points	
a)	Up to 40 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on additional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date), designing and implementing Project delivery models for Major Projects.	(100 points weighted to 6: (Score / 100) x 6	

2-F	2-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources		Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	Up	to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	i)	6 points per Work engagement demonstrating the following:		
		<ul><li>(a) A minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six</li><li>(6) months – 2 points;</li></ul>		
		<ul><li>(b) experience in support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client – 2 points; and</li></ul>		
		(c) Project was one (1) of the following – 2 points:		
		<ul> <li>Mining or Mine Closure or Contaminated Site or Infrastructure;</li> </ul>		
	ii)	An additional 2 points per Work engagement will be awarded where the Work engagement was for a client's Mining or Mine Closure Project.		
	sui Re	Idditional means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements bmitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the source (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1) listinct means in support of distinct requirements		
b)	Re for	to 60 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the source's experience across the Work engagements submitted the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 2-R1 or in sponse to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3):		
		to 10 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the source's experience in the following factors:		
	(b)	working with Indigenous governments or peoples (beyond the minimum requirement for one (1) Work engagement); working in a Northern environment or Northern territory; working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders; working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;		
	(e)	working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;		
	(f)	reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);		
	(g)	designing and implementing Project performance		
	(h)	management; designing and implementing Project risk management.		
	(i)	The same Work engagement demonstrates four (4) or more of the factors (a-h) – 10 points;		
	(ii)	The same Work engagement demonstrates three (3) of the factors (a-h) – 8 points;		
		The same Work engagement demonstrates two (2) of the factors (a-h) – 6 points;		
	(IV)	The same Work engagement demonstrates one (1) of the		

2-F	R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	factors (a-h) – 4 points; (v) No factors (a-h) demonstrated – 0 points.		
2.5	Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health		
a)	Up to 40 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on additional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date), as a Lead in support of Mining or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects undertaken by clients.		
	Up to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	i) 8 points per Work engagement demonstrating the following:		
	<ul> <li>(a) A minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months – 2 points;</li> <li>(b) experience in support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client – 3 points;</li> <li>(c) Work engagement included one (1) of – 3 points: <ul> <li>(i) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project level controls;</li> <li>(ii) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project governance;</li> <li>(iii) Designing and undertaking a readiness assessment for the Project;</li> <li>(iv) Designing and undertaking Project health evaluation.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>		
	*additional means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.2.1)  **distinct means in support of distinct requirements		
b)	Up to 60 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the Resource's experience across the Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response to Rated Criterion 2-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3):		
	Up to 10 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in the following factors:		
	<ul> <li>(a) working with Indigenous governments or peoples;</li> <li>(b) working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;</li> <li>(c) working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(d) working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> <li>(e) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(f) reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);</li> </ul>		
	(g) designing and implementing Project performance		

2-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
management; (h) designing and implementing Project risk management.		
<ul> <li>(i) The same Work engagement demonstrates four (4) or more of the factors (a-h) – 10 points;</li> <li>(ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates three (3) of the factors (a-h) – 8 points;</li> <li>(iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates two (2) of the factors (a-h) – 6 points;</li> <li>(iv) The same Work engagement demonstrates one (1) of the factors (a-h) – 4 points;</li> <li>(v) No factors (a-h) demonstrated – 0 points.</li> </ul>		

	Scores to be	Cross
2-R2. Offeror Track Record and Work Engagements	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The experience of the Offeror in delivering Major Mine Closure Project Services related to NCSB's requirements (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8) in support of relevant client Projects will be evaluated based on the Offeror's Work engagements provided in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M1 and additional information provided by the Offeror demonstrating its track record and client base for these services.

Each of factor 2.1 and 2.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 25 for 2-R2**.

r s	2.1 The Offeror should provide demonstration of a sustained track record of quality service delivery by the Offeror in delivering services related to Major Mine Closure Project Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8 to clients external to the Offeror's organization.  Maximum 10 points (80 points weighted to 10: (Score / 80) x 10				
l	Up t	to 8	0 points will be awarded as follows:		
ć	,	yea Clo	monstration, through work engagements, of the Offeror's ars in business delivering services related to Major Mine sure Project Services to external clients – 2 points per year a maximum of 20 points.		
k	,	who	monstration of the breadth and extent of the client base to om the Offeror delivered these services in the past 10 ars, as follows:		
		i)	Offeror demonstrates the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8) have been delivered by the Offeror to multiple distinct client organizations – 5 points per distinct client organization to a maximum of 20 points;		
		ii)	Offeror demonstrates successful delivery of the related services through repeat clients that have retained these Offeror services on more than one (1) completed engagement - 5 points per additional completed		

2-R2.	Offe	or Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
		engagement with the same client organization to a maximum of 20 points;		
	iii)	Offeror demonstrates it has delivered the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8) to government or quasi-governmental organizations operating at a national, territorial, provincial or state level – 5 points per distinct government or quasi-governmental client organization, to a maximum of 20 points.		
re de ex	spon emon cperie	feror's three (3) Work engagements, as submitted in se to Mandatory Requirement M1, will be evaluated on the strated and Substantiated extent and depth of relevant ence delivering services related to Major Mine Closure t Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8.	Maximum 15 points (95 points weighted to 15: (Score / 95) x 15	
Uŗ	p to 9	5 points will be awarded as follows:		
a)	mir tha wo per mo	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 2-M1) to demonstrate a duration of 24 months or more of Offeror rk completed – 2.5 points per each additional 6 months riod per Work Engagement (beyond the minimum six (6) on the required), to a maximum of 7.5 points per Work gagement (15 points overall).		
b)	mir tha Clo	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 2-M1) t demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Mine sure Project – 5 points per Work engagement to a ximum of 10 points;		
c)	mir tha eng cor of t	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 2-M1) to demonstrate the Offeror's experience working with orgaging with Indigenous Project proponents OR Indigenous mmunity stakeholders OR Indigenous joint venture partners the Offeror in the delivery of the services – 5 points per ork engagement to a maximum of 10 points;		
d)	10	monstration of the complexity of the Work engagements – points per Work engagement to a maximum of 30 points, follows:		
	i)	Work engagement included consideration of Northern or Remote conditions impacting the client's Project, including at least one (1) of: market, economic, socio-economic or Project delivery conditions – 2.5 points;		
	ii)	Work engagement included the Offeror supporting the client in effective horizontal coordination within and across government – 2.5 points;		
	iii)	Work engagement included the Offeror supporting the client in establishment and maintenance of effective		

2-R2. C	fferor Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	intergovernmental relationships – 2.5 points;		
	<ul> <li>iv) Work engagement involved the Offeror working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, or a combination of public and private sector participants, to deliver upon the Project – 2.5 points;</li> </ul>		
e)	demonstration of the relevance of the scope of the Offeror's services to the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8 – 10 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 30 points, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>i) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 10 points;</li> <li>ii) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 7 points;</li> <li>iii) The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 4 points;</li> <li>iv) Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.</li> </ul>		

	Scores to be	Cross
2-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the delivery of Major Mine Closure Project expertise to NCSB together with a demonstrated understanding of the requirements for Major Mine Closure Project Services.

Points will be awarded per factor (3.1 and 3.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the Services required and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements):

Each of factor 3.1 and 3.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 20 for 2-R3**.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (3.1 and 3.2) under this Criterion:

10 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

7 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

5 points: The response addresses the requirements in part, demonstrating a proven approach in some areas.

3 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.

0 points: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.

2-R	3. 8	Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
3.1	the	to <b>10 points</b> for a demonstrated approach to the delivery of Services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8) that monstrates:	Maximum 10	
	a) b)	an understanding of how these Services support the delivery of these complex Major Projects across all stages of the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle; and demonstrates an understanding of the Services' contribution		
		to Mine reclamation.		
3.2	Se der	to <b>10 points</b> for a demonstrated approach to delivering the rvices (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.3.1-5.3.8) that monstrates an understanding of the context, challenges, risks d issues associated with the management of:	Maximum 10	
	a)	technical issues, environmental factors, affected communities,		
	b)	socio-economic considerations, and engineering liabilities; multi-year Major Mine Closure Projects in a Northern Remote environment;		
	c)	effective horizontal coordination within and across		
	d)	government; establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships, including collaboration, communications and negotiations;		
	e)	engagement, establishment and maintenance of effective relationships and agreements with Indigenous governments, organizations, communities and associations;		
	f)	working effectively with Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJ), governing and appointed bodies, non-governmental associations, financial/commercial industry partners; and		
	g)	engagement with private sector delivery participants and third party advisors from a variety of disciplines (e.g. technical, environmental, legal, financial, etc.).		
app	liec roa	s should provide clear evidence of approaches which will be to addressing NCSB requirements through specific ches and mechanisms and should include evidence of lessons applied and best practices.		

2.74.2% T 2.2%	Scores to be	Cross
2-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

Offerors will be evaluated on the demonstrated capacity to provide the Services of Resources within the Core and Additional Resource categories, beyond the minimum required Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3.

Offerors will also be evaluated on the demonstrated team capacity working together in support of Projects.

Each of factor 4.1 and 4.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 10 for 2-R4**.

2-R	4. Offeror Team Capacity	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
4.1	The Offeror's completed Table 2-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure as submitted in response to Mandatory Requirement 4-M2 will be evaluated based on the depth and breadth of the Offeror's identified Resource capacity within each of the Core Team and Additional Resource categories.	Maximum 5 points (10 points weighted to 5: (Score / 10) x 5	
	Up to 10 points will be awarded for identifying named Resources in the categories, as follows:		
	<ul> <li>a) Principal / Project Leader – 4 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum two (2) required;</li> <li>b) Senior Consultant – 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum three (3) required;</li> <li>c) Intermediate Consultant – 2 points per named Resource;</li> <li>d) Junior Consultant – 1 point per named Resource;</li> <li>e) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle - 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum one (1) required;</li> <li>f) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle - 2 points per named Resource;</li> <li>g) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management - 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum one (1) required;</li> <li>h) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management - 2 points per named Resource;</li> <li>i) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health - 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum one (1) required;</li> <li>j) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health - 2 points per named Resource.</li> </ul>		
	While Offerors may identify more Resources in the above categories, only a maximum of 10 points will be awarded for factor 4.1.		
4.2	The Offeror should demonstrate whether its Resources (Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 2-M3 or Additional Resources named in response to Rated Criterion 4.1) have worked together as members of an integrated team in support of a common Project.	Maximum 5 points (30 points weighted to 5: (Score / 30) x 5	
	Such experience is not required to have been on a Work engagement completed by the Offeror, nor are the Resources required to have been employed / contracted by the same organization. In order to achieve points, the Offeror MUST demonstrate that the Resources worked actively together (e.g. through meetings, working groups or similar collaborative engagement) in support of a common Mining, Major Mine Closure, Contaminated Site or Infrastructure Project and should describe the Project in adequate detail to enable CIRNAC to validate the nature of the experience.  Up to 30 points will be awarded (up to 10 points per Project for		

2-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
three (3) Projects overall), as follows:		
<ul> <li>10 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates four (4) or more Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Mining, Major Mine Closure, Contaminated Site or Infrastructure Project;</li> <li>7 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates three (3) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Mining, Major Mine Closure, Contaminated Site or Infrastructure Project;</li> <li>3 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates two (2) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Mining, Major Mine Closure, Contaminated Site or Infrastructure Project;</li> <li>0 points/Project - Offeror does not demonstrates Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Mining, Major Mine Closure, Contaminated Site or Infrastructure Project.</li> </ul>		

	Scores to be	Cross
2-R5. Service Delivery Management	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the management of Service delivery to NCSB under any resulting Standing Offer Agreement (SOA) and sound Call-up management and administration.

Points will be awarded per factor (5.1 and 5.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the requirements and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements):

Each of factor 5.1 and 5.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 10 for 2-R5**.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (5.1 and 5.2) under this Criterion:

5 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

4 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

3 points: The response addresses the requirements in part, demonstrating a proven approach in some areas.

2 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.

0 point: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.

5.1 Up to 5 points for a demonstrated thorough, clear and proven approach to Call-up work planning, execution and administration; demonstrating:	Maximum 5	
a) Preparation of clear and comprehensive Call-up Proposals including how the Offeror works with the client to appropriately		

2-R5. \$	Service Delivery Management	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
b)	define scope, work activities and level of effort required; Appropriate work scheduling and maintenance of Call-up work and delivery schedules;		
c)	Effective on-going communications with the client including check-ins, work status and deliverable reviews, and issues management to maintain delivery on-time, on-budget and inscope;		
d) e)	Quality assurance of deliverables and services rendered; Invoicing practices for deliverables and level-of-effort services including ensuring accuracy of items/hours billed, billing rates, and expenses.		
	to 5 points for a demonstrated thorough, clear and proven proach to Call-up and SOA Resourcing; demonstrating:	Maximum 5	
a)	How the Offeror maintains Resource continuity over the course of any assigned Call-ups;		
b)	How the Offeror provides for Resource retention and knowledge retention over the duration of a multi-year service delivery arrangement;		
c)	How the Offeror ensures appropriate Resource identification and qualification against client requirements for Additional Resources;		
d)	How the Offeror manages the development of the level of Resource qualifications over time and ensures appropriate assignment of Resources against client Resource category requirements.		

2-R6	6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
whe Opp supp	Offeror should identify and describe those areas of the work re it is offered there is the potential to incorporate Indigenous ortunity Considerations (IOCs) [e.g. employment, subcontracting, ply, services, or training/capacity building, etc.] as part of, or port to, the delivery of the Offeror's Services to CIRNAC.	Maximum 5 points (20 points weighted to 5: (Score / 20) x 5	
and is w	Offeror should describe its approach to identifying specific IOCs how they would be implemented under any Call-ups where there ork performed within or Service delivery to a location within a apprehensive Land Claims Agreement (CLCA) area.		
appi subd build directoge used	nts will be awarded for proposing an achievable and realistic roach that enables the maximization of employment, contracting, use of suppliers or services, or training/capacity ding with Land Claims Beneficiaries and Participants, whether ctly or ancillary to the Services to be provided under a Call-up, other with demonstration that elements of the approach have been discussesfully on past projects or have a demonstrable likelihood eing achieved identifying the positive outcomes the approach will		

2-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
have in the CLCA area.		
Up to 20 Points will be awarded, as follows:		
c) The Offeror offers realistic methods to identify and engage with Land Claims Beneficiaries /Participants to facilitate the opportunities (e.g. communications, recruitment/retention, etc.) (up to 8 points);		
d) The Offeror identifies potential opportunities for direct employment, sub-contracting, ancillary services, supplies, training or capacity building that are relevant to the Services (up to 12 points).		
For each of a) and b), points will be awarded as follows:		
12/12 points OR 8/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates that the same or similar approaches have been used in the past and resulted in measurable participation of Indigenous peoples in the work, including description of best practices or lessons learned.		
8/12 points OR 6/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates how the approach will be implemented to achieve positive outcomes.		
6/12 points OR 4/8 points = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services.		
4/12 points OR 2/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides an approach to the factor. Relation to required Services may be limited in detail.		
0 points = Not addressed or not clearly demonstrated.		

TOTAL POSSIBLE SCORE (2-R1 to 2-R6)	100
Overall required Pass Mark (2-R1 to 2-R6) (70%): Offerors MUST achieved for 70 points overall of 2-R1 to 2-R6 in order to be evaluated further.	ve a minimum 70/100

2-R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
The Offeror should demonstrate a quality Offer submission that is illustrative of the quality of deliverables it would provide to CIRNAC under any resulting SOA and Call-up(s).	Maximum 5 points (10 points weighted to 5:	
Up to 10 points will be awarded for presenting Offers in a clear and logical fashion and in a manner which facilitates a clear and straightforward evaluation, based on the information requested in the RFSO as evidenced by the following:	(Score / 10) x 5	
a) <b>Up to 6 points</b> for writing the narrative portions of the Offer in a		

2-F	R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	clear and concise manner that addresses the requirements while limiting Offer content to information requested. Narrative sections are sensical, well written without typographic or grammatical errors.		
	Points will be awarded as follows:		
	<b>6 / 6 points</b> = Offer content is clear and well written (e.g. grammar, syntax, spelling, etc.), with professional presentation. The Offer responds logically to the requirements and does not contain marketing material.		
	<b>4 / 6 points</b> = Offer content is mostly clear and well written. The Offer responds to the requirements and contains limited marketing material.		
	<b>2 / 6 points</b> = Offer content is not clearly written. Content is included that does not clearly address the requirements.		
	<b>0 / 6 points</b> = The Offer is not clear and is difficult to understand.		
b)	<b>Up to 2 points</b> for the layout, ordering and structuring of the Offer to match the order and sequence of the Mandatory Requirements and Rated Criteria within the RFSO.		
	Offers structured to follow the order of the evaluation criteria will receive 2 points. 0.5 points will be deducted for each requirement or criterion that is presented out of numeric sequence, to a maximum of four (4) deductions.		
c)	<b>Up to 2 points</b> for using the requested templates to highlight information in the Offer that is specifically relevant to an evaluation factor or minimum qualifications and ensuring any cross-references within the Offer for highlighted information are easily identified and clearly found.		
	Points will be awarded as follows:		
	<b>2 / 2 points</b> = The Offer uses the templates and contains highlighting, summary tables or cross-references that minimizes duplication of content and facilitates review. References indicated in the Offer are correct.		
	1 / 2 points = The Offer uses the templates and contains some highlighting, summary tables or cross-references. References indicated in the Offer include some errors.		
	<b>0 / 2 points</b> = The Offer does not use the templates or does not include clear highlighting or cross-referencing and it is difficult to locate information that addresses the requirements.		

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

Sub-Total 2-R1 to 2-R7	105
------------------------	-----

# Pro-rated Written Offer Score (2-R1 to 2-R7)

For Offers meeting the required pass mark on 2-R1 to 2-R6, the score for the Offer on each of 2-R1 to 2-R7 will be summed to arrive at a total out of 105 points, and the score for the Offer pro-rated to arrive at a Pro-rated Score on the Written Offer out of 70, as follows:

70

[(Score on 2-R1 + Score on 2-R2 + Score on 2-R3 + Score on 2-R4 + Score on 2-R5 + Score on 2-R6 + Score on 2-R7) / 105 points] x 70

Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

	Scores to be	Cross
3-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The CVs and Work engagements of the Offeror's offered Core Team Resources who are determined to meet the requirements set out in Mandatory Requirement **3-M3**, will be evaluated on the demonstrated and Substantiated **extent and depth of the relevant experience of the Resources** in providing services similar to NCSB's requirements as described within the SOW Sections 5.4.1-5.4.13.

Only those Resources that are found to meet the requirements of 3-M3 and the category in which they are offered (SOW Section 7.3.3.1) will be evaluated against 3-R1.

Each of the two (2) categories of Resources will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each category will be weighted out of 10.

Where more than one (1) Resource is offered in and meets the Minimum Qualifications of a given category, each Resource will be scored individually, and the totals for each Resource summed and averaged to arrive at an overall score for the Offeror for that Category, that will then be weighted out of 10.

Additionally, 10 points will be awarded for Offerors offering the Services of one (1) qualified Resource in the OPTIONAL Resource category – Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation. In order to achieve points on this rated criterion, the offered Resource **MUST** demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1.

The Offeror's scores for each category will be summed to arrive at the Offeror's score out of 30 for 3-R1.

## Maximum 10 1.1 Principal / Project Leader points a) Up to 60 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on (100 points additional\* distinct\*\* Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of weighted to 10: the RFSO posting date) as a Lead, delivering services related to (Score / 100) x 10 Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1-5.4.13. In order to be awarded points, Work engagements **MUST** demonstrate: the Resource's experience delivering at least one (1) service related to SOW Sections 5.4.1-5.4.13; AND the Resource's experience in: application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance. Up to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:

3-R	11. P	Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	i)	6 points per additional* distinct** Work engagements for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided for client Projects involving the liquidation or sale of assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million.		
	ii)	6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least four (4) of the following factors:		
	s F	<ul> <li>(a) Work engagement involved insolvency of a Mining Project;</li> <li>(b) working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(c) working on integrated submissions for, OR, working in an integrated manner with one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> <li>(d) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(e) making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasijudicial bodies;</li> <li>(f) strategic management of Project teams.</li> <li>Additional means in addition to the three (3) Work engagements submitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1).</li> <li>Ilistinct means in support of distinct requirements.</li> </ul>		
b)	Res Sec the to F	to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the source's experience delivering services related to the SOW ctions 5.4.1-5.4.13. Experience should be demonstrated across Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response Rated Criterion 3-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement 43):		
	(b)	The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 4 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 3 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 2 points; Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0 points.		
1.2	Ser	nior Consultant	Maximum 10	
a)	the Cor	to 60 points for demonstrated experience of the Resource on ditional* distinct** Work engagements in the last 10 years (as of RFSO posting date), delivering services related to ntaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management d Re-commercialization Services as defined in the SOW etions 5.4.1-5.4.13.	points (100 points weighted to 10: (Score / 100) x 10	

3-F	1. P	roposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
		order to be awarded points, Work engagements <b>MUST</b> nonstrate:		
	•	the Resource's experience delivering at least one (1) service related to SOW Sections 5.4.1-5.4.13; AND the Resource's experience in: application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance.		
	Up	to 5 Work engagements will be considered, as follows:		
	i)	6 points per additional* distinct** Work engagements for which the Resource's services were demonstrated to have been provided for client Projects involving the liquidation or sale of assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million.		
	ii)	6 points per Work engagement that demonstrates the Resource's experience in at least three (3) of the following factors:		
	s F	<ul> <li>(a) Work engagement involved insolvency of a Mining Project;</li> <li>(b) working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;</li> <li>(c) working on integrated submissions for, OR, working in an integrated manner with one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;</li> <li>(d) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;</li> <li>(e) making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasijudicial bodies;</li> <li>(f) strategic management of Project teams.</li> <li>dditional means in addition to the two (2) Work engagements ubmitted in response to the Mandatory Requirements for the Resource (as set out in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1).</li> <li>istinct means in support of distinct requirements.</li> </ul>		
b)	Res Sec the to F 3-M	to 40 points for demonstration of the breadth and depth of the source's experience delivering services related to the SOW ctions 5.4.1-5.4.13. Experience should be demonstrated across Work engagements submitted for the Resource (in response Rated Criterion 3-R1 or in response to Mandatory Requirement (13):  The same Work engagement demonstrates at least four (4) services – 4 points; The same Work engagement demonstrates at least three (3) services – 3 points;		
		The same Work engagement demonstrates at least two (2) services – 2 points; Work engagement demonstrates only one (1) service – 0		

3-R1. Proposed Core Team of Resources	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
points.		
The Offeror should offer and demonstrate the qualifications of a Resource in the OPTIONAL <u>Senior</u> Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation category.	Maximum 10 points	
In order to achieve points on this rated criterion, the offered Resource <b>MUST</b> demonstrate the qualifications for the category in the SOW Section 7.3.3.1.		
10 points will be awarded for one (1) <u>Senior</u> Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation demonstrating the qualifications for the category.		

	Scores to be	Cross
3-R2. Offeror Track Record and Work Engagements	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The experience of the Offeror in delivering Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services related to NCSB's requirements (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13) in support of relevant client Projects will be evaluated based on the Offeror's Work engagements provided in response to Mandatory Requirement 3-M1 and additional information provided by the Offeror demonstrating its track record and client base for these services.

Each of factor 2.1 and 2.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 25 for 3-R2**.

2.1 The Offeror should provide demonstration of a sustained track record of quality service delivery by the Offeror in delivering services related to Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services, as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13, to clients external to the Offeror's organization.  Maximum 10 points (80 points weighted to 10: (Score / 80) x 10				
Up	to 8	30 points will be awarded as follows:		
a)	yea Sit	monstration, through Work engagements, of the Offeror's ars in business delivering services related to Contaminated e Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Remmercialization Services to external clients – 2 points per ar to a maximum of 20 points.		
b)	wh	monstration of the breadth and extent of the client base to om the Offeror delivered these services in the past 10 ars, as follows:		
	i)	Offeror demonstrates the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13) have been delivered by the Offeror to multiple distinct client organizations – 5 points per distinct client organization to a maximum of 20 points;		
	ii)	Offeror demonstrates successful delivery of the related services through repeat clients that have retained these		

3-R2.	Offe	ror Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	iii)	Offeror services on more than one (1) completed engagement - 10 points per additional completed engagement with the same client organization to a maximum of 20 points; Offeror demonstrates it has delivered the related services (as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13) to government or quasi-governmental organizations operating at a national, territorial, provincial or state level – 5 points per distinct government or quasi-governmental client organization, to a maximum of 20 points.		
re de ex Pr co	espon emon xperie roject	feror's three (3) Work engagements, as submitted in se to Mandatory Requirement M1, will be evaluated on the strated and Substantiated extent and depth of relevant ence delivering services related to Contaminated Site Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recricialization Services as defined in the SOW Sections 5.4.1 3.	Maximum 15 points (70 points weighted to 15: (Score / 70) x 15	
Up	p to 7	70 points will be awarded as follows:		
a)	mii tha Ins	monstration of additional Work engagements (beyond the nimum of one (1) required in Mandatory Requirement 3-M1) at demonstrate the delivery of services for a client's Mine solvency Project – 5 points per Work engagement to a aximum of 10 points;		
b)		monstration of the delivery of services to the client that sulted in either (i or ii):		
	i) ii)	the re-commercialization of the assets through sale, including market assessment, promotion and shepherding of the sales process to its conclusion, including effective negotiation of sale; OR the restructuring of Project financing or Commercial Arrangements to deliver upon the Project;		
		ooints per Work engagement for either (i or ii) to a maximum 15 points;		
c)		monstration of the delivery of services to the client included e (1) of the following elements (i, ii, or iii):		
	i) ii) iii)	support in planning and implementation of restructured Project delivery model (e.g. Public Private Partnership, Alternative Service Delivery, etc.); support to the client in engagement with Project proponents, stakeholders or impacted parties; support to the client in establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships within the context of the Project;		
		points per Work engagement for any of (i, ii, or iii) to a eximum of 7.5 points;		
d)	) de	monstration of the complexity of the Work engagements –		

3-R2. Offeror Track Record and Work Engagements	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
12.5 points per Work engagement to a maximum of 37.5 points, as follows:		
<ul> <li>i) working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders – 2.5 points;</li> <li>ii) working on integrated submissions for, OR, working in an integrated manner with one (1) or more of the following:</li> </ul>		
multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants – 2.5 points; iii) working in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations – 2.5		
points; iv) making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasi- judicial bodies – 2.5 points; v) strategic management of Project teams – 2.5 points.		

	Scores to be	Cross
3-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the delivery of Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization expertise to NCSB together with a demonstrated understanding of the requirements for Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services.

Points will be awarded per factor (3.1 and 3.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the Services required and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements).

Each of factor 3.1 and 3.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 20 for 3-R3**.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (3.1 and 3.2) under this Criterion:

10 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

7 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

5 points: The response addresses the requirements in part, demonstrating a proven approach in some areas.

3 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.

0 point: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.

3-R3. Subject Matter Approach and Understanding	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
3.1 Up to <b>10 points</b> for a demonstrated approach to the delivery of the Services (as defined in SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13) that demonstrates an understanding of how these Services effectively support the fiduciary and environmental stewardship for these complex Projects over a multi-year lifespan.	Maximum 10	
3.2 Up to <b>10 points</b> for a demonstrated approach to delivering the Services (as defined in SOW Sections 5.4.1 - 5.4.13) that demonstrates an understanding of the context, challenges, risks and issues associated with the management of:	Maximum 10	
<ul> <li>a) multi-year Contaminated Site and Mine Closure Projects in a Northern Remote environment;</li> <li>b) establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships, including collaboration, communications and negotiations;</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>c) engagement, establishment and maintenance of effective relationships and agreements with Indigenous governments, organizations, communities and associations;</li> <li>d) working effectively with Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJ),</li> </ul>		
governing and appointed bodies, non-governmental associations, financial/commercial industry partners; and e) engagement with private sector delivery participants and third party advisors from a variety of disciplines (e.g. technical, environmental, legal, financial, etc.).		
Offerors should provide clear evidence of approaches which will be applied to addressing NCSB requirements through specific approaches and mechanisms and should include evidence of lessons learned applied and best practices.		

	Scores to be	Cross
3-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

Offerors will be evaluated on the demonstrated capacity to provide the Services of Resources within the Core and Additional Resource categories, beyond the minimum required Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 3-M3.

Offerors will also be evaluated on the demonstrated team capacity working together in support of Projects.

Each of factor 4.1 and 4.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be weighted as indicated below and summed to arrive at the Offeror's score **out of 10 for 3-R4**.

4.1 The Offeror's completed Table 3-M2 Offeror Resource Team Structure as submitted in response to Mandatory Requirement 3-M2 will be evaluated based on the depth and breadth of the Offeror's identified Resource capacity within each of the Core Team and Additional Resource categories.	Maximum 5 points (10 points weighted to 5: (Score / 10) x 5	
Up to 10 points will be awarded for identifying <u>named</u> Resources in the categories, as follows:		
a) Principal / Project Leader – 4 points per named Resource in		

3-R4. Offeror Team Capacity	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
<ul> <li>addition to the minimum one (1) required;</li> <li>b) Senior Consultant – 3 points per named Resource in addition to the minimum two (2) required;</li> <li>c) Intermediate Consultant – 2 points per named Resource;</li> <li>d) Junior Consultant – 1 point per named Resource;</li> <li>e) Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation - 3 points per named Resource in addition to proposing one (1) in response to rated criterion 3-R1;</li> <li>f) Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation - 2 points per named Resource.</li> </ul>		
While Offerors may identify more Resources in the above categories, only a maximum of 10 points will be awarded for factor 4.1.		
4.2 The Offeror should demonstrate whether its Resources (Core Team offered in response to Mandatory Requirement 3-M3 or Additional Resources named in response to Rated Criterion 4.1) have worked together as members of an integrated team in support of a common Project.	Maximum 5 points (20 points weighted to 5: (Score / 20) x 5	
Such experience is not required to have been on a Work engagement completed by the Offeror, nor are the Resources required to have been employed / contracted by the same organization. In order to achieve points, the Offeror MUST demonstrate that the Resources worked actively together (e.g. through meetings, working groups or similar collaborative engagement) in support of a common Project and should describe the Project in adequate detail to enable CIRNAC to validate the nature of the experience.		
Up to 20 points will be awarded (up to 10 points per Project for three (3) Projects overall), as follows:		
<ul> <li>10 points/Project - Offeror demonstrates four (4) or more Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>points/Project - Offeror demonstrates three (3) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>points/Project - Offeror demonstrates two (2) Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project;</li> <li>0 points/Project - Offeror does not demonstrates Resources have worked together previously in support of a common Project.</li> </ul>		

	Scores to be	Cross	
3-R5. Service Delivery Management	assigned based	Reference	
	on the following	to Offer	

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur Shuo Chen

	Scores to be	Cross
3-R5. Service Delivery Management	assigned based	Reference
	on the following	to Offer

The Offeror should demonstrate, through a written description, a sound approach to the management of Service delivery to NCSB under any resulting Standing Offer Agreement (SOA) and sound Call-up management and administration.

Points will be awarded per factor (5.1 and 5.2). For each of the factors, points will be awarded for demonstrating a thorough, clear and proven approach that demonstrates an understanding of the requirements (i.e. the approach addresses the requirements and is supported by demonstrating how the Offeror's existing methodologies have been previously used in support of other requirements and how they will effectively support NCSB's requirements):

Each of factor 5.1 and 5.2 will be evaluated separately and the Offeror's score for each factor will be summed to arrive at the Offeror's score out of 10 for 3-R5.

The following Rating Scale will be used to evaluate each of the factors (5.1 and 5.2) under this Criterion:

5 points: The response clearly addresses all of the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of the requirement with relevant examples and supporting detail.

4 points: The response clearly addresses the requirements and demonstrates a proven approach and understanding of some of the requirements with supporting detail.

3 points: The response addresses the requirements in part, demonstrating a proven approach in some areas.

2 points: The response is not complete in that it fails to clearly address the requirements. The approach is high level and not related to the requirements, or is not demonstrated to have been previously applied.

0 point: No response provided or the response does not address any of the factor.

5.1	app	to 5 points for a demonstrated thorough, clear and proven broach to Call-up work planning, execution and administration; monstrating:	Maximum 5
	a)	Preparation of clear and comprehensive Call-up Proposals including how the Offeror works with the client to appropriately define scope, work activities and level of effort required;	
	b)	Appropriate work scheduling and maintenance of Call-up work and delivery schedules;	
	c)	Effective on-going communications with the client including check-ins, work status and deliverable reviews, and issues management to maintain delivery on-time, on-budget and inscope;	
	d) e)	Quality assurance of deliverables and services rendered; Invoicing practices for deliverables and level-of-effort services	
		including ensuring accuracy of items/hours billed, billing rates, and expenses.	
5.2		to 5 points for a demonstrated thorough, clear and proven broach to Call-up and SOA Resourcing; demonstrating:	Maximum 5
	a)	How the Offeror maintains Resource continuity over the course of any assigned Call-ups;	
	b)		
	c)	How the Offeror ensures appropriate Resource identification and qualification against client requirements for Additional Resources;	
	d)	How the Offeror manages the development of the level of	

3-R5. Service Delivery Management	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
Resource qualifications over time and ensures appropriate assignment of Resources against client Resource category requirements.		

3-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
The Offeror should identify and describe those areas of the work where it is offered there is the potential to incorporate Indigenous Opportunity Considerations (IOCs) [e.g. employment, subcontracting, supply, services, or training/capacity building, etc.] as part of, or support to, the delivery of the Offeror's Services to CIRNAC.	Maximum 5 points (20 points weighted to 5: (Score / 20) x 5	
The Offeror should describe its approach to identifying specific IOCs and how they would be implemented under any Call-ups where there is work performed within or Service delivery to a location within a Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement (CLCA) area.		
Points will be awarded for proposing an achievable and realistic approach that enables the maximization of employment, subcontracting, use of suppliers or services, or training/capacity building with Land Claims Beneficiaries and Participants, whether directly or ancillary to the Services to be provided under a Call-up, together with demonstration that elements of the approach have been used successfully on past projects or have a demonstrable likelihood of being achieved identifying the positive outcomes the approach will have in the CLCA area.		
Up to 20 Points will be awarded, as follows:		
a) The Offeror offers realistic methods to identify and engage with Land Claims Beneficiaries /Participants to facilitate the opportunities (e.g. communications, recruitment/retention, etc.) (up to 8 points);		
b) The Offeror identifies potential opportunities for direct employment, sub-contracting, ancillary services, supplies, training or capacity building that are relevant to the Services (up to 12 points).		
For each of a) and b), points will be awarded as follows:		
12/12 points OR 8/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates that the same or similar approaches have been used in the past and resulted in measurable participation of Indigenous peoples in the work, including description of best practices or lessons learned.		
8/12 points OR 6/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides a detailed approach to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services. The Offeror demonstrates how the approach will be implemented to achieve positive outcomes.		
6/12 points OR 4/8 points = The Offeror provides a detailed approach		

3-R6. Indigenous Opportunity Considerations	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
to the factor that is clearly related to the required Services.		
4/12 points OR 2/8 points (as applicable) = The Offeror provides an approach to the factor. Relation to required Services may be limited in detail.		
0 points = Not addressed or not clearly demonstrated.		

TOTAL POSSIBLE SCORE (3-R1 to 3-R6)	100
Overall required Pass Mark (3-R1 to 3-R6) (70%): Offerors MUST achieve a minimum of 70 points overall of 3-R1 to 3-R6 in order to be evaluated further.	70/100

3-R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
The Offeror should demonstrate a quality Offer submission that is illustrative of the quality of deliverables it would provide to CIRNAC under any resulting SOA and Call-up(s).	Maximum 5 points (10 points weighted to 5:	
Up to 10 points will be awarded for presenting Offers in a clear and logical fashion and in a manner which facilitates a clear and straightforward evaluation, based on the information requested in the RFSO as evidenced by the following:	(Score / 10) x 5	
a) <b>Up to 6 points</b> for writing the narrative portions of the Offer in a clear and concise manner that addresses the requirements while limiting Offer content to information requested. Narrative sections are sensical, well written without typographic or grammatical errors.		
Points will be awarded as follows:		
<b>6 / 6 points</b> = Offer content is clear and well written (e.g. grammar, syntax, spelling, etc.), with professional presentation. The Offer responds logically to the requirements and does not contain marketing material.		
4 / 6 points = Offer content is mostly clear and well written. The Offer responds to the requirements and contains limited marketing material.	1	
2 / 6 points = Offer content is not clearly written. Content is included that does not clearly address the requirements.		
<b>0 / 6 points</b> = The Offer is not clear and is difficult to understand.		
b) <b>Up to 2 points</b> for the layout, ordering and structuring of the Offer to match the order and sequence of the Mandatory Requirements and Rated Criteria within the RFSO.		
Offers structured to follow the order of the evaluation criteria will receive 2 points. 0.5 points will be deducted for each requirement or criterion that is presented out of numeric sequence, to a		

3-F	R7. Offer Quality	Scores to be assigned based on the following	Cross Reference to Offer
	maximum of four (4) deductions.		
c)	<b>Up to 2 points</b> for using the requested templates to highlight information in the Offer that is specifically relevant to an evaluation factor or minimum qualifications and ensuring any cross-references within the Offer for highlighted information are easily identified and clearly found.		
	Points will be awarded as follows:		
	<b>2 / 2 points</b> = The Offer uses the templates and contains highlighting, summary tables or cross-references that minimizes duplication of content and facilitates review. References indicated in the Offer are correct.		
	1 / 2 points = The Offer uses the templates and contains some highlighting, summary tables or cross-references. References indicated in the Offer include some errors.		
	<b>0 / 2 points</b> = The Offer does not use the templates or does not include clear highlighting or cross-referencing and it is difficult to locate information that addresses the requirements.		

Sub-Total 3-R1 to 3-R7	105
Pro-rated Written Offer Score (3-R1 to 3-R7)	
For Offers meeting the required pass mark on 3-R1 to 3-R6, the score for the Offer on each of 3-R1 to 3-R7 will be summed to arrive at a total out of 105 points, and the score for the Offer pro-rated to arrive at a Pro-rated Score on the Written Offer out of 70, as follows:	70
[(Score on 3-R1 + Score on 3-R2 + Score on 3-R3 + Score on 3-R4 + Score on 3-R5 + Score on 3-R6 + Score on 3-R7) / 105 points] x 70	

4.5 Financial Evaluation

# 4.5.1 SACC Manual Clause

M0220T (2016-01-28), Evaluation of Price

#### 4.5.2 Financial Evaluation Procedure

- a) Within each Service Stream, Offerors meeting ALL Mandatory Requirements and meeting the mandatory minimum score of 70% over all Point-Rated criteria will be evaluated on the basis of their Financial Offer.
- b) The Financial Evaluation will be carried out by the Standing Offer Authority independent of the Evaluation Team responsible for rating the Technical Offer. Financial Offers will be evaluated based on the methodology detailed below.
- c) Failure on the part of the Offeror to provide the information required within the article 4.5, Financial Tables, will result in CIRNAC deeming the Offer to be non-compliant, with the Offer being given no further consideration.
- d) The Offeror **MUST** provide a fixed all-inclusive **hourly** rate (\$CAD) for the Resource categories in the Service Stream for which it is proposing to provide services.
- e) The fixed all-inclusive hourly rate MUST be inclusive of all payroll, overhead costs, administration (e.g. internal business services, invoicing, timesheets, travel coordination, reporting, and other ancillary services to administer the SOA and any Call-ups, etc.) disbursements, profits, and any other costs required for the Offeror to complete the work under any resultant Call-up of any awarded Standing Offer Agreement. Note: the fixed all-inclusive hourly rates are not to be quoted as a range.
- f) For each Service Stream, full points will be awarded to the Offeror with the lowest total estimated cost (cell E in the Financial Tables, defined in article 4.5.3) **for that Service Stream**. Fewer points will be awarded to all other Offerors in that Service Stream based on the percentage differential of their lowest total estimated cost from that of the Offeror with the lowest, as follows:

CIRNAC reserves the right to correct mathematical errors in the calculation of the average hourly rate (column D) and the total average hourly rate (cell E). In the event of any mathematical errors in column D or cell E, the values entered in columns A – C (the offered hourly rates) will prevail.

#### 4.5.3 Financial Tables

Initial Period: Standing Offer Award to March 31, 2022 inclusive Option Year 1: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 inclusive

Option Year 2: April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 inclusive

### Stream 1 - Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services

Offerors **MUST** provide all-inclusive hourly rates for all CORE Resource categories (1C-1, 1C-2, and 1C-3) and Additional Resource categories (1A-1, 1A-2, and 1A-3), as defined in the SOA article 7.3.1.

1000206942 Siluo Criefi

If the OPTIONAL Core Resource category (1C-4) is offered, the Senior Subject Matter Experts are required to be at the same rate, which means the rate for 1C-4 in each period/timeframe **MUST** be equal to that of 1C-3.

If the OPTIONAL Additional Resource category (1A-4) is offered, the Intermediate Subject Matter Experts are required to be at the same rate, which means the rate for 1A-4 **MUST** in each period/timeframe be equal to that of 1A-3.

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period) (A)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1) (B)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2) (C)	Average Per- hour Rate (D) = [(A+B+C)/3]
	1C-1. Principal / Project Leader				
	1C-2. Senior Consultant				
Core	1C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle				
	1C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement (OPTIONAL)				
	1A-1. Intermediate Consultant				
	1A-2. Junior Consultant				
Additional	1A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle				
	1A-4. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement (OPTIONAL)				
	Overall Average Per-hour Rate (E)  E = (Sum of Column D in Core + 70% x Sum of Column in Additional) / 6				

# Stream 2 - Major Mine Closure Project Services

Offerors **MUST** provide all-inclusive hourly rates for all CORE Resource categories (2C-1 to 2C-5) and Additional Resource categories (2A-1 to 2A-5), as defined in the SOA article 7.3.2.

Note that the Senior Subject Matter Experts are required to be at the same rate, which means the rates for 2C-3, 2C-4 and 2C-5 in each period/timeframe **MUST** be equal.

Note that the Intermediate Subject Matter Experts are required to be at the same rate, which means the rates for 2A-3, 2A-4 and 2A-5 in each period/timeframe **MUST** be equal.

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period) (A)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1) (B)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2) (C)	Average Per- hour Rate (D) = [(A+B+C)/3]
ore	2C-1. Principal / Project Leader				
ပိ	2C-2. Senior Consultant				

		Τ		I	
	2C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Mine Closure Project Lifecycle				
	2C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Major Project Management				
	2C-5. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health				
	2A-1. Intermediate Consultant				
	2A-2. Junior Consultant				
nal	2A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Mine Closure Project Lifecycle				
Additional	2A-4. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Major Project Management				
	2A-5. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health				
	Overall Average Per-hour Rate (E)				
	E = (Sum of Column D in Core + 70% x Sum of Column in Additional) / 6				

# Stream 3 – Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

Offerors **MUST** provide all-inclusive hourly rates for all CORE Resource categories (3C-1, 3C-2) and Additional Resource categories (3A-1, 3A-2), as defined in the SOA article 7.3.3.

If the OPTIONAL Core Resource category (3C-3) is offered, the Offeror **MUST** provide all-inclusive hourly rates for the Senior Subject Matter Experts. If the OPTIONAL Additional Resource category (3A-3) is offered, the Offeror **MUST** provide all-inclusive hourly rates for the Intermediate Subject Matter Experts.

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period) (A)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1) (B)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2) (C)	Average Per- hour Rate (D) = [(A+B+C)/3]
	3C-1. Principal / Project Leader				
Core	3C-2. Senior Consultant				
ŭ	3C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Mineral Valuation (OPTIONAL)				
	3A-1. Intermediate Consultant				
onal	3A-2. Junior Consultant				
Additional	3A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Mineral Valuation (OPTIONAL)				
	Overall Average Per-hour Rate (E)  E = (Sum of Column D in Core + 70% x Sum of Column in Additional)  divided by the number (#) of categories offered				

# 4.6 Basis of Selection

For each Service Stream, only the Offers that have met all Mandatory Requirements and meeting that minimum overall pass mark on the Point-Rated criteria will be deemed as **responsive**.

## 4.6.1 Highest Combined Rating of Technical Merit 70% and Price 30%

Standing Offer Agreements (SOAs) will be awarded based on a determination of **Best Value per Service Stream** considering both the technical merit of the Offers and the Financial Evaluation. To arrive at an overall score achieved by an Offeror, a weighting has been established as follows:

Technical merit will be valued at 70% of the Offer and price will be valued at 30% of the Offer. The Offeror(s) will be selected on the basis of the highest responsive combined rating of technical merit and price. The calculation used to determine the Offeror's Total Score will be:

Offeror's Total Score (out of 100 points) = Offeror's Weighted Technical Score (out of 70 points) + Offeror's Financial Score (out of 30 points)

Awards will be made to the Offeror(s) representing Best Value. Best Value will be defined as the highest Total Score, i.e. the highest ranked responsive Offer (as applicable per Service Stream) would be considered to represent Best Value.

Where two or more Offers achieve the identical Total Score, the Offer with the highest Weighted Technical Score will precede.

#### 4.6.2 SOA Value Allocation

For each Service Stream, the Offerors with the highest three (3) Total Scores will be recommended for award of SOAs, based on the following value allocation rules:

Highest Ranked Offeror	\$2,000,000.00 (100%)	applicable taxes included
Second Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1,800,000.00 (90%)	applicable taxes included
Third Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1,600,000.00 (80%)	applicable taxes included

Where there are only two (2) responsive Offers for a Service Stream, they will be deemed as the highest ranked Offeror and second highest ranked Offeror.

Highest Ranked Offeror	\$2,000,000.00 (100%)	applicable taxes included
Second Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1.800.000.00 (90%)	applicable taxes included

Where there is only one (1) responsive Offer for a Service Stream, this Offeror will be deemed as the highest ranked Offeror.

Highest Ranked Offeror \$2,000,000.00 (100%) applicable taxes included

### PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Offerors must provide the required certifications and additional information to be issued a standing offer.

The certifications provided by Offerors to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare an offer non-responsive, will have the right to set-aside a standing offer, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the Offeror is found to be untrue whether made knowingly or unknowingly during the offer evaluation period, during the Standing Offer period, or during the contract period.

The Standing Offer Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Offeror's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Standing Offer Authority will render the offer non-responsive, result in the setting aside of the Standing Offer or constitute a default under the Contract.

#### 5.1 Certifications Required with the Offer

Offerors must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their offer.

#### **Integrity Provisions - Declaration of Convicted Offences** 5.1.1

In accordance with the Integrity Provisions of the Standard Instructions, all Offerors must provide with their offer, if applicable, the declaration form available on the Forms for the Integrity Regime website (http://www.tpsqc-pwgsc.qc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html), to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

#### 5.2 Certifications Precedent to the Issuance of a Standing Offer and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the offer, but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Standing Offer Authority will inform the Offeror of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame provided will render the offer non-responsive.

#### 5.2.1 **Integrity Provisions – Required Documentation**

In accordance with the section titled Information to be provided when bidding, contracting or entering into a real property agreement of the Ineligibility and Suspension Policy (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ciif/politique-policy-eng.html), the Offeror must provide the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

# Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Standing Offer Certification

By submitting an offer, the Offeror certifies that the Offeror, and any of the Offeror's members if the Offeror is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list) available at the bottom of the page of the Employment and Social Development Canada-Labour's website (https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-socialdevelopment/programs/employment-equity/federal-contractor-program.html#s4).

Canada will have the right to declare an offer non-responsive, or to set-aside a Standing Offer, if the Offeror, or any member of the Offeror if the Offeror is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list at the time of issuing of a Standing Offer or during the period of the Standing Offer.

### 5.2.3 Additional Certifications Precedent to Issuance of a Standing Offer

5.2.3.1 Status and Availability of Resources

SACC Manual Clause M3020T (2016-01-28), Status of Availability of Resources - Offer

PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

## 6.1 Security Requirements

- 1. Before issuance of a standing offer, the following conditions must be met:
  - (a) the Offeror must hold a valid organization security clearance as indicated in Part 7A Standing Offer;
  - (b) the Offeror's offered individuals requiring access to classified or protected information, assets or sensitive work sites must meet the security requirements as indicate in Part 7A Standing Offer:
  - (c) the Offeror must provide the name of all individuals who will require access to classified or protected information, assets or sensitive work sites;
  - (d) the Offeror's offered location of work performance and document safeguarding must meet the security requirements as indicated in Part 7A Standing Offer;
  - (e) the Offeror must provide the addresses of offered sites or premises of work performance and document safeguarding as indicated in Part 3 Section IV Additional Information.
- 2. Offerors are reminded to obtain the required security clearance promptly. Any delay in the issuance of a standing offer to allow the successful Offeror to obtain the required clearance will be at the entire discretion of the Standing Offer Authority.
- 3. For additional information on security requirements, offerors should refer to the <u>Contract Security Program</u> of Public Works and Government Services Canada (<a href="http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html">http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html</a>) website.

# 6.2 Financial Capability

N/A

### 6.3 Insurance Requirements

N/A

### PART 7 - STANDING OFFER AND RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

#### A. STANDING OFFER

#### 7.1 Offer

- **7.1.1** The Offeror offers to perform the Work in accordance with the Statement of Work (SOW) at Annex "A".
- 7.1.2 This Standing Offer is established for the Stream\_\_\_under the "Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services" (the "Services") defined in the SOW Section 3 Objectives.

# 7.2 Security Requirements

- **7.2.1** The following security requirements (SRCL and related clauses provided by the Contract Security Program) apply and form part of the Standing Offer.
  - Pursuant to the Policy Government Security, the nature of the services to be provided under the
    resulting Standing Offer Agreement requires a Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening
    action at the Reliability Status level for the Contractor, their resources and sub-contractors to be
    assigned to conduct the work.
  - Prior to the commencement of the work, the Contractor and each of its personnel involved in the call-up must each hold a valid Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening at the level of Reliability Status.
  - 3. The Contractor and its personnel requiring access to **PROTECTED** information, assets or sensitive work site(s) must each hold a valid Security Screening at the level of **Reliability Status**.
  - 4. The Contractor MUST NOT possess or safeguard **PROTECTED** information/assets at their organization's premises until appropriate document safeguarding capability is authorized by the Department of Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC).
  - 5. The Contractor must comply with the provisions of the:
    - a. Security clauses and requirements (attached hereto as Annex C); and
    - b. Policy Government Security (Latest Edition)
  - 6. For Contractors and Proposed Resources That Are Currently in Possession of a Valid Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening at the Level of Reliability: In order to demonstrate compliance with this requirement, and, for the Department to verify their security screening status, as evidence of compliance with this requirement, at the time of proposal submission, the Bidder is required to provide the following information within the Bidder's proposal, for the Contractor/Firm and all Contractor resources to be deployed in the fulfilment of the Standing Offer Agreement call-up Work who are currently in possession of the required security screening:
    - a. Name of Company, Address and Phone Number;
    - b. Company Security Officer Name and Telephone Number;
    - c. Level of GoC Security Screening or Clearance;
    - d. Origin of Security Screening or Clearance (Sponsoring Department/Agency); and
    - e. Effective Date of Screening or Clearance.

For Contractors and Proposed Resources Not Currently In Possession of a Valid Government of Canada Security Screening, at a Minimum Level of Reliability: At the time of proposal submission, Bidders MUST complete and submit the following certification:

CERTIFICATION			
If successful, as a duly authorized representative hereby certify that (Enter Firm/Contractor Name currently not in possession of a valid Government minimum level of <b>Reliability Status</b> agree to be the required Security Screening prior to providing	e) and all proposed resources that are ent of Canada Security Screening at the exponsored by the Department to obtain		
Name of Duly Authorized Representative (Print)  Signature of Duly Authorized Representative			
Title	Date		

<u>Prior to Call-up</u>, for those Contractor resources **not** currently in possession of a valid Government of Canada Security Screening, the Department will require said resources to undergo the Personnel Screening process, sponsored, for the purposes of obtaining a valid Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening at the level of **Reliability Status**. Resources will be required to complete the Personnel Screening Consent and Authorization Form **TBS/SCT 330-23E (Rev. 2002/07)** as viewable on the Canadian International Industrial Security Directorate (CIISD) website, as indicated in the RFSO, and submit this information to CIRNAC, Security and Accommodation Division.

This procedure is in accordance with the Departmental and *Policy Government Security* (TBS July. 1, 2009), regarding the protection of Government information in contracting. The required form requests the minimum information required to obtain a Government of Canada **Reliability Status** security screening. The Bidder is **not** required to submit any personnel information and/or Personnel Screening Consent and Authorization Forms with its proposal. CIRNAC respects the privacy of Canadians, the information on this form is required for the purpose of providing security screening assessments. It is collected under the authority of the *Policy Government Security* of Canada and is protected by the provisions of the *Privacy Act* in institutions which are covered by the *Privacy Act*. Its collection is mandatory. A refusal to provide information will lead to a review of whether the person is eligible to perform the contract work that is associated with this Personnel Screening Request. Failure on the part of the Bidder's resources to comply with these requirements will result in those resources being deemed non-compliant, with no further consideration given. Non-compliant resources will be deemed ineligible to complete any work associated with this standing offer agreement.

# 7.2.2 Offeror's Sites or Premises Requiring Safeguarding

7.2.2.1 Where safeguarding measures are required in the performance of the Work, the Offeror must diligently maintain up-to-date the information related to the Offeror's and offered individuals' sites or premises for the following addresses:

Street Number / Street Name, Unit / Suite / Apartment Number City, Province, Territory / State Postal Code / Zip Code Country

7.2.2.2 The Company Security Officer must ensure through the <u>Contract Security Program</u> that the Offeror and individual(s) hold a valid security clearance at the required level.

5140 5161

### 7.3 Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Standing Offer and resulting contract(s) by number, date and title are set out in the <a href="Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual">Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</a> (<a href="https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual">https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual</a> ) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

# 7.3.1 General Conditions

<u>2005</u> (2017-06-21) General Conditions - Standing Offers - Goods or Services, apply to and form part of the Standing Offer.

# 7.3.2 Standing Offers Reporting

The Offeror must compile and maintain records on its provision of goods and services to Canada under contracts resulting from the Standing Offer. This data must include all purchases done by Canada, including those acquired and paid for by Canada acquisition cards.

The Offeror must provide this data on the financial and administrative status of each and all open callups, including invoicing completed work and pending work. If some data is not available, the reason must be indicated in the report. If no goods or service is provided during a given period, the Offeror must provide a "nil" report. The data must be submitted on a quarterly basis to the Standing Offer Authority.

The quarterly reporting periods are defined as follows:

- first quarter: April 1 to June 30
- second quarter: July 1 to September 30
- third quarter: October 1 to December 31
- fourth quarter: January 1 to March 31

The data must be submitted to the Standing Offer Authority no later than 5 calendar days after the end of the reporting period.

## 7.4 Term of Standing Offer

### 7.4.1 Period of the Standing Offer

The period for making Call-ups against the Standing Offer is **from Standing Offer Award to March 31**, **2022 inclusive**.

## 7.4.2 Extension of Standing Offer

If the Standing Offer is authorized for use beyond the initial period, the Offeror offers to extend its offer for an additional **two (2) one-year option periods**, under the same conditions and at the rates or prices specified in the Standing Offer, or at the rates or prices calculated in accordance with the formula specified in the Standing Offer.

The Offeror will be advised of the decision to authorize the use of the Standing Offer for an extended period by the Standing Offer Authority 30 days before the expiry date of the Standing Offer. A revision to the Standing Offer will be issued by the Standing Offer Authority.

#### 7.4.3 Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs)

The Standing Offer (SO) is for the delivery of the requirement detailed in the SO to the Identified Users across Canada, including areas subject to Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs).

#### 7.5 Authorities

## 7.5.1 Standing Offer Authority

The Standing Offer Authority is:

Name: Shuo Chen

Title: Senior Procurement and Contracting Officer Materiel and Assets Management Directorate

Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada

10 rue Wellington, Gatineau, QC, K1A 0H4

Telephone: 819-953-6910 Facsimile: 819-953-7721

E-mail address: shuo.chen@canada.ca

The Standing Offer Authority is responsible for the establishment of the Standing Offer, its administration and its revision, if applicable. Upon the making of a Call-up, as Contracting Authority, he is responsible for any contractual issues relating to individual Call-ups made against the Standing Offer by any Identified User.

## 7.5.2 Project Authority

The Project Authority for the Standing Offer is identified in the Call-up against the Standing Offer.

The Project Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work will be carried out pursuant to a Call-up against the Standing Offer and is responsible for all the technical content of the Work under the resulting Contract.

#### **7.5.3** Offeror's Representative (identified at issuance of the Standing Offer)

Name: Title: Telephone: Facsimile: E-mail address:

## 7.6 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice</u>: 2012-2 of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

## 7.7 Identified Users

The Identified User authorized to make Call-ups against the Standing Offer is the Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC).

## 7.8 Numbers of Standing Offers

A maximum of \_\_\_\_Standing Offers will be issued for this Service Stream.

## 7.9 Call-up Allocation and Procedures

## 7.9.1 Call-up Allocation

Call-ups against the Standing Offer will be issued by the Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority (as applicable) on a proportional basis **per Service Stream** such that the highest-ranked Offeror receives the largest predetermined portion of the work; the second highest-ranked Offeror receives the second largest predetermined portion of the work, etc. within the Service Stream.

Where three (3) Standing Offers are awarded **per Service Stream**, the Call-up assignment will be as follows:

Highest Ranked Offeror	\$2,000,000.00 (100%)	applicable taxes included
Second Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1,800,000.00 (90%)	applicable taxes included
Third Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1,600,000.00 (80%)	applicable taxes included

Where only two (2) Standing Offers are awarded **per Service Stream**, the Call-up assignment will be as follows:

Highest Ranked Offeror	\$2,000,000.00 (100%)	applicable taxes included
Second Highest Ranked Offeror	\$1,800,000.00 (90%)	applicable taxes included

Where there is only one (1) responsive Offer for a Service Stream, this Offeror will be deemed as the highest ranked Offeror and the Call-up will be assigned as follows:

Highest Ranked Offeror \$2,000,000.00 (100%) applicable taxes included

The Project Authority will monitor Call-up activities to ensure work is allocated in accordance with the predetermined work distribution.

The Project Authority will select an Offeror from the required Service Stream that best meets its requirements as described in the related Call-up. This may include, but is not necessarily limited to, experience with a specific site, project or issue, expertise in a specific subject matter, absence of conflict of interest of the Offeror or its resources with other project participants, security requirements for the work to be completed under the Call-up, and other considerations important for the completion of work.

## 7.9.2 Call-up Procedures

- 1) Offerors will be contacted directly as described in 7.9.1 above.
- 2) The Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority (as applicable) will provide the Offeror with details of the Work activities to be performed within the scope of this Standing Offer including the site(s) for which services are required and identification of any applicable CLCA(s), a description of the Deliverables/reports to be submitted. The Project Authority may, in its exclusive discretion, require the Offeror to provide the services of one (1), some or all of the resources named in its RFSO offer (as accepted by CIRNAC), or may request the Offeror to offer which of the resources will deliver the work requested, or may request the Offeror to offer additional resources who must be evaluated (as per the original RFSO) and qualified to provide services under the Call-up.
- 3) The Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority (as applicable) will determine whether one (1) or more of a firm price, ceiling price, or limitation of expenditure will apply to the Call-up and will require the Offeror to accordingly submit one (1) or more of a firm price, ceiling price, or limitation of expenditure.

<u>Firm price definition:</u> The total amount payable for a particular deliverable is a fixed sum. Both parties agree prior to the award of the Call-up as to the price payable for the deliverable thereunder.

<u>Ceiling price definition:</u> The maximum amount of monies that may be paid to an Offeror for costs reasonably and properly incurred in the performance of the specified Work described in the Call-up. If the costs, as charged, reach or exceed the ceiling, the Offeror must complete the specified Work and will receive no monies beyond this ceiling.

<u>Limitation of expenditure definition</u>: The maximum amount of monies that may be paid to an Offeror for the costs reasonably and properly incurred in the performance of the specified Work described in the Call-up. If the Offeror discovers that there are insufficient funds to complete the Work, the Offeror must inform the Project Authority. The Project Authority then has the option of providing additional funding or requesting the Offeror complete the specified work to the extent that the current funding permits.

- 4) As requested, the Offeror will submit any one (1) or more of a firm price, a ceiling price, or a limitation of expenditure as required by the Call-up, a schedule indicating completion dates for major work activities and submission dates for deliverables/reports with supporting details, and as requested by CIRNAC the name(s) and curriculum vitae (CVs) of any additional resources offered to conduct the work and the Indigenous Opportunity Considerations the Offeror shall implement in the course of the Call-up work. The Offer must be submitted to the applicable Project Authority within three (3) business days of receiving the request, unless otherwise specified in writing by the requesting Authority.
- 5) The firm price, ceiling price and/or limitation of expenditure will be established by using the applicable <a href="https://example.com/hourly">hourly</a> rates as shows in the Basis of Payment, Annex "B". Amounts for any expenses will be added to the Call-up by CIRNAC.
- 6) Failure by the Offeror to submit an Offer in accordance with the time frame specified above will be interpreted as the Offeror being unable to perform the services and will result in the setting aside of the offer. The Offeror will then be by-passed and the Project Authority will send the request to the next best-suited Offeror. This process will continue until the requirement can be fully addressed by an Offeror. Should no Offeror be able to provide the services requested, CIRNAC reserves the right to procure the specified services by other methods.
- 7) CIRNAC reserves the right to request references from the available Offeror to conduct a reference check to verify the accuracy of similar work previously performed. Should the reference(s) provide negative feedback in relation to the information provided, the Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority (as applicable) reserves the right to go to the next Offeror.
- 8) Upon agreement of the firm price, ceiling price and/or limitation of expenditure for the Services, the Offeror will be authorized by the applicable Project Authority to proceed with the work through the issuance of a duly completed and signed Call-up against the Standing Offer.
- 9) The Offeror shall not commence work until the Call-up against the Standing Offer has been signed by the Contracting Authority. The Offeror acknowledges that any and all work performed in the absence of a Call-up against the Standing Offer Agreement signed by the Contracting Authority will be undertaken at the Offeror's own risk, and Canada shall not be liable for payment therefor.

## 7.10 Call-up Instrument

The work will be authorized or confirmed by the Identified User(s) using the duly completed forms or their equivalents as identified in paragraphs 2 and 3 below.

- 1. Call-ups must be made by Identified Users' authorized representatives under the Standing Offer and must be for services included in the Standing Offer at the prices and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Standing Offer.
- 2. The following form will be used:
  - CIRNAC Call-up Against a Standing Offer (SAP)

## 7.11 Limitation of Call-ups

N/A

7.12 Financial Limitation

The total cost to Canada resulting from call ups against the Standing Offer must not exceed the sum of \$\_\_\_\_\_ (applicable taxes excluded) unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Standing Offer Authority. The Offeror must not perform any work or services or supply any articles in response to call ups which would cause the total cost to Canada to exceed the said sum, unless an increase is so authorized.

The Offeror must notify the Standing Offer Authority as to the adequacy of this sum when 75 percent of this amount has been committed, or <a href="mailto:three">three</a> (3) months before the expiry date of the Standing Offer, whichever comes first. However, if at any time, the Offeror considers that the said sum may be exceeded, the Offeror must promptly notify the Standing Offer Authority.

## 7.13 Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

- a) the Call-up against the Standing Offer, including any annexes;
- b) the articles of the Standing Offer;
- c) the general conditions 2005 (2017-06-21), General Conditions Standing Offers Goods or Services;
- d) Annex "A", Statement of Work;
- e) Annex "B", Basis of Payment;
- f) Annex "C", Security Requirements Check List (SRCL);
- g) Annex "D", IT Security Safeguarding Requirements;
- h) the Offeror's offer dated \_\_\_\_\_(identified at issuance of the Standing Offer).

#### 7.14 Certifications and Additional Information

#### 7.14.1 Compliance

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Offeror with its offer or precedent to issuance of the Standing Offer (SO), and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of issuance of the SO and failure to comply will constitute the Offeror in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the SO and of any resulting contract that would continue beyond the period of the SO.

#### 7.14.2 SACC Manual Clauses

SACC Manual Clause M3020C (2016-01-28), Status of Availability of Resources - Offer

#### 7.15 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

## 7.16 Transition to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS)

During the period of the Standing Offer, Canada may transition to an EPS for more efficient processing and management of individual Call-ups for any or all of the SO's applicable goods and services. Canada reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make the use of the new e-procurement solution mandatory.

Canada agrees to provide the Offeror with at least a three-month notice to allow for any measures necessary for the integration of the Offer into the EPS. The notice will include a detailed information package indicating the requirements, as well as any applicable guidance and support.

If the Offeror chooses not to offer their goods or services through the e-procurement solution, the Standing Offer may be set aside by Canada.

**B. RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES** 

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from a Call-up against the Standing Offer.

#### 7.1 Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the work described in the Call-up against the Standing Offer.

#### 7.2 Standard Clauses and Conditions

## 7.2.1 General Conditions

2035 (2018-06-21), General Conditions - Higher Complexity - Services, apply to and form part of the Contract.

#### 7.3 Term of Contract

#### 7.3.1 Period of the Contract

The period of the Contract is in accordance with the Call-up against the Standing Offer.

## 7.3.2 Delivery Date

Delivery must be completed in accordance with the Call-up against the Standing Offer.

#### 7.4 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with Contracting Policy Notice: 2012-2 of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

#### 7.5 Payment

## 7.5.1 Basis of Payment

The Contractor will be paid for the Work performed in accordance with the Annex "B" - Basis of payment. Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra.

## 7.5.2 Limitation of Expenditure

- Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract must not exceed \$\_\_\_\_\_\_. Customs
  duties are included and applicable taxes are extra. Any amounts for taxes will be added at time of
  Call-up award.
- 2. No increase in the total liability of Canada or in the price of the Work resulting from any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless these design changes, modifications or interpretations have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work. The Contractor must not perform any work or provide any service that would result in Canada's total liability being exceeded before obtaining the written approval of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must notify the Contracting Authority in writing as to the adequacy of this sum:
  - a. when it is 75% committed, or
  - b. four months before the contract expiry date, or

5000000

 as soon as the Contractor considers that the contract funds provided are inadequate for the completion of the Work,

whichever comes first.

3. If the notification is for inadequate contract funds, the Contractor must provide to the Contracting Authority a written estimate for the additional funds required. Provision of such information by the Contractor does not increase Canada's liability.

## 7.5.3 Terms of Payment

H1008C (2018-05-12), Monthly Payment

## 7.5.4 Electronic Payment of Invoices – Call-up

The Contractor accepts to be paid using any of the following Electronic Payment Instrument(s):

a. Direct Deposit (Domestic and International);

## 7.6 Invoicing Instructions

 The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.

Each invoice must be supported by:

- a. a copy of time sheets to support the time claimed;
- b. a copy of the release document and any other documents as specified in the Contract;
- a copy of the invoices, receipts, vouchers for all direct expenses, and all travel and living expenses;
- d. a copy of the monthly progress report.
- 2. Invoices must be distributed as follows:
  - b. The original and one (1) copy must be forwarded to the following address for certification and payment.

## 7.7 Insurance Requirements

CIRNAC is not responsible to recompense for personal or property injury to the Contractor or the Contractor's deployed resources, while providing Services on behalf of CIRNAC, throughout the duration of the contract. The Contractor **MUST** maintain the appropriate insurance coverage for its deployed resources, including any sub-contractors, within the duration of the Contract. Compliance with the insurance requirements does not release the Contractor from or reduce its liability under the Contract.

The Contractor is responsible for deciding if additional insurance coverage is necessary to fulfill its obligation under the Contract and to ensure compliance with any applicable law. Any additional insurance coverage is at the Contractor's expense, and for its own benefit and protection.

The Contractor must forward to the Contracting Authority within ten (10) days after the date of award of the Contract, a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the insurance coverage and confirming that the insurance policy complying with the requirements is in force. For Canadian-based Contractors, coverage must be placed with an Insurer licensed to carry out business in Canada, however, for Foreign-based Contractors, coverage must be placed with an Insurer with an A.M. Best Rating no less than "A-". The Contractor must, if requested by the Contracting Authority, forward to Canada a certified true copy of all applicable insurance policies.

#### ANNEX "A" - STATEMENT OF WORK

## S.W.1 TITLE

Northern Contaminated Sites Branch, Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services – Standing Offer Agreements

## S.W.2 BACKGROUND

Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC) supports Northern Canadians in their efforts to improve social and economic well-being, to develop healthier, more sustainable communities and to participate more fully in Canada's political, social and economic development. The Department's responsibility for many of the Government of Canada's (GC) roles in the North is met primarily through the programs and services of the Northern Affairs Organization (NAO), which supports these goals.

CIRNAC must balance the need to support the North's economic potential with sustainable development and environmental protection. A major component of the fulfillment of these goals is the addressing of sites in the North, on Crown lands which have become contaminated. Under Treasury Board's Policy on Management of Real Property, all federal government departments are charged with environmental stewardship that contribute to the preservation and protection of the environment; however, CIRNAC faces some unique challenges in the discharge of this duty.

Unlike other Contaminated Sites, those in the North have occurred largely as a result of private sector resource development activities on federal Crown lands. In recent decades, the number of sites, their scale, and the pressures for the Department to take action has increased, due to a large number of mine and resource industry closures and abandonment. The environment in the North also presents multiple challenges to the assessment, monitoring, and remediation of these sites. These include but are not limited to: the uniqueness of the climate, ecology, and land composition; their remote location, and the relatively short window open for work to be conducted. Canada's North is also home to a diverse group of peoples. Northern communities, often reliant on traditional food sources, have been identified as being particularly vulnerable to the potential negative impact of Contaminated Sites, on their health and safety, and the environment in which they live. The Department further recognizes the need to include Northern communities and businesses in the assessment, monitoring and remediation of Contaminated Sites.

The Northern Contaminated Sites Branch (NCSB – formerly the Northern Contaminated Sites Program) within CIRNAC's NAO is responsible for a portfolio of abandoned Mine and other Contaminated Sites in the North, which require assessment, care and maintenance, remediation and closure to mitigate the effects of contamination on environmental and human health and safety, as well as monitoring to validate the impacts of these activities on the reduction of environmental and human health risks. The Portfolio of sites includes a variety of former Mines and other sites, and range in size and complexity from smaller waste sites, to sites that due to any combination of the size, scale, value and context of the site and its required project works, are classified by NCSB as "Major Projects". Many of these sites are remote, located proximate to isolated community settlements, and some are located within the Traditional Territories of Canada's Northern Indigenous peoples. NCSB manages its Portfolio of sites both at a program level, to ensure consistency in the management of its Portfolio, and at the Project level for each site, to provide the necessary rigour and controls to the execution of each Project. Additional information on NCSB and its portfolio of Major Projects can be found online at:

#### http://www.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/eng/1100100035301/1100100035302.

## S.W.3 OBJECTIVE

To support the work of the Branch within Headquarters and the Regions, NCSB requires access to qualified professional firms ("Offerors") providing experienced resources with expertise in Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services, Major Mine Closure Project Services and Contaminated Site Project

Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-Commercialization ("Contaminated Site and Major Mine

CIRNAC seeks to award up to \_\_\_\_Standing Offer Agreements (SOAs) per Service Stream to qualified Offerors, as set out below:

Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services

Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services" – the "Services").

- Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services
- Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization

The Offeror's Services shall be delivered on an as-and-when required basis, pursuant to one (1) or more Call-up(s).

As set out in the Call-up(s), the Services shall be delivered to either or both of NCSB Headquarters and its Regional locations. Specific Service objectives will be contained within any resulting Call-up(s).

## S.W.4 DEFINITIONS AND APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS

The following list of terms and acronyms is not exhaustive, but rather is intended to ensure clarity of understanding of critical terms used within this Statement of Work.

Term/Acronym	Definition
Aboriginal Business	An Aboriginal Business can be:  • a band as defined by the Indian Act;  • a sole proprietorship;  • a limited company;  • a co-operative;  • a partnership; or  • a not-for-profit organization  in which Aboriginal persons have at least 51 percent ownership and control;
	OR
	A joint venture consisting of two or more Aboriginal Businesses or an Aboriginal Business and a non-Aboriginal business(es), provided that the Aboriginal Business(es) has at least 51 percent ownership and control of the joint venture.
	When an Aboriginal Business has six or more full-time employees at the date of submitting the Offer, at least thirty-three percent of them must be Aboriginal persons, and this ratio must be maintained throughout the duration of the contract.
AHJ	Authorities Having Jurisdiction
ASD	Alternative Service Delivery
Call-up / Contract	Under a valid SOA, a document prepared by CIRNAC and issued by the Standing Offer Authority or the Project Authority (as applicable) to the Offeror, through which CIRNAC will acquire the required Services. It will contain requirements for the provision of said Services, which will be consistent with the Statement of Work herein and may consist of any combination of the required Services listed herein. Upon acceptance and execution of the Call-up by the Offeror, the Call-up forms a binding contractual commitment to deliver the identified Services.
Capital	Refers to a long-term, capital-intensive investment with a purpose to build upon, add to, or improve a capital asset. Capital projects are defined by their large scale and large cost relative to other investments that involve less

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

Term/Acronym	<u>Definition</u>		
	planning and resources (Source: Investopedia).		
CLCA	Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement (CLCA). CLCAs are modern treaties between Indigenous groups, Canada and the applicable territorial or provincing government. While each CLCA is unique, these agreements usually include such matters as land ownership and management, money, wildlife harvesting rights, participation in land, resource, water, wildlife and environmental management, and measures to support economic development and protect Indigenous culture.		
	Many CLCAs have obligations on the part of the Government of Canada, and as a result any Offerors it engages, under government procurement contracts that may involve work within the geographical area of the CLCA. These obligations may be different for each CLCA and are considered in the work when applicable. See also Indigenous Opportunities Considerations below.		
Contaminated Site	A site at which substances occur at concentrations (1) above background levels and pose (or are likely to pose) an immediate or long-term risk to human health or the environment, or (2) exceeding levels specified in relevant policies or regulations.		
Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services (the "Services")	the services as defined in S.W.5 Scope of Work, and as further set-out in any resulting Call-up(s).		
Contaminated Site Project Life Cycle	The Lifecycle of a Contaminated Site Project is defined in accordance with the NCSB Major Project Manual, to consist of four (4) stages: - 1) Assessment; 2) Definition; 3) Implementation; 4) Monitoring and Maintenance.		
Contractor	The qualified Offeror holding a valid Standing Offer Agreement who has executed Call-ups duly authorized by CIRNAC for the delivery of the Services.		
Cost Validation	Cost Validation is undertaken in order to attest to, with a higher degree of assurance, the financial reasonableness and integrity of a project's cost estimates. Cost Validation shall confirm that:		
	<ul> <li>Project risks are being identified and the cost implications of risk mitigation strategies are being considered in the project cost estimate;</li> <li>Cost estimates are properly calculated and substantiated and have the required supporting documentation; and,</li> <li>The total project cost includes all associated costs.</li> </ul>		
Deliverable	Has the meaning set out in S.W.6 of this Statement of Work and as further specified in any resultant Call-up(s).		
GoC	Government of Canada.		
Indigenous Opportunities Considerations	Indigenous Opportunities Considerations include measures implemented by the Offeror to enhance the capacity of Land Claims Beneficiaries and Participants, including businesses, to participate in government contract opportunities. IOCs may include: capacity development, on-the-job training, employment or contracting (supplies or services) related to the Call-up work. Where work under any resulting Call-up will involve the performance of work within or the delivery of services to a location within a Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement (CLCA) area, the Offeror will be required to identify for		

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur Shuo Chen

Term/Acronym	<u>Definition</u>
	CIRNAC's approval and implement IOCs appropriate to the scope of the Call-up work.
Infrastructure	For the purpose of this SOW, includes most forms of infrastructure such as roads, electrical, communication, water, or other public utility infrastructure, etc. For the purposes of this SOW, infrastructure excludes construction of buildings/facilities, such as, but not limited to warehouses, office buildings, factories, etc.
Major (Project)	A single Infrastructure, remediation or heavy civil engineering project, with a defined start and end date, valued at greater than \$50 Million inclusive of Capital costs. Major Projects require an additional level of planning, design, management, monitoring and review, throughout the life cycle of the Major Project, to provide the required level of assurance as to their appropriate execution.
	Major Projects typically include a variety of internal costs, external services in addition to "Capital costs" such as, but not necessarily limited to: purchase or disposition of the land, permits and legal costs, equipment costs either on the part of the owner or the owner's representative(s), and related items.
Mine Closure	Means activities spanning the lifecycle of the remediation and final closure of a mine, including each of the following stages: 1) Investigation; 2) Planning and Design; 3) Regulatory Approvals; 4) Consultation; 5) Implementation; 6) Monitoring; and 7) Care and Maintenance
Mineral	For the purpose of this Statement of Work includes: precious metals (gold, silver, platinum) and diamonds; base metals (iron, copper, lead, zinc, nickel); energy minerals such as coal and uranium; and industrial minerals (limestone, rock salt, potash, gypsum).
NAO	Northern Affairs Organization
NCR	National Capital Region
NCSB	Means Northern Contaminated Sites Branch
North or Northern	In the context of NCSB is defined as a physical location North of 60°, in a permafrost environment.
Offeror	The qualified supplier holding a valid Standing Offer Agreement who is eligible to be considered for Call-ups in the Area(s) of Expertise specified in the SOA.
PPP	Public-Private Partnership
Portfolio	A grouping of current and offered Projects that are centrally managed, monitored and evaluated to provide a common and consistent standard in the processes, methods and tools/technologies used to deliver upon each component Project in the grouping. Portfolios are managed horizontally to determine the optimal resource mix for delivery and to schedule activities to best achieve the organization's operational and financial goals, while respecting the constraints of the environment, co-proponents, Project stakeholders, strategic objectives, or other external factors.
Project	As defined by the Treasury Board Secretariat, is "an activity or series of activities that has a beginning and an end. A Project is required to produce defined outputs and realize specific outcomes in support of a public policy objective, within a clear schedule and resource plan. A Project is undertaken within specific time, cost and performance parameters."

Term/Acronym	<u>Definition</u>
Project Authority	The officer or employee of the Crown who is authorized by the Minister to perform any of the Project Authority's functions as described in the Articles of Agreement. The Project Authority or his/her delegate is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the work against the SOA any authorized Call-ups. The Project Authority for each Call-up will be identified in the associated Call-up document.
Region	Means NCSB's Regional operations in the Yukon, Northwest Territories and Nunavut.
Resource	The individual(s) qualified to provide services to CIRNAC on behalf of the Offeror.
Service Stream	The specific subject matters in which an Offeror is qualified to deliver Services (refer to the S.W.3 Objectives and S.W.5 Scope of Work), as set out in the Offeror's SOA.
Socioeconomic	Includes factors such as potential impacts on community health and wellbeing, demographics, market conditions, demands for public services, employment and income levels. Socioeconomic assessment includes both quantitative and qualitative measurements of offered activities before they are carried out.
sow	Statement of Work
Standing Offer Agreement (SOA)	An overarching agreement between CIRNAC and a qualified Contractor to provide the Services on an as and when required basis. Individual work requirements may be initiated throughout the duration of the SOA by means of a Call-up document. An SOA does not constitute a Contract.
Standing Offer Authority	The Standing Offer Authority will be the sole authority on behalf of Canada for the administration of the SOA. Any changes to the SOA must be authorized in writing by the Standing Offer Authority. The Offeror is not to perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the SOA based on written requests from any government personnel other than the Standing Offer Authority. The Standing Offer Authority for this requirement will be identified upon Award.

The following documents provide guidance for the provision of the Services to CIRNAC. The Offeror and its Resources shall conform to and maintain working knowledge of the following and all amendments thereto:

- CIRNAC's Contaminated Sites Management Policy, available online at <a href="http://www.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/eng/1100100034643/1100100034644">http://www.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/eng/1100100034643/1100100034644</a>;
- Contaminated Sites Management Framework, available online at <a href="https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/federal-contaminated-sites/managing.html">https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/federal-contaminated-sites/managing.html</a>;
- Treasury Board Policy on the Management of Projects, available online at: <a href="http://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=18229">http://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=18229</a>;
- Treasury Board Framework for the Management of Risk, available online at: <a href="http://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=19422">http://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=19422</a>;
- A copy of the Northern Contaminated Sites Branch Cost Estimating Guide, to be provided to the Offeror after SOA Award;
- Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project-specific agreements, policies, procedures, and guidelines, to be provided to the Offeror after SOA Award or at time of Call-up (as applicable to the work); and
- For Services delivered in Stream 3:

- a) Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (BIA), available online at <a href="http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/B-3/">http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/B-3/</a>;
- b) Companies Creditor Arrangement Act (CCAA), available online at: <a href="http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/C-36/FullText.html">http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/C-36/FullText.html</a>.

#### S.W.5 SCOPE OF WORK

- 5.1 The Offeror shall provide the Services, as required and as stated in any resultant Call-up(s), within the Service Streams in which it is qualified by CIRNAC (as set out in the SOA). This shall include, but is not limited to providing subject matter expertise in the following areas:
  - Contaminated Sites, with a focus (as appropriate to the Services Stream) in Mine Closure and mining Projects;
  - Northern and remote conditions, including those affecting markets, economic and socioeconomic factors, and Project delivery;
  - effective horizontal coordination within and across government;
  - establishment and maintenance of effective intergovernmental relationships, including collaboration, communications and negotiations;
  - engagement, establishment and maintenance of effective relationships and agreements with Indigenous governments, organizations, communities and associations;
  - working effectively with Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJ), governing and appointed bodies, non-governmental associations, financial/commercial industry partners; and
  - engagement with private sector delivery participants and third party advisors from a variety of disciplines (e.g. technical, environmental, legal, financial, etc.).

## 5.2 Stream 1 - Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services:

Offerors qualified to provide **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** shall provide subject matter expertise; strategic and operational advice; and support to NCSB in its planning, design, development and implementation, including establishment and enhancement of repeatable processes, tools and knowledge transfer; in the following areas:

- 5.2.1 Long-term Strategic Planning and Advisory Services to assist NCSB in establishing, maintaining and updating its plans for its Contaminated Site Project Portfolio (including Major Mine Closure Projects) over a multi-year horizon, including providing subject matter expertise on the life cycle of Contaminated Site Projects and the life cycle of mining projects with a focus on mine reclamation;
- **5.2.2** Strategic advice, guidance or assistance in development or refinement of NCSB program design (e.g. structure, funding mechanisms, applicable terms and conditions, etc.) and related policy to achieve program and portfolio-wide policy objectives, including the promotion of socio-economic benefits to Indigenous people and Northerners;
- **5.2.3** Advice and support in maintaining and enhancing NCSB's Portfolio Project delivery system, ensuring appropriate membership composition, governance, structure of relationships between parties, roles and responsibilities, resource requirements, and on-going operational and administrative activities required;
- 5.2.4 Advice and support in the establishment, implementation and management of long-term funding and service delivery options for Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), including cost benefit analysis, across the Portfolio;
- **5.2.5** Subject matter expertise to support continued implementation and enhancement of life-cycle based Project delivery models in a consistent manner across the Portfolio;

000200942 Shido Chen

- **5.2.6** Establishment, implementation, maintenance and refinement of effective frameworks, controls and procedures, including monitoring and review practices, to support Portfolio management as well as ensuring compliance with applicable policies, standards, regulatory acts and alignment to processes of Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJ);
- **5.2.7** Review, analysis and integration of departmental, central agency, horizontal and interorganizational policies and direction within NCSB's Portfolio management approaches;
- **5.2.8** Development and implementation of new or revised NCSB policy, and advice to support the effective implementation of management strategy for the Portfolio;
- 5.2.9 Planning, development, facilitation and reporting on the conduct of engagement, multi-disciplinary working groups and coaching/knowledge transfer sessions bringing together diverse participants to achieve common objectives. These sessions shall enhance awareness and integration between NCSB, Portfolio delivery partners, and stakeholders, and provide collaborative planning, engagement on, and review of Contaminated Site program design, policy, and related Portfolio and Project initiatives and activities, to support NCSB in advancing the Portfolio in a consistent manner. This may include design, development and enhancement of session materials and takeaways for participants in a variety of readily accessible formats appropriate to the needs of participants.

Participants may include: NCSB personnel from across the Project Portfolio, inter-departmental participants, inter-governmental participants including Territorial and Indigenous governments, regulatory and/or community and industry-based participants;

- **5.2.10** Integrated Contaminated Site Portfolio-risk management, including:
  - a) Identification of risks and strategic issues, establishment of frameworks, and facilitation of collaborative management of risks in consultation with NCSB stakeholders and Portfolio delivery partners. This may include support in identification, assessment and implementation of collaborative risk mitigation approaches and risk responses, together with approaches and tools to assist NCSB in management of change within and across organizations;
  - b) Subject matter expertise and related advice on risks (e.g. financial, technical, environmental, operational, etc.) associated with NCSB's Portfolio programming, initiatives and operations in accordance with the TBS Framework on the Management of Risk (2010) and Guide to Integrated Risk Management (current version), taking into account a Portfolio-wide approach to Project Risk Management within NCSB, in addition to broader Departmental and GC-wide Risk Management approaches;
- **5.2.11** Guidance and/or assistance in the development of departmental and/or federal decision documents to provide appropriate business case, structure, cost estimation, funding, investment analysis, and decision-support;
- **5.2.12** Support in design, development and NCSB implementation of data collection strategies and approaches, analytical methodologies and associated data and information management services to provide timely and accurate Portfolio-related information for planning, monitoring, performance assessment, reporting, evaluation/audit and effective management of Portfolio resources;
- 5.2.13 Support in design, development and NCSB implementation of Portfolio-level measurement, monitoring and reporting frameworks, metrics, and formats to provide consistent and systematic target and priority setting, identification, tracking and analysis of Project status and performance across the Portfolio. This may include but is not limited to: liability valuation, costs, resource utilization, achievement of results, socio-economic and environmental indicators and metrics, including for internal use, collaboration and engagement with Portfolio partners and stakeholders, and broader publication including but not limited to professionally presented formatted reports and publication in the Federal Contaminated Sites Inventory Open Dataset;

- **5.2.14** Support, guidance and advice in preparation for Portfolio-level audit and evaluation activities, including decision support before and during reviews undertaken by third parties;
- **5.2.15** Support to NCSB in establishment and refinement of Contaminated Site Project Portfolio management standards, guidance documents, protocols and instructional materials, to assist NCSB personnel, Portfolio delivery partners and stakeholders in working collaboratively; and
- **5.2.16** Other related Services.

## 5.3 Stream 2 - Major Mine Closure Project Services:

Offerors qualified to provide **Major Mine Closure Project Services** shall provide subject matter expertise; strategic and operational advice; planning; and support to NCSB in its design, development and implementation, including establishment and enhancement of repeatable processes, tools and knowledge transfer, in the following areas:

- 5.3.1 Planning and Advisory Services to assist NCSB in establishing, maintaining and updating its plans and approaches to deliver upon Major Mine Closure Projects, in consideration of resourcing (e.g. human, capital, equipment), market capacity, costs, schedule, risks and constraints, and dependencies, including but not limited to:
  - a) Annual work planning;
  - b) Project work planning;
- **5.3.2** Providing subject matter expertise on the life cycle of mining projects, with a focus on Mine reclamation;
- **5.3.3** Methodologies, tools and implementation support for Major Mine Closure Project estimation, costing (e.g. Mine Closure costing), validation and reconciliation;
- 5.3.4 Identification, analysis, strategic advice and implementation support in resolution of issues related to Major Mine Closure Projects (e.g. issues impacting Project requirements and constraints related to technical approaches, environmental factors, affected communities and socio-economic considerations, etc.). This may include, but is not limited to:
  - a) Providing subject matter expertise in the identification, analysis, and effective methods for the avoidance, mitigation or resolution of engineering liabilities;
  - b) Providing subject matter expertise and assisting in development of strategies for and the conduct of economic analyses and socio-economic analyses for Major Mine Closure Projects, using a variety of methodologies (e.g. opportunity cost analysis, contingent valuation analysis, avoided cost analysis, quantitative analysis of labor and commercial conditions/ content, economic and socio-economic impact and outcomes of implemented strategies, etc.);
- 5.3.5 Planning, development, facilitation and reporting on the conduct of engagement, multi-disciplinary working groups and coaching/knowledge transfer sessions bringing together diverse participants to achieve common objectives in support of Major Mine Closure Projects. This may include design, development and enhancement of session materials and take-aways for participants in a variety of readily accessible formats appropriate to the needs of participants.
  - Participants may include: NCSB personnel from across the Project Portfolio, inter-departmental participants, inter-governmental participants including Territorial and Indigenous governments, regulatory and/or community and industry-based participants;

- **5.3.6** Support in planning, conduct and reporting on readiness assessment of Major Mine Closure Project membership to undertake the Project, and assistance in refining the Project as appropriate to the results of the assessment;
- 5.3.7 Support in planning, conduct and reporting on assessments of quality and performance (e.g. "health check") of Major Mine Closure Projects, including assistance and decision-support to NCSB in preparation for and during any reviews conducted by third parties. This may include review and assistance to NCSB in the development and implementation of refined plans and approaches for the delivery of Major Mine Closure Projects as appropriate to the results of the review:
- 5.3.8 Advice and assistance in planning and implementation of timely and effective transition among Major Mine Closure Project delivery partners, delivery models and/or arrangements (e.g. contracts, etc.) and other significant Project changes, in a manner that mitigates risk and cost while supporting on-going Project delivery; and
- **5.3.9** Other related Services.
- 5.4 Stream 3 Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

Offerors qualified to provide **Contaminated Site Project Valuation**, **Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services** shall provide subject matter expertise; strategic and operational advice; and support to NCSB in its planning, design, development and implementation, including repeatable processes, tools and knowledge transfer, in the following areas:

- 5.4.1 Subject matter expertise, advice, methodologies, tools and support to the conduct of market assessment/analysis, including but not limited to identification and analysis of viable target markets and interested parties for the takeover or acquisition of Contaminated Site Project (including Major Mine Closure Project) properties and assets. This includes support in the development and implementation of effective negotiation strategies with current and potential future public and private sector Delivery partners, stakeholders and target market audiences.
- **5.4.2** Subject matter expertise, methodologies, tools and support in the estimation, valuation and analysis of costs associated with Contaminated Site Projects, including Major Mine Closure Projects;
- **5.4.3** Expert financial review and advice and perform Cost Validation, including peer review of budgets and forecasts prepared by third parties;
- 5.4.4 Subject matter expertise, methodologies, tools and implementation support for estimation, valuation, analysis and reporting of financial liabilities for Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects) at the Project and/or Portfolio level. This may include advice and support in implementing effective methods for the avoidance, mitigation or resolution of liabilities;
- **5.4.5** Subject matter expertise, methodologies, tools and assistance in valuation, re-valuation or review and comment on existing report(s) on valuations of assets, including options analysis on the appropriate treatment of assets. This may include:
  - a) Valuation of land and other natural resources;
  - b) Valuation of capital equipment, facilities and infrastructure;
  - Valuation of mineral claims, including mineral resource and reserve estimation, to determine and define the volume and grade of mineral resources, using a variety of techniques and methods (e.g. geological modelling, block model estimation, etc.);

500200-12

- 5.4.6 Review, analysis, and advice on the acquisition of assets, transfer of assets and the recommercialization of assets through sales. This may include planning and support to the sales process, including but not limited to: market assessment, strategy, promotion, and shepherding of the sales process to its conclusion, including effective negotiation processes, in accordance with all applicable acts and codes;
- 5.4.7 Advice and support in establishing, maintaining and enhancing the Project delivery system for Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), ensuring appropriate Project membership and composition, governance, structure of relationships, roles and responsibilities, resource complement and skillsets, and activities required. This may include support in planning and conducting readiness assessment of the Project membership to undertake the Project, and assistance in refining the selected Project delivery system as appropriate to the results of the assessment;
- 5.4.8 Subject matter expertise to support NCSB and its Project delivery partners in the timely and effective management of insolvency associated with former Mine projects and Contaminated Sites, in accordance with the *Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (BIA)*, *Companies Creditor Arrangement Act* (CCAA), and other applicable acts and regulations;
- 5.4.9 Advice and support in review, analysis, selection, and establishment, maintenance and refinement of appropriate Project delivery models to structure and/or re-structure the delivery of NCSB's Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), including all variations of Private-Public Partnership (PPP), Alternative Service Delivery (ASD), etc. This may include, but is not limited to subject matter expertise and implementation assistance in the following areas:
  - Structuring and establishment of Project Financing, including but not limited to: establishment
    of financial evaluation criteria and frameworks, development/review/analysis of complex
    financial models and transaction structures, etc.;
  - b) Structuring and establishment of Commercial Arrangements, including but not limited to: enterprise structures and participants (e.g. creditors, receivership, other parties and forms, etc.), liability management arrangements, financial management arrangements; and Project Agreements, etc. As appropriate, services may include, options analysis, analysis of terms, market sounding / engagement, and/or support to NCSB in development and implementation of effective negotiation strategy and approaches;
  - c) Assistance with commercial and financial evaluation of third parties;
- **5.4.10** Review, assessment and stress testing of financial models provided by third parties to ensure appropriate responsiveness to these models relative to changes in market conditions over the term of any financing arrangements;
- 5.4.11 Subject matter expertise and assisting in the conduct of economic analyses for Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), at a Project and/or Portfolio-level, to determine optimum use of resources to achieve objectives, with clearly measured costs and benefits of the Project(s). As required this may include methodologies, tools and techniques to monitor the achievement of defined objectives:
- 5.4.12 Providing subject matter expertise and assisting in the conduct of socio-economic analyses for specific issues related to Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), and/or at a Project-level and/or Portfolio-level, using a variety of methodologies (e.g. opportunity cost analysis, contingent valuation analysis, avoided cost analysis, etc.);
- 5.4.13 Support in planning, conduct and reporting on assessments of performance and compliance (financial and/or contractual) related to the delivery of Contaminated Site Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects), including assistance and decision-support to NCSB in preparation for and during any reviews conducted by third parties. This may include review and assistance to NCSB in the development and implementation of refined plans and approaches for the delivery of

Contaminated Projects (including Major Mine Closure Projects) as appropriate to the results of the review:

5.4.14 Other related Services.

## S.W.6 DELIVERABLES

- 6.1 The Offeror shall provide any and all Deliverables related to the Scope of Work above, as required, and as specified in any resultant Call-up(s).
- All Deliverables shall be in hard-copy, electronic, or both, as required and as identified by the Project Authority in any resultant Call-up(s). Any and all electronic deliverables must be compatible with the departmental software standards, currently .PDF, or an appropriate MS Office 2013 (or later) format (i.e. Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Visio, or other format appropriate to the deliverable requested).
- **6.3** Details on specific Deliverables including language, subject matter, purpose, and any other relevant information will be described in any resultant Call-up.

## S.W.7 RESOURCES

## 7.1 Resources Categories

#### 7.1.1 Core Resources

For each Service Stream, Core Resources are defined as follows:

Stream 1	Stream 2	Stream 3
1C-1 Principal/Project Leader 1C-2 Senior Consultant 1C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle 1C-4 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement – OPTIONAL (where offered by the Offeror)	2C-1 Principal / Project Leader 2C-2 Senior Consultant 2C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle 2C-4 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management 2C-5 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health	3C-1 Principal/Project Leader 3C-2 Senior Consultant 3C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation – OPTIONAL (where offered by the Offeror)

#### 7.1.2 Additional Resources

For each Service Stream, Additional Resources are defined as follows:

Stream 1	Stream 2	Stream 3
----------	----------	----------

1A-1 Intermediate Consultant	2A-1 Intermediate Consultant	3A-1 Intermediate Consultant
1A-2 Junior Consultant	2A-2 Junior Consultant	3A-2 Junior Consultant
1A-3 Intermediate Subject Matter	2A-3 Intermediate Subject	3A-3 Intermediate Subject
Expert – Contaminated Site	Matter Expert – Mine	Matter Expert – Mineral
Project Lifecycle	Closure Project Lifecycle	Valuation – OPTIONAL
1A-4 Intermediate Subject Matter	2A-4 Intermediate Subject	(where offered by the
Expert – Strategic Planning,	Matter Expert – Major	Offeror)
Facilitation and	Project Management	,
Engagement – OPTIONAL	2A-5 Intermediate Subject	
(where offered by the	Matter Expert –	
Offeror)	Contaminated Site	
,	Project Control / Project	
	Health	

To supplement the Offeror's team of Core Resources, as required by CIRNAC to provide access to the necessary technical subject matter expertise to provide services under subsequent Call-ups, at CIRNAC's discretion, Additional Resources may be evaluated and qualified by CIRNAC on the basis of the minimum qualifications and Resource requirements outlined in the SOW Section 7.3. Qualification and acceptance of Additional Resources prior to or during the course of work under a Call-up does not require an amendment to the SOA and shall be evidenced by a written statement from the Project Authority.

This Additional Resource clause does not apply to the replacement or substitution of members of the Core Resources team named in the Offer to perform the Work. To replace or substitute a Core Resource team member please refer to the SOW Section 7.5 - Resource Substitution and Replacement.

#### 7.2 SOA Resource List

To ensure an adequate level of support to CIRNAC under the SOA, the Offeror shall provide CIRNAC with access to a team of Resources. The CIRNAC has authority to update and identify a specific SOA Resources List, comprised of all the Resource categories identified in the tables in the article 7.1 above, as applicable to the Service Stream(s) in the SOA.

The SOA Resource List with CIRNAC takes precedence over the category definition of the Offeror's deployed Resources, when the two are in conflict.

At any time, the numbers of Resources identified in the SOA Resource List, MUST NOT exceed the maximum numbers per Resource category defined in the following table.

Stream 1	Stream 2	Stream 3	Maximum Numbers Per Stream
1C-1 Principal/Project Leader	2C-1 Principal / Project Leader	3C-1 Principal/Project Leader	3
1C-2 Senior Consultant	2C-2 Senior Consultant	3C-2 Senior Consultant	8
1C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle 1C-4 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement – OPTIONAL	2C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle 2C-4 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management 2C-5 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control /	3C-3 Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation – OPTIONAL	maximum 8 total with the different sub-types

	Project Health		
1A-1 Intermediate Consultant	2A-1 Intermediate Consultant	3A-1 Intermediate Consultant	8
1A-2 Junior Consultant	2A-2 Junior Consultant	3A-2 Junior Consultant	8
1A-3 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert — Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle 1A-4 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert — Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement — OPTIONAL	2A-3 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle 2A-4 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management 2A-5 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health	3A-3 Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation – OPTIONAL	maximum 8 total with the different sub-types

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

As specified in any resulting Call-up(s), CIRNAC may, in its exclusive discretion, request the Offeror to provide the Services of one (1), some or all of the Resources named in its SOA Proposal (as per the SOA Resource List), or request the Offeror to offer which of its Resources will deliver the work requested. The Offeror shall determine and provide the necessary number, type(s), and seniority of Resources to complete the work under any Call-up(s) in a professional and timely manner. The Offeror shall provide the Services of qualified Resources competent in the subject matter in which they are engaged. Where required by CIRNAC, the Offeror shall provide the Services of specific named Resources.

#### 7.3 **Minimum Qualifications**

Deployed Resources shall meet the minimum requirements for the Resource category in which they are providing Services.

Note: The experience of the Additional Resources (refer to the SOW Section 7.1.2) is calculated as of the evaluation date of the Additional Resources prior to or during the course of work under a Call-up. For example, if a given requirement states "...must have experience, within the last ten (10) years", then the ten (10) year period is calculated as of the evaluation date of the Additional Resources.

## 7.3.1 Stream 1 - Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services

#### 7.3.1.1 Stream 1 - Core Resources

#### 1C-1. Principal / Project Leader

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience in a Lead role related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in S.W.5). "Lead" is defined as leading a team of multi-disciplinary resources within an operational Project environment; AND
- c) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Projects undertaken by clients or three (3) client Portfolios).

Of these work engagements:

c.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements

may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND

- c.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate a Capital Project / Portfolio for the client; AND
- c.2.2) At least two (2) work engagements must demonstrate a Mining Project / Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project/Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- c.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project/Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- c.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- c.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least five (5) of the following characteristics (c.5.1 c.5.8):
- c.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- c.5.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in c.4 above);
- c.5.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- c.5.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- c.5.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- c.5.6) the Resource's work experience reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);
- c.5.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing performance management for Project Portfolios;
- c.5.8) the Resource's experience designing and implementing risk management for Project Portfolios;

#### AND

d) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 1C-2. Senior Consultant

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Projects undertaken by clients or two (2) client Portfolios).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate a Capital Project / Portfolio for the client; AND
- b.2.2) At least two (2) work engagements must demonstrate a Mining Project / Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project/Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project/Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND

- b.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least three (3) of the following characteristics (b.5.1 b.5.8):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in b.4 above);
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.5.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.5.6) the Resource's work experience reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);
- b.5.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing performance management for Project Portfolios:
- b.5.8) the Resource's experience designing and implementing risk management for Project Portfolios;

#### **AND**

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

## 1C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Contaminated Site Projects**; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), providing Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and costing for **Contaminated Site Projects** (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) <u>distinct</u> Projects undertaken by clients).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) Each must demonstrate experience of the Resource in more than one (1) stage of the six (6) Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle stages; with experience of the Resource in all six (6) Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle stages demonstrated across the two (2) work engagements;
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples.

## AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Contaminated Site

Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to Contaminated Site Projects.

## 1C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement – OPTIONAL (where offered by the Offeror)

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience providing strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), providing strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services to support client Projects (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Projects undertaken by clients or three (3) client Portfolios).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate a Capital Project/Portfolio for the client; AND
- b.2.2) At least two (2) work engagements must demonstrate a Mining Project/Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project / Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project/Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.5.1 b.5.3):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience designing and delivering learning sessions for adults using multiple adult learning modalities;
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience in facilitation of collaborative working groups and engagement sessions, where the session demonstrably resulted in the achievement of a common understanding or outcome across diverse participant groups;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in organization-level strategic planning;

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services.

#### 7.3.1.2 Stream 1 - Additional Resources

#### 1A-1. Intermediate Consultant

- a) At least 5 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in SW 5.0); AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

The work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be ongoing provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) a Capital Project/Portfolio for the client OR a Mining Project/Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project/Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- b.3) support of a client Project/Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur Shuo Chen

#### the client: AND

- b.4) at least two (2) of the following characteristics (b.5.1 b.5.7):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants:
- b.5.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.5.6) the Resource's experience designing or implementing performance management for Project Portfolios;
- b.5.7) the Resource's experience designing or implementing risk management for Project Portfolios;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in the S.W.5).

### 1A-2. Junior Consultant

- a) At least one (1) year' demonstrated work experience related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in the S.W.5): AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), delivering services related to Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services (as defined in the S.W.5).

The work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be ongoing provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated: AND
- b.2.1) a Capital Project/Portfolio for the client OR a Mining Project/Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project/Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- b.3) support of a client Project/Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client: AND
- b.4) at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.5.1 b.5.7):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.5.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.5.6) the Resource's experience designing or implementing performance management for Project Portfolios:
- b.5.7) the Resource's experience designing or implementing risk management for Project Portfolios;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project** 

OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

## 1A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Contaminated Site Projects**; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) providing Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and costing for **Contaminated Site Projects** (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) <u>distinct</u> Projects undertaken by clients).

## Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) Each must demonstrate experience of the Resource in more than one (1) stage of the six (6) Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle stages; with experience of the Resource in all six (6) Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle stages demonstrated across the two (2) work engagements;
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, Social Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Contaminated Site Projects**.

# **1A-4.** Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement – **OPTIONAL** (where offered by the Offeror)

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience providing strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) providing strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services to support client Projects (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Projects undertaken by clients or two (2) client Portfolios).

## Of these work engagements:

- b.1) each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) at least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate a Capital Project / Portfolio for the client; AND either a Mining Project / Portfolio or Contaminated Site Project / Portfolio; where implementation work has been partially or fully completed; AND
- b.3) at least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project / Portfolio with a value of at least CAD\$20 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.4) at least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.5.1 b.5.3):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience designing and delivering learning sessions for adults using multiple adult learning modalities:

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur Shuo Chen

- b.5.2) the Resource's experience in facilitation of collaborative working groups and engagement sessions, where the session demonstrably resulted in the achievement of a common understanding or outcome across diverse participant groups;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in organization-level strategic planning;

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long strategic planning, facilitation and engagement services.

## 7.3.2 Stream 2 - Major Mine Closure Project Closure Services

7.3.2.1 Stream 2 - Core Resources

## 2C-1. Principal / Project Leader

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience in a Lead role related to Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5). "Lead" is defined as leading a team of multi-disciplinary resources within an operational Project environment: AND
- c) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Major Mine Closure Projects undertaken by clients).

Of these work engagements:

- c.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- c.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- c.2.2) The other two (2) work engagements must each demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client: AND
- c.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- c.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least four (4) of the following characteristics (c.4.1 c.4.8) and across all three (3) work engagements each of c.4.1 – c.4.8 must be demonstrated:
- c.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- c.4.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in c.3 above):
- c.4.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- c.4.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants:
- c.4.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- c.4.6) the Resource's work experience reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher):
- c.4.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;

c.4.8) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

#### AND

1000206942

d) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 2C-2. Senior Consultant

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Major Mine Closure Projects undertaken by clients).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least three (3) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.8) and across all three (3) work engagements each of b.4.1 – b.4.8 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.4.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in b.3 above):
- b.4.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.4.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government. Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants:
- b.4.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.4.6) the Resource's work experience reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);
- b.4.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;
- b.4.8) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering Major Mine Closure Project Services (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 2C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects**; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects** (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Major Mine Closure Projects undertaken by clients).

#### Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other two (2) work engagements must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.3), across all three (3) work engagements <u>each</u> of b.4.1 b.4.3 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) Planning for Mine Closure across the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle;
- b.4.2) Costing a Mine Closure Plan across the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle;
- b.4.3) Implementation of a component of the Mine Closure Plan;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects**.

## 2C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Major Project Management

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience designing and implementing Project delivery models for **Major Projects**, including experience in Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), designing and implementing Project delivery models for **Major Projects** (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) <u>distinct</u> Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects undertaken by clients).

## Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other two (2) work engagements must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with

#### Indigenous governments or peoples; AND

- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least four (4) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.8) and across all three (3) work engagements each of c.4.1 c.4.8 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.4.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in b.3 above);
- b.4.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.4.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.4.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.4.6) the Resource's work experience reporting to the senior executive level (DG or equivalent or higher);
- b.4.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;
- b.4.8) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects**.

## 2C-5. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience on Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects undertaken by clients).

## Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other two (2) work engagements must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.4), across all three (3) work engagements <u>each</u> of b.4.1 b.4.4 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project level controls;
- b.4.2) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project governance;
- b.4.3) Designing and undertaking a readiness assessment for the Project;
- b.4.4) Designing and undertaking Project health evaluation;

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to Major Mine Closure Projects.

#### 7.3.2.2 Stream 2 - Additional Resources

#### 2A-1. Intermediate Consultant

- a) At least 5 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) delivering services related to **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in SW 5.0).

The work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated: AND
- b.2.1) support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client:
- b.3) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) at least three (3) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.6):
- b.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.4.2) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.4.3) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.4.4) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- b.4.5) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;
- b.4.6) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 2A-2. Junior Consultant

- a) At least 1 year' demonstrated work experience related to **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in the S.W.5); AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) delivering services related to **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

The work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client;

- b.3) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.6):
- b.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.4.2) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.4.3) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.4.4) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- b.4.5) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;
- b.4.6) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Major Mine Closure Project Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

## 2A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mine Closure Project Lifecycle

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects**; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) as a Lead, providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects** (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) <u>distinct</u> Major Mine Closure Projects undertaken by clients).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.3), across all three (3) work engagements <u>each</u> of b.4.1 b.4.3 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) Planning for Mine Closure across the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle;
- b.4.2) Costing a Mine Closure Plan across the Mine Closure Project Lifecycle;
- b.4.3) Implementation of a component of the Mine Closure Plan;

## AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to **Major Mine Closure Projects**.

#### 2A-4. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Major Project Management

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience designing and implementing Project delivery models for Major Projects, including experience in Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), designing and implementing Project delivery models for Major Projects (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects undertaken by clients).

## Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other one (1) work engagement must demonstrate must be in support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least four (4) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.7) and across the two (2) work engagements <u>each</u> of b.4.1 b.4.7 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory;
- b.4.2) the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples (where not already considered in demonstration of the requirement for experience in one (1) work engagement as set out in b.3 above);
- b.4.3) the Resource's experience working with multiple socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.4.4) the Resource's experience working in an integrated collaborative fashion with one or more of: multiple levels of government, Authorities Having Jurisdiction, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.4.5) the Resource's work experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- b.4.6) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project performance management;
- b.4.7) the Resource's experience designing and implementing Project risk management;

#### **AND**

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Engineering, Business Administration, Environmental Sciences, Geography, Geology, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to Major Mine Closure Projects.

## 2A-5. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience on Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Mining Projects or Mine Closure Projects or Contaminated Site Projects or Infrastructure Projects undertaken by clients).

## Of these work engagements:

b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND

- b.2.1) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.2.2) The other one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a client Project with a value of at least CAD\$50 Million in Capital or liability value to the client; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples; AND
- b.4) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.4.1 b.4.4), and across the two (2) work engagements three (3) of b.4.1 b.4.4 must be demonstrated:
- b.4.1) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project level controls;
- b.4.2) Designing, implementing and evaluating Project governance;
- b.4.3) Designing and undertaking a readiness assessment for the Project;
- b.4.4) Designing and undertaking Project health evaluation;

**AND** 

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing long-term Project Lifecycle planning and implementation support to Major Mine Closure Projects.

## 7.3.3 Stream 3 – Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

7.3.3.1 Stream 3 - Core Resources

## 3C-1. Principal / Project Leader

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation**, **Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) leading a Portfolio of Projects or a Portfolio of horizontal initiatives; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) <u>distinct</u> Projects undertaken by clients or three (3) client Portfolios).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate insolvency of a Mining Project; AND
- b.3) Each must demonstrate the Resource's work experience in application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance; AND
- b.4) Each must demonstrate Projects involving real property and assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million; AND
- b.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least four (4) of the following characteristics (b.5.1-b.5.5):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR the Resource's experience working with multiple community or socio-economic stakeholders:
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working on integrated submissions for, or, working in an integrated manner with, one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, AHJ, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;

- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasi-judicial bodies;
- b.5.5) the Resource's experience in strategic management of Project teams;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 3C-2. Senior Consultant

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation**, **Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) leading a Portfolio of Projects or a Portfolio of horizontal initiatives; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) <u>distinct</u> Projects undertaken by clients or two (2) client Portfolios).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate insolvency of a Mining Project; AND
- b.3) Each must demonstrate the Resource's work experience in application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance; AND
- b.4) Each must demonstrate Projects involving real property and assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million; AND
- b.5) Each work engagement must demonstrate at least three (3) of the following characteristics (b.5.1-b.5.5):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR the Resource's experience working with multiple community or socio-economic stakeholders:
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working on integrated submissions for, or, working in an integrated manner with, one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, AHJ, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasi-judicial bodies;
- b.5.5) the Resource's experience in strategic management of Project teams;

## **AND**

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

## 3C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation - OPTIONAL (where offered by the Offeror)

- a) At least 15 years' demonstrated work experience in Mineral Valuation; AND
- b) At least three (3) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years as a Lead (as of the RFSO posting date, or as of the evaluation date upon Resource substitution or Replacement, as defined in the SOW Section 7.5) (\*\*i.e. in support of three (3) distinct Mineral Valuation Projects).

Of these work engagements:

- b.1) Each must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a Mineral deposit or claim with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience in market assessment of the Mineral deposit or Mineral claim associated with the real property:
- b.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Mineral commodity markets:

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, Geology, Engineering, Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing Mineral Valuation Services.

#### 7.3.3.2 Stream 3 - Additional Resources

#### 3A-1. Intermediate Consultant

- a) At least 5 years' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) leading a Portfolio of Projects or a Portfolio of horizontal initiatives; AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) to clients.

This work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be ongoing provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) insolvency of a Mining Project: AND
- b.3) the Resource's work experience in application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance; AND
- b.4) a client Project involving real property and assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million; AND
- b.5) at least two (2) of the following characteristics (b.5.1-b.5.4):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR the Resource's experience working with multiple community or socio-economic stakeholders:
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working on integrated submissions for, or, working in an integrated manner with, one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, AHJ, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;

- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations;
- b.5.4) the Resource's experience making representations to or reporting to judicial or quasi-judicial bodies;

#### AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5).

#### 3A-2. Junior Consultant

- a) At least 1 year' demonstrated work experience related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) leading a Portfolio of Projects or a Portfolio of horizontal initiatives; AND
- b) At least one (1) work engagement in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date), delivering services related to **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in the S.W.5) to clients.

This work engagement must demonstrate:

- b.1) a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months. Work engagements may be ongoing provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND
- b.2) insolvency of a Mining Project; AND
- b.3) the Resource's work experience in application for regulatory approval from AHJ OR implementation of measures to maintain regulatory compliance; AND
- b.4) a client Project involving real property and assets, with a cumulative value of at least CAD\$50 Million; AND
- b.5) at least one (1) of the following characteristics (b.5.1-b.5.4):
- b.5.1) the Resource's experience working in a Northern environment or Northern territory OR the Resource's experience working with Indigenous governments or peoples OR the Resource's experience working with multiple community or socio-economic stakeholders;
- b.5.2) the Resource's experience working on integrated submissions for, or, working in an integrated manner with, one (1) or more of the following: multiple levels of government, AHJ, regulators, combination of public and private sector participants;
- b.5.3) the Resource's experience in an operational Project environment implementing Remote logistical considerations:
- $b.5.4)\ the\ Resource's\ experience\ making\ representations\ to\ or\ reporting\ to\ judicial\ or\ quasi-judicial\ bodies;$

## AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience delivering **Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Re-commercialization Services** (as defined in SW 5.0).

## **3A-3.** Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Mineral Valuation - OPTIONAL (where offered by the Offeror)

- a) At least 10 years' demonstrated work experience in Mineral Valuation; AND
- b) At least two (2) distinct\*\* work engagements in the last 10 years (as of the evaluation date) as a Lead (\*\*i.e. in support of two (2) distinct Mineral Valuation Projects).

Of these work engagements:

b.1) One (1) must demonstrate a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of six (6) months, with

one (1) demonstrating a minimum duration of engagement of the Resource of 12 months. Work engagements may be on-going provided the minimum duration of Resource experience is demonstrated; AND

- b.2) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate support of a Mineral deposit or claim with a value of at least CAD\$100 Million; AND
- b.3) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience in market assessment of the Mineral deposit or claim associated with the real property:
- b.4) At least one (1) work engagement must demonstrate the Resource's experience working with Mineral commodity markets:

AND

c) Bachelor's degree or higher in a relevant discipline, such as but not necessarily limited to Accounting, Finance, Economics, Business Administration, Mathematics, Geology, Engineering, Science, or related discipline OR an additional three (3) years' demonstrated work experience providing Mineral Valuation Services.

## 7.4 Resource Development

CIRNAC recognizes that over the course of the SOA, Resources qualified to provide Services in one (1) of the above Resource categories at an identified level of experience may acquire additional experience and expertise in the delivery of Services.

At the conclusion of each SOA year (ending March 31), and no more frequently than **once a SOA year** thereafter, the Offeror may submit an Offer to the Project Authority of CIRNAC, to change the level of seniority for one (1) or more of the Offeror's qualified Resources to a higher level of seniority, where those Resources have acquired additional experience and expertise in their field. Any such Offer shall contain demonstration of the additional experience and expertise acquired by the Resource(s), substantiating the request to "upgrade" the Resource(s) to the next level of experience in the Resource category.

The Project Authority may, in its exclusive discretion, review the Offer and determine whether or not the Resource(s) are eligible to provide Services under the next level of Resource category. This "upgrade" is not automatic, and any determination to transfer a Resource to another level of Resource category is at CIRNAC's sole discretion, and must be evidenced by a written statement from the Project Authority and approved in signature by the Standing Offer Authority (or his authorized representative), based on the number limit per Resource category defined in the SOW Section 7.2. The SOA Resource List shall be updated accordingly.

# 7.5 Resource Substitution or Replacement

Prior to Call-up or during the course of work under any Call-up, Resource substitution or replacement may be undertaken by the Offeror only with the express and prior written approval from the Project Authority.

Call-up(s) may include the Services of Resources named within the SOA Resource List. Where CIRNAC requires the Services of specific Resources that are named within the Call-up(s), should the Offeror at any time be unable to provide the Services of the specific Resource(s), the Offeror shall notify the Project Authority, in writing, of the reason for the unavailability of the named Resource(s), and the Offeror shall be responsible for providing substitute or replacement of Resources in the same Resource category.

CIRNAC also reserves the right to direct the Offeror to undertake replacements of his or her personnel (or any subcontractors) should deployed Offeror personnel not meet CIRNAC's skills and abilities expectations.

In advance of the date upon which any substitute or replacement Resource(s) are to commence work, the Offeror shall provide to the Project Authority the name(s), date of birth, relevant security information, and detailed curriculum vitae (CV) of the qualifications and experience of the offered substitute or replacement Resource(s).

For substitute or replacement of any Resource(s), where the offered substitute or replacement Resource(s) are not in the SOA Resource List, the new Resource(s) must meet minimum qualifications, as identified in the SOW Section 7.3, associated with the Resource category in which they are offered as a replacement.

Should the offered substitute or replacement Resource(s) not meet above requirements, CIRNAC reserves the right to refuse any offered substitute or replacement Resource(s). Under no circumstances shall the Offeror allow performance of the services by substitute or replacement Resource(s) that have not been duly authorized by the Project Authority.

Qualification and acceptance of any substitute or replacement Resource(s) prior to or during the course of work under any Call-up does not require an amendment to the SOA and shall be evidenced by a written statement from the Project Authority.

For permanent substitute or replacement of any Resources within the SOA Resource List, it shall also be approved in signature by the Standing Offer Authority.

CIRNAC requires that effective and continuous control be maintained throughout the duration of any Callup authorized under the SOA. If the Offeror is required to provide substitute or replacement Resources, the Offeror shall warrant that it will provide the required support to ensure a smooth transition from one Resource to another. This may require the incumbent Resource to provide coaching and support to the replacement or substitute Resource(s) for up to five (5) days, as determined by the Project Authority, **at the sole expense of the Offeror**.

Any replacement Resource(s) or substitute approved by CIRNAC shall be available to commence work within seven (7) calendar days of the Offeror being notified by the Project Authority. The seven (7) calendar day timeline commences after the completion of CIRNAC's internal administrative processes. These internal administrative processes include, but are not necessarily limited to, review of a offered replacement's CV and overall qualifications and expertise, and completion security clearance check. CIRNAC cannot certify the length of time this process will take.

In any event that the Offeror is unable to provide the Services of qualified substitute or replacement Resource(s), CIRNAC reserves the right to cancel an existing Call-up and issue the Call-up to another qualified Offeror.

## S.W.8 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS AND QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Offeror and its deployed Resources shall possess or ensure the provision of content knowledge appropriate for the Contaminated Site and Major Mine Closure Project & Portfolio Management Support Services for the Service Stream(s) in which the Offeror is qualified, as described in all authorized Callups, and shall continuously strive to improve its methodological and practice skills.

In providing the Services as described above, the Offeror shall, at a minimum, conform to the following Performance Standards and Quality Assurance requirements:

- Efficient time management is of utmost importance to the delivery of NCSB's Projects. At the
  issuance of each Call-up, CIRNAC will establish with the Offeror a schedule of milestones and
  reporting for the work to be completed on the basis of its congruence with the conditions of the Callup. The Offeror shall deliver the Services by the deadlines established by the Project Authority, as
  specified within the Call-up. Every effort shall be made by CIRNAC to provide the Offeror with
  reasonable deadlines.
- In addition to the requirement for Contractor Performance, there is an inherent Quality Assurance Standard associated with all Call-ups. The Offeror shall apply a rigorous Quality Assurance methodology to ensure the accuracy and quality of all deliverables and services provided.

All Deliverables rendered under all Call-ups are subject to inspection by the Project Authority or a designated representative. The Project Authority reserves the right to verify the accuracy of all Deliverables.

In the event that the Offeror fails to comply with the conditions of the Call-up, and as identified in CIRNAC's review of the work, CIRNAC reserves the right to terminate the Call-up and award a Call-up to another qualified Offeror in order to complete the work.

The management by the Offeror of Service delivery to CIRNAC in relation to all authorized Call-ups shall be undertaken in accordance with all applicable Acts, Codes, Departmental and/or Federal government regulations, codes and policies as well as professional standards.

The Offeror shall ensure that all Resources deployed in the provision of services under the authorized Call-ups, including any and all sub-contractors, are properly trained and qualified to fulfill their responsibilities. In addition, the Offeror shall ensure that all deployed Resources are operating at all times in accordance with all applicable legislation, regulations, codes and policies.

It is the responsibility of the Offeror to ensure its conduct and performance is in accordance with the terms and conditions of the SOA and all authorized Call-ups, and in accordance with the *Code of Conduct for Procurement*. It is also the responsibility of the Offeror to ensure the conduct and performance of its deployed Resources are in accordance with the same.

## S.W.9 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The Offeror shall provide regular status reports, as specified in the Call-up(s), and various *ad hoc* oral status updates to the Project Authority in relation to any and all Call-up(s) issued to the Offeror.

It is the responsibility of the Offeror to facilitate and maintain regular communication with the Project Authority. In addition, the Offeror shall immediately notify the Project Authority of any issues, problems, or areas of concern that could adversely affect the ability of the Contractor to complete the work specified under any Call-up.

Any progress, *ad hoc*, or other reporting on Call-up work, including any work associated with invoicing, is considered Administrative in nature and is therefore considered to be included in the Offeror's accepted hourly rates within its accepted Basis of Payment. No Administrative costs, including invoicing preparation, progress reports on work status, or *ad hoc* reports, are considered as separate billable items.

Any written reports provided shall be in CIRNAC's standard software, and may include e-mails, MS Word, MS Excel or MS Project, as appropriate.

Additional reporting requirements will be specified in any resulting Call-up(s).

## S.W.10 RISKS AND CONSTRAINTS

Work conducted under the SOA may require the Offeror and/or the Offeror's deployed Resources to visit identified or suspected Contaminated Sites. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to consider any and all risks to health, safety, and welfare, which may be incurred in the completion of work under the SOA, as a result of visitation to Contaminated Sites.

CIRNAC also recognizes that work under the SOA may involve visits to remote locations. Visits in these areas may result in changes in climate, cost of living, service provision and accessibility, and other unforeseen changes in condition from the Offeror's and/or the Offeror's deployed Resources' initial location and residence.

CIRNAC is **NOT** responsible to recompense for personal or property injury to the Offeror or the Offeror's deployed Resources, while providing Services on behalf of CIRNAC, throughout the duration of the SOA. The Offeror is responsible for maintaining appropriate insurance coverage for the Offeror and its deployed Resources, including any sub-contractors.

Site Health and Safety at each site is typically the responsibility of a third party. When visiting a Contaminated Site, the Offeror shall ensure that its Resources (including any sub-contracted resources) comply with all applicable acts and regulations as well as any Health and Safety policies, procedures and requirements established by the party responsible for Health and Safety at each site. Should the Offeror determine that additional Health and Safety measures are required to ensure the safety of its personnel,

.....

the Offeror shall implement such measures while respecting the policies, procedures and requirements in place at the site(s).

Each NCSB project is a complex undertaking with multiple parties supporting the successful delivery of the project. The Offeror shall work in a professional and cooperative manner with representatives from all levels of government, Indigenous peoples and organizations, other contractors, and regulatory and oversight agencies in the completion of its work. In initiating and managing relations between parties as required in the course of its work, the Offeror shall work with the Project Authority (or designate) to establish and implement procedures to ensure the sound management of its work activities requiring interaction with other parties.

Where Services include the provision of expert advice or opinion to CIRNAC, the Offeror, and all deployed Resources under any resulting Call-up(s), must be free of actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest in relation to the particular issue on which the advice or opinion is provided. To support this, the Offeror and all Resources shall confirm to the Project Authority prior to accepting any Call-up for such matters and shall regularly report during the course of any authorized Call-up any parties with whom the Offeror and its Resources have worked in the previous year; to support CIRNAC's review and determination of the Offeror's and the Resource's conflict(s) of interest, if any.

# S.W.11 OFFEROR RESPONSIBILITIES

In fulfilling the terms and conditions of the SOA, the Offeror agrees to:

- Provide a mutually agreed-upon principal Point of Contact for the Offeror, who will be actively involved in, and responsible for, all activities undertaken by the Offeror's Resource(s);
- Confirm with the Project Authority, in writing, the receipt and successful completion of all Call-up requests;
- Provide a work plan and schedule prior to the commencement of work on each Call-up, as required;
- Work in conjunction and close contact with CIRNAC personnel and other contractors and ensure that CIRNAC personnel are acquiring appropriate expertise and knowledge transfer from the Offeror and its deployed Resources:
- Complete assigned work according to pre-defined schedules and standards;
- Provide Quality Assurance monitoring on all deliverables; and
- As required, liaise with the Project Authority and any stakeholders identified by the Project Authority for meetings, project reviews and other related project management activities.

## S.W.12 GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE AND SUPPORT

CIRNAC will provide the Offeror with the Call-up documents, which will contain at a minimum, a description of the requirement, and the specific Resource categories and/or named Resources required to undertake the project. The Project Authority will be named in individual Call-up document(s). Alternative representatives will be made available in the event that the named Project Authority is not available.

CIRNAC will provide the following to the Offeror, as required for the completion of the work under this SOA and any resulting Call-up(s):

- A "Letter of Introduction" for presentation to Departmental staff and/or other parties in order to:
  - a) Identify themselves as an Offeror authorized to provide services on behalf of the Department; and
  - b) Gain access to and/or collect information, and/or to conduct discussions regarding any contract work being conducted on behalf of the Department;
- Permission for the Offeror to be on CIRNAC premises to review Departmental files and records which cannot be removed from the office;
- Access to research databases and appropriate Departmental personnel and subject matter experts from within the organization to discuss and provide content material;
- Review of reports/submissions and the provision of comments/suggested revisions, in a timely manner; and

• Any other information, data and/or assistance, which is not readily available to the Offeror, and is required to complete the tasks and deliverables described in a Call-up(s).

CIRNAC will monitor the Offeror on-going service delivery by conducting review meetings with the Offeror on an as-and-when-required basis, to monitor progress, as well as to exchange information relevant to chronic problem areas, action plans, and pending planning activity.

## S.W.13 LOCATION OF WORK AND TRAVEL

It is anticipated that the majority of the work will be delivered to the NCSB's headquarters in Gatineau, Quebec in NCR, with some work at the Offeror's place of business.

Notwithstanding the above, CIRNAC anticipates some on-site work at NCSB's Regional offices and/or visits to related Contaminated Sites. In the event of delivery to a Regional office or Contaminated Site, Call-ups may request specific approaches to incorporation of Indigenous Opportunity considerations (e.g. training, capacity building, contract, and supply/service opportunities) for the particular work package.

When required, Offerors are responsible for all costs related to their own and their Resources' personal expenses, including the cost of travel between their place of business and NCSB headquarters, regardless of the location of the Resources conducting the work. No expenses will be reimbursed for any required travel between NCSB headquarters and the Offeror's place of business.

Where CIRNAC requires work to be conducted at other locations, including NCSB's Regional offices, a particular Contaminated Site in the North, and/or anywhere else in Canada, the Offeror's Resources shall travel, as required and as authorized by CIRNAC to conduct the work. The Project Authority will issue a specific authorization to travel, including specific travel parameters, dates and location(s). The Offeror shall submit travel estimates for pre-approval. **Any travel must be pre-authorized (in writing) in advance by the Project Authority** and undertaken in accordance with the Travel Directive (<a href="https://www.njc-cnm.gc.ca/directive/d10/en">https://www.njc-cnm.gc.ca/directive/d10/en</a>). Offerors will be reimbursed only for previously authorized travel, accommodation and associated allowable expenses, in accordance with Travel Directive.

Some of the locations in which the Offeror may be required to perform work or deliver Services are within areas covered by Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs). These include, but are not necessarily limited to:

Location	Related CLCA(s)
British Columbia	Maa-nulth Final Agreement
	Nisga'a Final Agreement
	Tsawwassen First Nation Final Agreement
Newfoundland and Labrador	Labrador Inuit Final Agreement
Northwest	Gwich'in Final Agreement
Territories	Inuvialuit Final Agreement
	Sahtu Dene and Metis Comprehensive Land Claims Agreement
	T'licho Agreement
Nunavut	Nunavik Inuit Final Agreement
	Nunavut Land Claims Agreement
Québec	Eeyou Marine Region Agreement
	James Bay and Northern Québec Agreement
	Northeastern Québec Agreement
	Nunavik Inuit Final Agreement
Yukon	Several agreements pursuant to the Yukon Umbrella Final
	Agreement; these include but are not limited to:
	Carcross/Tagish First Nation Final Agreement;
	Champagne and Aishihik First Nation Final Agreement;
	Kluane First Nation Final Agreement;
	Kwanlin Dun First Nation Final Agreement;
	Little Salmon / Carmacks First Nation Final Agreement;

1000206942 Shuo Chen

Location	Related CLCA(s)
	First Nation of Nacho Nyak Dun Final Agreement;
	Selkirk First Nation Final Agreement;
	Ta'an Kwach'an Council Final Agreement;
	Teslin Tlingit Council Final Agreement;
	Tr'ondëk Hwëch'in final Agreement; or
	Vuntut Gwitchin First Nation Final Agreement.
	as specified in any resulting Call-up.

Any specific CLCA(s) applicable to any resultant Call-up(s), and any requirements with regard to the Resource's work related to applicable CLCA(s), will be identified in the applicable Call-up(s).

### S.W.14 LANGUAGE OF WORK

As a Department of the federal government, CIRNAC is required under the Official Languages Act to provide its services in either Official Language of Canada. The Offeror shall ensure that all verbal and written communication with the Department is in English, at a minimum. The language of all written Deliverables shall be English, at a minimum.

# S.W.15 CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-DISCLOSURE

The Offeror and its Resources shall keep in confidence and not use or disclose without the express written instruction of the Project Authority, any proprietary or confidential information obtained in the course of its work. This information includes any business confidential information contained within Contaminated Site Project or Major Mine Closure Project, Offers, contracts, work plans and deliverables, and also includes any information discovered as part of any audit, evaluation or review of internal business processes.

The Offeror must obtain written permission from the Project Authority prior to the use of any NCSB materials and knowledge gained from NCSB projects in the Offeror's other work or business, including presentation at conferences.

As required, prior to commencement of work under any resultant Call-up(s), the Offeror and all deployed Resources shall sign non-disclosure agreements and conflict of interest certifications in relation to all project work undertaken, as well as in relation to CIRNAC and any other contractors or sub-contractors involved with the related project.

All non-disclosure agreements and conflict of interest certifications will remain valid at least for a period equal to the length of the project, or longer, as indicated in the related document.

# ANNEX "B" - BASIS OF PAYMENT

As per the rates in the following tables (per Service Stream), the Offeror will be reimbursed for the costs reasonably and properly incurred in the performance of the Work as determined in the Annex "A" - Statement of Work, to a limitation of expenditure of \$\_\_\_\_\_\_ (applicable taxes are extra). Any amounts for taxes will be added at time of each Call-up award.

Initial Period: Standing Offer Award to March 31, 2022 inclusive

Option Year 1: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 inclusive Option Year 2: April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 inclusive

# Stream 1: Contaminated Site Project Portfolio Services

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2)
	1C-1. Principal / Project Leader			
	1C-2. Senior Consultant			
Core	1C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle			
	1C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement (OPTIONAL)			
	1A-1. Intermediate Consultant			
	1A-2. Junior Consultant			
Additional	1A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Lifecycle			
Ac	1A-4. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert – Strategic Planning, Facilitation and Engagement (OPTIONAL)			

## **Stream 2: Major Mine Closure Project Services**

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2)
	2C-1. Principal / Project Leader			
	2C-2. Senior Consultant			
Core	2C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Mine Closure Project Lifecycle			
ŭ	2C-4. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Major Project Management			
	2C-5. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health			

nal	2A-1. Intermediate Consultant		
	2A-2. Junior Consultant		
	2A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Mine Closure Project Lifecycle		
Additiona	2A-4. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Major Project Management		
	2A-5. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Contaminated Site Project Control / Project Health		

# Stream 3: Contaminated Site Project Valuation, Insolvency Management and Recommercialization Services

	RESOURCE	Per-hour Rate (Initial Period)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 1)	Per-hour Rate (Option Year 2)
	3C-1. Principal / Project Leader			
Core	3C-2. Senior Consultant			
ŏ	3C-3. Senior Subject Matter Expert - Mineral Valuation (OPTIONAL)			
	3A-1. Intermediate Consultant			
onal	3A-2. Junior Consultant			
Additional	3A-3. Intermediate Subject Matter Expert - Mineral Valuation (OPTIONAL)			

# ANNEX "C" - SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST (SRCL)

Développement du Nord	Canada Northern Devel	irs and lopment Canada		Ontract Number	0694	2	
LIST	SECURITY TE DE VÉRIFICATION DI	REQUIREMENTS CHEC ES EXIGENCES RELATI	K LIST (SRCL) IVES À LA SÉCURITI	É (LVERS)	The second second second		
elektrik in transport	to the group of the second	J. 3. 10 . 12 ( 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.					
Branch / Sector / Directorate / Rep Direction générale / Secteur / Direction de la contraction de	pion /	2. Contract type /	Type de contrat				
Northern Contaminated Sites I	Branch	Non-Competitive	Non-compétifirir 🔲		tive / Compé		
3 Brief Description of Work / Breve de - Standing Offer Agreements. This SI - Stream 1 - 5.2.1 to 5.2.4; 5.2 Stream 2 - 5.3.2 to 5.3.3 - Stream 3 - 5.4.1 to 5.4.15	escription du travail: Cor RCL will be applicable to 1 2.10 b); 5.2.11 to 5.2.14		r Mine Closure Project 5.0 Scope of Work	8 Portfolio Ma	anagement S	upport	Servi
4. Contract Amount / Montant du contr	at TBD	6 Company No.					
5. Contract Start and End date / Date of Upon SOA Award to	de début et de fin du cont	adresse de la com	and Address (for nor pagnie (pour les confr	rats non-compé	ontract only) Hitifs seuleme	/ Nom ( ent) :	et
			-			-	-
7. Witi the supplier require / Le fournis							
7.1 access to PROTECTED and access à des renseignements 7.2 an access card to AANDC pr	ou a des biens désignés	ion or assets? PROTÉGÉS et/ou CLAS	SSIFIÉS?		☐ No Nor		Ye Ou
besoin d'une carte d'accès a	remises? iux bureaux d'AADNC?				⊠ No		Ye
7.3 access to the departmental of access au réseau informatique	computer network? e du Ministère?				Non	П	Ou Ye
(If the enswer is No to all three o		Si la cinanza ant tino			Alan		Ou
		Ci la reponse est reon		alloz à la Parti	o D)		
Will the supplier be required to receiv Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de recev	ve/store PROTECTED and roir /entreposer sur place	ges initiagidualitatidableu	S PROTEGES evou C	LASSIFIES?	□ No Non	Ø	Yes
Will the supplier be required to receive Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de receive NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mill 1 Will the supplier be required to use information?	ve/store PROTECTED and oir /entreposer sur place:  EDIA / SUPPORT Rilits computers, portable m	d/or CLASSIFIED informates renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLO edia, or IT systems to ele	OGIE DE L'INFORMA	TION (TI)	No Non	⊠ ⊠	Oui
Will the supplier be required to receive the tour sera-4-litenu de racevier ORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) MI 1 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-1-litenu d'utilitée électroniquement des renseignement 2 Will the surplier be required tour le control des renseignements and le contro	ve/store PROTECTED an ook /entreposer sur place EDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m of ses propres ordinateurs his sensibles?	d'or CLASSIFIED informi des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLO edia, or IT systems to ele , médias portatifs ou syst	S PROTEGES EVOU C DGIE DE L'INFORMA ictronically process/sto èmes TI pour traiter/su	ZASSIFIÉS? TION (TI) pre sensitive	Non Non Non		Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to receive Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de receve NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mill 1 Will the supplier be required to use information? Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utities électroniquement des renseignement des renseignement.	ve/store PROTECTED an ook /entreposer sur place EDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m of ses propres ordinateurs his sensibles?	d'or CLASSIFIED informi des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLO edia, or IT systems to ele , médias portatifs ou syst	S PROTEGES EVOU C DGIE DE L'INFORMA ictronically process/sto èmes TI pour traiter/su	ZASSIFIÉS? TION (TI) pre sensitive	Non Non	×	Yes
Will be supplier be required to receive the foundation of the commission services the foundation of the commission of th	ve/store PROTECTED and over/store PROTECTED and DEDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable me or ses propres ordinateurs the sensibles? prontcally transmit sensitive remediates?	dor CLASSIFIED Informa- des renseignements/bien- ELATIF À LA TECHNOLI edia, or IT systems to ele information to/from the information sensibility of the trans- tit de l'information sensibility.	a PMOTEGES evou C DGIE DE L'INFORMA ictronically process/sic èmes TI pour traiter/si èmes TI pour traiter/si	TION (II)  ore sensitive locker  ther parties?	Non Non Non Non	×	Yes Oui Yes
Will the supplier be required to receit Le fournisseur sera-l-il tenu de moev Le fournisseur sera-l-il tenu de moev Le fournisseur sera-l-il tenu de use information?  1 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-l-il tenu d'utilise électroniquement des massignames électroniquement des massignames électroniquement des massignames électroniquement avan-l-il requis de trait d'autres parties?  If yes, specify: / Si oul. spécifiez:  a) Email transmission / Transmist b) Other transmission (Secure FT	ve/store PROTECTED and oir /entreposer sur place - EDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m or ses propres ordinateurs tes sensibles - pronically transmit sensitive remaining transmit sensitive production of the computer production of production of production of prod	dor CLASSIFIED Information does rensedgmented by the CLATIF A LA TECHNOLO edia. or IT systems to elect medias portatifs ou system information to/from the information sensibility of the CLATIFIC edition. The clate transmission (FTP settlements) and the clate transmission (FTP settlements).	OGIE DE L'INFORMA ctronically processiste èmes TI pour traiterial Department or with of e au/á partir du Minist  curisé, collaboration.	TION (II)  ore sensitive locker  ther parties?  ère ou avec	Non Non Non Non	⊠ ⊠	Yes Qui Yes Qui
Will the supplier be required to receit Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de racev IFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mil Will the supplier be required to use information? Le fournisseur sera-t-il renu d'utilise électroniquement des renseignemes 2 Will the supplier be required to elect Le fournisseur sera-t-il requis de tre d'autres parier if yes, specify; / Si out, spécifiez :  a) Email transmission / Transmist b) Other transmission / Gecure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Citris):	ve/store PROTECTED an oir /entreposer sur place or Tentreposer sur place or EDNA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m or ses propres ordinateurs its sensibles? pronically transmit sensitive insmettre électroniquement electroniquement electroniquement p. Collaboration, etc.) / Au NDC network (VPN, Citrix NDC network NDC networ	d'or CLASSIFIED informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLI edia, or IT systems to ele médias portables ou syst e information to/from the ni de l'information sensibil que : dre transmission (FTP sé )/ Besoin de connexion (	OGIE DE L'INFORMA ctronically processiste èmes TI pour traiterial Department or with of e au/á partir du Minist  curisé, collaboration.	TION (II)  ore sensitive locker  ther parties?  ère ou avec	Non Non Non Non Non Non Non Non	⊠ ⊠	Yes Qui Yes Qui Yes
Will the supplier be required to receit Le tournisseur sera-t-it tenu de racev Le tournisseur sera-t-it tenu de racev PORTMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mil 1 Will the supplier be required to use information? 2 Will the supplier be required to detect Le fournisseur sera-t-it requis de tra d'eutres parties? If yes, specify; / Si oul, spécifiez; e) Email transmission / Transmiet b) Other transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Cirita); 3 Will the supplier be required to safe; Le fournisseur sera-t-it ferm de prote Le fournisseur sera-t-it ferm de prote	versitore PROTECTED an oir femineposer sur place - EDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m r ses propres ordinateurs respectively be pronically transmit sensitive pronically transmit sensitive pronically pronicall	dor CLASSIFIED Information and a recommendation of the commentation of the commentatio	a PROTECTS ellou C DGE DE L'INFORMA cironically process/asi èmes TI pour trailer/asi Department or with of e au/a partir du Minist uurisé, collaboration, d'étance au réseau d	TION (TI)  ore sensitive locker her parties? etre ou avec	Non		Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to recein Le fournisseur sera-l-li tenu de moev IFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mil I Will the supplier be required to use information? Le fournisseur sera-l-li tenu d'utilise decurroniquement des renseigname 2 Will the supplier be required to elect Le fournisseur sera-l-li requis de tre d'autres partier 3 Pil yes, specify; / Si oul. spécifiez :  a) Email transmission / Transmiss b) Other transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to Aul (VPN, Cirix): 3 Will the supplier be required to safe; Le fournisseur sera-l-li from de prote l-landling expirement and massive pro-	ve/store PROTECTED and our // introposer sur place or // SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m or see propres ordinateurs in seansibles; promoted by transmit sensibles; promoted by transmit s	d'or CLASSIFIED informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLI edia, or IT systems to ele médias portatés ou syst e information to/from the ni de l'information sensibil que . dre transmission (FTP et ) / Besoin de connexion ( ion or assets? ou des biens COMSEC**	a PROTECTS ellou C COGNE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/sit èmes TI pour trailer/si Department or with or e auté partir du Minist curisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d	TION (TI)  ore sensitive locker her parties? etre ou avec	Non		Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to receit Le tournisseur sera-t-il tenu de moev NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) MI Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utilése descrivoriquement des renseignames descrivoriquement des renseignames descrivoriquement des renseignames de transpart de la contresseur sera-t-il requis de transpart de	ve/store PROTECTED and out // entreposer sur place out // entreposer e	d'or CLASSIFIED informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOLI edia, or IT systems to ele médias portatés ou syst e information to/from the ni de l'information sensibil que . dre transmission (FTP et ) / Besoin de connexion ( ion or assets? ou des biens COMSEC**	a PROTECTS ellou C COGNE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/sit èmes TI pour trailer/si Department or with or e auté partir du Minist curisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d	TION (TI)  ore sensitive locker her parties? etre ou avec	Non		Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will be supplier be required to receive the commisseur sera-t-il tenu de moeve the footheast sera-t-il tenu de moeve the commisseur sera-t-il tenu de uniformation?  1 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utilise décorroniquement des renseignement des renseignement des renseignement des renseignements d'autres parties?  If yes, specify: / Si oul, spécifiez:  a) Email transmission / Transmist d'autres parties?  b) Other transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Citris):  3 Will the supplier be required to safet the fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de proté ransmisseur sera-t-i	versione PROTECTED and one relationship of the	d'or CLASSIFIED informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOL ( edia, or IT systems to ele  infedias portatés ou syst  e information to/from the  internation to/from to/f	or PROTECTS ellou C DOBE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/six èmes TI pour trailer/six Department or with of a use partir du Minist curisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d copieur sécure J secure fau/phone y M écopieur sécure J course de la course	TION (TI)  THE SENSIFIES?  TION (TI)  THE SENSIFIES  THE PARTIES  THE	Non	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to recein Le fournisseur sera-l-til tenu de moev IFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) MI I Will the supplier be required to use information? Le fournisseur sera-l-til tenu d'utilése decurroniquement des renseignemen descritoniquement des renseignemen 2 Will the supplier be required to elect Le fournisseur sera-l-til requis de tra d'autres parties  a) Email transmission / Transmier b) Other transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Cirix):  3 Will the supplier be required to asieq Le fournisseur sera-l-til tonu de prote Handling equipment and measures for mesures sécuritaires pour fin de trans mesures sécuritaires pour fin de trans Casgooy Catégore	versione PROTECTED and one relationship of the	d'or CLASSIFIED informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOL ( edia. or IT systems lo ele infedias portatés ou systemis de l'information to/from the inde l'information sensibilité de l'information sensibilité de l'information sensibilité de l'information sensibilité de l'information (FTP sé l'information de Connexion (FTP sé l'information de Connexion de Connexion de l'information	a PROTECTS ellou C DORE DE L'INFORMA corronically process/six émes TI pour traiter/six Department or with of e au/a partir du Minist curisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d correct de l'autorité de	ZASSIFIES? TION (T) pre sensitive locker her parties? ère ou avec etc): I AADNC	Non	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to receive the formatiseur sera-t-literor de moeve the formatiseur sera-t-literor de moeve the formatiseur sera-t-literor de un sera-t-literor de moeve dectroniquement des renseignaments des r	ve/store PROTECTED and out // surpose sur place.  EDIA / SUPPORT RI  its computers, portable miles sensibles?  pronically transmit sensitive resembles sensibles?  pronically transmit sensitive produced by transmit sensitive electroniquement e	dor CLASSIFIED Information des renseignements/siemete.  ELATIF À LA TECHNOLI edia, or IT systems to ele edia, or IT systems to ele infedias portatés ou syst e information to/from the inde l'information sensibil de l'information sensibil que :  (re transmission (FTP sé )/ Besoin de connexion ( sion or assets?  ou des biens COMSEC* emission (cytytographic, photecteo / Motrecé  A B C	OGE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/ati êmes Ti pour trailer/at êmes Ti pour trailer/at Department or with of e au/é partir du Minist  curisé, collaboration, d distance au réseau d  distance au réseau d  copérigner séoure  COMERDIATION  C	TION (TI)  THE SENSIFIES?  TION (TI)  THE SENSIFIES  THE PARTIES  THE	Non	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to receit Let fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de moev NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mill the supplier be required to use information?  1 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utilise électroniquement des renseignement des renseignement des renseignements deutres parties?  If yes, specify; / Si ou, spécifiez:  a) Email transmission / Transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Cirris);  3 Will the supplier be required to safet Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de proté Handling equipment and measures securitées pour fin des transmission (Secure FT C) Remote access required to safet Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de proté Handling equipment and measures securitées pour fin des sera le fournisseur s	ve/store PROTECTED an over // femitreposer sur place -  EDIA / SUPPORT RI  is computers, portable m  if see propres ordinateurs  its sensibles* -  ir ses propres ordinateurs  its sensibles* -  ir oncally transmit sensitiv  sensitire électroniquemer  selon par courrier électroniquemer  per collaboration, etc.) / Au  NDC network (VPN, Citrix  NDC network (VPN, Citrix  pour de renseignements  in secure transmission and  ministion et émissions (cry  CCAPITULATIF   Pressar roite à question  7.1  g   g   g   g   g   g   g   g   g   g	dor CLASSIFIED Inform des renseignements/bien ELATIF A LA TECHNOLd edia. or IT systems to ele . médias portatés ou syst e information to/from the ni de l'information sensibil  que .  tre transmission (FTP sé )/ Besoin de connexion / information or assets? ou des biens COMSEC**  emission (cryptographic, ptographie, téléphonertés  PROTECTEC / PROTEGE  A B C	or PROTECTS ellou C DOBE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/six èmes TI pour trailer/six Department or with of a use partir du Minist curisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d copieur sécure J secure fau/phone y M écopieur sécure J course de la course	ZASSIFIES? TION (T) pre-sensitive locker her parties? ère ou avec lick): I'AADNC lanipulation de	Non	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui
Will the supplier be required to receit Let fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de moev NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mill the supplier be required to use information?  1 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utilise électroniquement des renseignement des renseignement des renseignements deutres parties?  If yes, specify; / Si ou, spécifiez:  a) Email transmission / Transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Cirris);  3 Will the supplier be required to safet Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de proté Handling equipment and measures securitées pour fin des transmission (Secure FT C) Remote access required to safet Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de proté Handling equipment and measures securitées pour fin des sera le fournisseur s	ve/store PROTECTED an oir /entreposer sur place -  EDIA / SUPPORT RI  its computers, portable m  r ses propres ordinateurs  its sensables?  venically transmit sensitiv  rasmatine électroniquemer  solon par courrier électroniquemer  p. Collaboration, etc.) / Au.  NDC network (VPN, Citrix  pued COMSEC' informati  ger des renseignements or  secure transmission and  ministion et émissions (cry  CAPITULATIF  Please rote le questron   Vendes vour etieur à la  quasion  2 8	dor CLASSIFIED Inform des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOL( edia, or IT systems to ele médias portatifs ou syst e information to/from the inder l'information sensibil  tre transmission (FTP sé )/ Besoin de connession ( information sensibil  province de connession ( information de connession ( informa	OGIE DE L'INFORMA coronically process/six demes TI pour trailer/six demes TI pour trailer/six Department or with of e au/8 partir du Minist  curisé, collaboration, didatance au réseau d distance au réseau d copieur sécure	ZASSIFIES? TION (TI) pre sensitive locker her parbes? ere ou avec eic): JAADNC lanipulabon de SECRET	Non	⊠ ⊠ ⊠ ⊠ □ □ et des	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes
Will the supplier be required to receive Let our insection sera-l-d tenu de receive Let our insection?  1.3 Will the supplier be required to use information?  2. Will the supplier be required to elect determine the serament des renseignements de use de transmission of the serament of autres parties?  If yes, specify: / Si oul, spécifiez:  a) Email transmission / Transmist b) Other transmission (Secure FT c) Remote access required to AAI (VPN, Citris):  3. Will the supplier be required to safe; Le fournisseur sera-l-til tenu de proté handling equipment and measures for measures sécuritaires pour fin de transmissions.  SUMMARY CHART / TABLEAU RE letters a securitaires pour fin de transmissions des missions des des letters de l'acceptance de l'acceptance des des l'acceptances des l'acceptance	ve/store PROTECTED an oir /entreposer sur place.  EDIA / SUPPORT RI its computers, portable m of seprending sur place of seprending services and sensibles of seprending services and sensibles sensibles remained by transmit sensitive discrimination of section of se	d'or CLASSIFIED Informides renseignements/bien des renseignements/bien ELATIF À LA TECHNOL ( edia. or IT systems lo ele infection de l'information to/from the inde l'information sensibil de l'information sensibil de l'information sensibil de l'information (FTP sé l') Besoin de connexion (FTP sé l') Besoin de connexion (FTP sé l') Besoin de connexion (GYPOSEC**  emission (GYPOSTED** PROTECÉ A B C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	OGIE DE L'INFORMA cotronically processivat èmes TI pour trailerist èmes TI pour trailerist Department or with of e aufé partir du Minist  curisé, collaboration, d distance au réseau d  consequer fau/phone) M  copieur sécure	ASSIFIES? TION (TI) are sensitive locker her parties? etc.): IAADNC  ASSIFIED: CLASSIS SECRE1	Non	⊠ ⊠ ⊠ ⊠ ⊠ Get dees	Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes
Will the supplier be required to receive Le fournisseur sera-l-d tenu de receve InfoRMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) Mill 1-3 Will the supplier be required to use information?  Le fournisseur sera-l-d tenu d'utilises électroniquement des renseignement des renseignements des	ve/store PROTECTED an over / family posses are place - coir / amtreposer sur ses propres ordinateurs - les sensibles? Prontally transmit sensibles? Prontally transmit sensibles? Prontally transmit selectroniquemer - dectroniquemer - dectroniquement - dectronique	dor CLASSIFIED Inform des renseignementszie ELATIF A LA TECHNOLL edia, or IT systems to ele in médias portaéts ou syst e information to/from the it de l'information sensibil tre transmission (FTP sé )/ Besoin de connexion ( ion or assets? ou des biens COMSEC** emission (cryptographic, ptographie, 184phonaftál  PROTECTED / PROTEGÉ A B C	OGE DE L'INFORMA cotronically process/aix dimens TI pour trailer/aix demes TI pour trailer/aix Department or with of e au/8 partir du Minus  Courisé, collaboration, a distance au réseau d  courisé, collaboration, courisé, collaboration, courisé, collaboration, distance au réseau d  courisé, collaboration, courisé, collaboration, distance au réseau d  courisé, collaboration, courisé, collaboration, distance au réseau d  courisé, collaboration, d  cou	ASSIFIES? TION (TI) are sensitive locker her parties? etc.): IAADNC  ASSIFIED: CLASSIS SECRE1	Non		Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui Yes Oui

NCR#11166579 - v1

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

		Grunness -		3 2,50 2				
	100	of Canada du Canada	ont			Co	1000206	1
						Security	Classification / Classif	742 lication de sécurité
								· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	11.1 Personnel Security S	creening Level Repulment	□ N/A	. 67				7
	Avena a endrese pe	ie securité du personnel req	uis: Non requ		Confidential Confidential		Très secret	- F
	Do personner spirit St	sonnel be used for portions o utorisation securitaire peut-il	se voir confier des p		☐ No Non	Yes Oui	N/A / Non requis	
	12. Will the documentation La documentation asso	attached to this SRCL be Pocide à le présente LVERS :	ROTECTED and/or lera-t-alie PROTÉGE	CLASSIFIED? ÉE et/ou CLASSIFIÉE?	No Non	Oui Yes	7	
PART D - AL	JTHORIZATION / PAR	TIE D - AUTORISAT	ION					
is. Organiza	tion Project Authority /	Chargé de projet de l'	organisme			7		
vame (print)	- Nom (en lettres moul	ées)	Title - Titre		E .	Signature		
	o N° de téléphone	Facsimile No N° (		E-mail address	- Adresse cour	riel	Date	
4. Organizat	tion Security Authority	Responsable de la se	écurité de l'orga	nisme				
Name (print)	- Nom (en lettres moule	ées)	Title - Titre		₹: -	Signature		
elephone No	o N° de téléphone	Facsimile No N° d	le télécopieur	E-mail address -	Adresse cour	riel	Date	
5. Are there	additional instructions	(e.a. Security Guide, 9	Consider Classific					*
	ooppionionane.	s (p. ex. Guide de sec	urité, Guide de d	dassification de la	ched? sécurité) sont	-elles jointes	?	No YE
lame (print) -	ent Officer / Agent d'ap Nom (en lettres moulé	provisionnement es)	Title - Titre	2 P	1	Signature		
		*7						
	N° de téléphone	Facsimile No N° d		E-mail address	- Adresse cou	rriel	Date	
ame (print)	g Security Authority / A	autorité contractante en	n matière de séc	curité				
ottie (hillit) -	Nom (en lettres moulé	es)	Title - Titre		1	Signature		
elenhone No	- N° de téléphone	St. N.			- F	Saumur,	Jacques 0	itally signed by Saumur, Jacques 0 C=CA, 0=GC, 0u=PWGSC-TPSGC, Gaumur, Jacques 0 er 2017 02:02 11:38:22 -05'00'
siehuoue 140	- N de telephone	Facsimile No N° de	e télécopieur	E-mail address	- Adresse cour	riel	Date	
acques Saun ontract Secu		(0.0.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1				5 282		
ublic Service	rity Program Programn s and Procurement Ca	ne de sécurité des con nadal Services publics	itrats / s et Approvisions	nement Canada				
elephone   Te	nur@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca éléphone 613-948-1732 écopieur 613-948-1712	a 2		9				
		i u v						

Notes: this signature page will be updated upon SOA award.

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité

# ANNEX "D" - Security Safeguarding Requirements

Contractor Name

As per upcoming Standing Offer

Agreement

Contract Number RFSO - 1000206942

Document Number: 11200173

Date: April 11, 2019

1. Security Clauses

# Pursuant to the Policy Government Security, the nature of the services to be provided under this Standing Offer Agreement requires a Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening action at the Reliability Status level for the Contractor, their resources and sub-contractors to be assigned to conduct the work.

- Prior to the commencement of the work, the Contractor and each of their resources involved in the call-up must each hold a valid Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening at the level of Reliability Status.
- 3) The Contractor and its personnel requiring access to **PROTECTED** information, assets or sensitive work site(s) must each hold a valid Security Screening at the level of **Reliability Status**.
- 4) The Contractor MUST NOT remove any **PROTECTED** information from the identified work site(s), and the Contractor must ensure that its personnel are made aware of and comply with this restriction.
- 5) The Contractor MUST NOT possess or safeguard **PROTECTED** information/assets at their organization's premises until appropriate document safeguarding capability is authorized by the Department of Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC).
- 6) Subcontracts which contain security requirements are not to be awarded without the prior written permission of the department's Security and Accommodation Division.
- 7) Any substitute or alternate resource proposed for the call-up:
  - a. must be approved by the Departmental Representative; and
  - b. must hold a valid Government of Canada (GoC) Security Screening at the level of **Reliability Status** before gaining access to designated information or assets.
- 8) Under the Standing Offer Agreement, if a Contractor submits a resource who is subsequently found to not meet the Security requirements, the Department may immediately terminate the call-up with no obligation to replace the resource with a resource from the same Contractor or to pay any invoice for work undertaken by this resource.
- 9) Any call-up issued against this Standing Offer Agreement only has force or effect for as long as the security screening at the level of **Reliability Status** is in effect. Should the security screening issued prior to the commencement of the work be revoked during the lifetime of the call-up, the call-up shall be terminated immediately and the Contractor shall have no claim against Her Majesty or the Minister as a result of the termination. The Contractor shall be paid for satisfactory Work performed up to the time of termination pursuant to the terms of the Standing Offer Agreement.
- 10) The Contractor must comply with the provisions of the:
  - a. Security clauses and requirements (attached hereto as Annex \_); and
  - b. Policy Government Security (Latest Edition)

## 2. Physical Security Transportation and Safeguard Requirements

It is important to properly store and transmit sensitive information. This will assist in reducing the risk of unauthorized access, disclosure or compromise of protected information.

# 2.1 Work Location:

Street Number / Street Name, Unit / Suite / Apartment Number City, Province, Territory / State Postal Code / Zip Code Country

2.2 Physical Safeguards:

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur Shuo Chen

The contractor is allowed to safeguard Protected documents at the location stated above. The Protected documents must be safeguarded in a locked security container with access restricted to the contractor only:

	Protected A	Protected B
Container	Key locked container	Dial lock container
Facility	Restricted access room within office/home	Restricted access room within office/home

#### **Definitions:**

<u>Protected information</u>: Information for which unauthorized disclosure, destruction, interruption, removal or modification could reasonably be expected to cause injury to an individual, organization or government which lies outside the national interest.

<u>Protected A</u>: Could cause injury. A few examples: Personal data such as names, birth dates, home address and telephone number, linguistic profiles, salary figures, Social Insurance Numbers.

<u>Protected B</u>: Could cause serious injury. A few examples: Several Protected A information when compiled in an employee file, business or client information such as: commercial financial, scientific, or technical information, loss of competitive advantage, legal opinion, medical record.

# 2.3 Transportation

# 2.3.1 Physical Transportation of Paper Records:

- Protected documents must be securely packaged in folders carried in an approved locked briefcase.
- Sensitive paper records and removable media must be kept under the constant control of the contractor, including during meals and during travel.
- While on contractor premises, portable media devices containing sensitive information are equivalent to paper records and are to be physically stored within an appropriate security container such as those listed above.

## 2.3.2 Prevention Tips While in Transit:

- Prior to travel: Make an inventory of information.
- Public Areas: Sensitive information must never be read, displayed, discussed or used in public areas.
- · Overnight Stopovers: Not to be left unattended.
- Travelling by Car: Locked in trunk while travelling. Never to be left unattended in vehicle.
- Travelling by Air: Bring with you as a carry-on.
- Hotels/Conference Centers: Be careful about sensitive conversations in hotel conference rooms.
- Never use hotel reception staff or devices to fax, receive or copy sensitive information.
   Ensure all participants have the proper security clearance and the need-to-know.
- In the event a device or a document is lost or stolen, it must be reported immediately to the Department.

## 2.3.3 Discussion:

- Sensitive information must never be read, displayed, discussed or used in public areas.
- Be careful about sensitive conversations in hotel conference rooms. Ensure everyone in the conference room has the need-to-know and that the door is closed.
- Do not use a wireless device to discuss sensitive matters. Use a wired telephone to discuss Protected matters.

## 3. IT Security Requirements

## 3.1 Electronic Storage

When there is a requirement to produce or store **Protected** data outside of the departmental premises, it must be done as per the following to ensure that the data remains secure at all times:

- Store Protected electronic documents on encrypted removable media (USB key) that use approved
  Government of Canada standards (FIPS 140-2 or above (ex: FIPS 140-3) certified removable media
  device, encrypted with AES 128, 192 or 256 bit algorithm and not be copied to a device which does
  not meet these requirements. <a href="http://csrc.nist.gov/groups/STM/cmvp/documents/140-1/1401vend.htm">http://csrc.nist.gov/groups/STM/cmvp/documents/140-1/1401vend.htm</a>)
- Select strong passwords for your encrypted USB keys. The level of protection provided by such
  devices is directly related to the strength of the password chosen.

# 3.2 <u>Electronic Possession, Transportation and Processing</u>

When there is a requirement for the contractor to transport, process or electronically store departmental information, the contractor must ensure that the data remains secure at all times no matter what level of confidentiality the information is by adhering to the following requirements:

- Computing devices used to process data are equipped with up to date anti-virus software which is configured to automatically receive and install product updates;
- Computing devices used to process data must be equipped with up to date software and Operating System versions, and configured to automatically receive and install updates;
- Computing devices are protected by a firewall which can be a network perimeter firewall appliance or host based firewall application installed on the computer (note: a standard router only device is not considered a substitute to a firewall);
- The contractor has the means to securely dispose of electronic data in accordance with CSEC standards (refer to https://www.cse-cst.gc.ca/en/node/270/html/10572);
- Departmental data must be stored on a FIPS 140-2 or above certified removable media device that is encrypted with AES 128 bit algorithm or higher (refer to <a href="http://csrc.nist.gov/groups/STM/cmvp/documents/140-1/1401vend.htm">http://csrc.nist.gov/groups/STM/cmvp/documents/140-1/1401vend.htm</a> for a list of certified devices); and
- Portable storage devices must be labeled to indicate the highest classification or designation level of information stored on the device.

#### 3.3 Electronic Transmission of Departmental Data

When there is a requirement to electronically transmit departmental data between the contractor and CIRNAC, the contractor must ensure that only the approved method is used based on the level of sensitivity of the information. The contractor may use a combination of these transmission methods in order to share information with CIRNAC personnel. The use of electronic transmission methods other than those listed below is prohibited.

Note: The department has Certified and Accredited its remote connectivity services for access to and/or transmission of information up to Protected B. CIRNAC accepts any residual risk for their use during the contract. Therefore, an IT inspection by CIRNAC to verify remote access services is not required.

Classification Level	CIRNAC Approved Transmission Methods	Requirements
Protected A	Email	The Contractor can transmit Protected A Data to CIRNAC personnel via email as long as the following requirements are met:  • The e-mail account is not a publically accessible web-mail based service (ex: Hotmail, yahoo mail, Gmail, etc.);  • Each user has their own corporate e-mail account which is protected with a username and password; and

Email server communication is protected with TLS encryption. Fax The Contractor can transmit Protected A Data to CIRNAC via fax as long as the following requirements are met: The sending fax machine is located on the contractor's premises: The sender contacts the recipient to confirm fax number and advise recipient of incoming fax: Recipient is present at the fax machine ready to receive fax: and Sender obtains confirmation from sender of receipt. Wireless If a wireless access point is installed on the contractor's Communications premises, and devices processing CIRNAC data will be connected to this network, the wireless infrastructure must at a minimum include the following safeguards: The administrator user name and password must be changed from their default values: The network name (SSID) has been changed from its default value: and WPA2 encryption with an AES algorithm enabled and the passphrase meets the following complexity requirements: Must be 8 characters or longer; Have at least one upper case character: Have at least one lower case character; Have at least one numeric character; and Have at least one allowed special character **Protected B** Encrypted and The Contractor can transmit Protected B Data to CIRNAC Digitally Signed personnel via email as long as the messages and/or eMail attachments are encrypted and the following requirements are met: • The e-mail account is not a publically accessible web-mail based service (ex: hotmail, yahoo mail, gmail etc); Each user has their own corporate e-mail account which is protected with a username and password; The contractor has an approved Public Key Infrastructure (PKI) certificate that is compatible with the Government of Canada (GoC) PKI services; and Entrust software is installed on the contractor's PC/laptop and utilized to encrypt the email using the following settings: • One of the following encryption algorithms is used: 3DES-168 Bit or higher AES-128 Bit or higher • Digitally signed with one of the following algorithms: RSA (Rivest, Shamir, Adleman) DSA (Digital Signature Algorithm) ECDSA (Elliptic Curve Digital Signature Algorithm) One of the following Hash functions is used in the generation of digital signatures: ■ SHA-224 SHA-256 SHA-384 SHA-512

l	1
Wireless Communications	If a wireless access point is installed on the contractor's premises, and devices processing CIRNAC data will be connected to this network, the wireless infrastructure must at a minimum include the following safeguards:  The administrator user name and password must be changed from their default values;  The network name (SSID) has been changed from its default value; and  WPA2 encryption with an AES algorithm enabled WPA2 encryption with an AES algorithm enabled and the passphrase meets the following complexity requirements:  Must be 12 characters or longer;  Have at least one upper case character;  Have at least one lower case character;  Have at least one allowed special character
CIRNAC Secure File Exchange Service	The Contractor can transmit Protected B Data via CIRNAC's Secure File Exchange service as long as following requirements are met:  • A personally identifiable unique username and password is assigned to the user by CIRNAC; and  • The contractor has read and agrees to abide to the Secure File Exchange Acceptable Use Policy ( <a href="https://efse-sfee.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/policy/sfe">https://efse-sfee.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/policy/sfe</a> Acceptable use policy.html)
CIRNAC Collaboration Service	The Contractor can transmit Protected B Data via CIRNAC's Collaboration service as long as following requirements are met:  • A personally identifiable unique username and password is assigned to each user by CIRNAC.
Fax	<ul> <li>The Contractor can transmit Protected B Data to CIRNAC via fax as long as the following requirements are met:</li> <li>The sending fax machines is located on the contractor's premises;</li> <li>The sender contacts the recipient to confirm fax number and advises recipient of incoming fax;</li> <li>Recipient is present at the fax machine ready to receive fax; and</li> <li>Sender obtains confirmation from sender of receipt.</li> </ul>

DATE: \_\_\_\_\_

PRINT NAME: \_\_\_\_\_

SIGNED:

SECURITY AGREEMENT

	SECURITY AGREEMENT
I,	(print name) will fulfill the duties as a consultant affiliated with the work attached contract, as set out below, to the best of my abilities.
1.	I will abide by all of Crown-Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs Canada (CIRNAC) security procedures attached to this document. I acknowledge receipt and understand these existing procedures, and promise to familiarize myself with any amendments to them, forthwith after receipt of such amendments.
2.	I understand and agree that information received by me in the process of performing my duties in relation to this file is subject to the Policy on Government Security and may be also subject to the Privacy Act, and will remain the property of CIRNAC. Without the prior written authorization of CIRNAC or of the person to whom the information relates, this information can only be viewed by myself and may only be used for the purposes of this contract on behalf of CIRNAC.
3.	I agree to notify CIRNAC authorities of any unauthorized access, disclosure or misuse of the sensitive information of which I become aware. I will provide full details of the incident immediately noting the corrective action taken to prevent a recurrence of the incident.
4.	I agree to provide background information necessary to proceed with a criminal record check for the purposes of qualification as a consultant affiliated with the work under this contract.
I, the	undersigned, UNDERSTAND, AGREE AND CONSENT TO THE ABOVE:
DATI	E:
SIGN	NED:
PRIN	IT NAME:
CIRN	IAC Project Authority: